
           

REGULAR WORK SESSION & MEETING
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

November 10, 2015

ADDISON TOWN HALL

5300 BELT LINE RD., DALLAS, TX 75254

5:30 PM DINNER & EXECUTIVE SESSION
6:30PM WORK SESSION

7:30PM REGULAR MEETING
             

WORK SESSION
 
 

1.   Discuss Health Insurance Options For Town Of Addison Employees
For Calendar Year 2016. 

 

2.   Discuss The Status Of The Redevelopment Of The Former Sam's
Club Site Which Is Approximately 17.3 Acre Tract At 4150 Belt Line
Road.

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council



Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any topic
not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and
submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation. Speakers are
allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with fifteen (15) total
minutes on items of interest or concern and not on items that are on the
current agenda. In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City
Council cannot take action on items not listed on the agenda. The Council
may choose to place the item on a future agenda.

 

Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one
motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the
Consent Agenda and discussed separately.
 

3.   Present A Proclamation Declaring November2015 American
Diabetes Month.

 

4.   Consider Approval Of The October 12, 2015 Special Meeting,
October 13 & 27 ,2015 Regular Meeting, October 15, 16, 20 & 23,
2015 Executive Session Minutes.

 

5.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Approve A Contract With Shiroma Southwest For Public
Relations And Media Publicity Programs To Promote The Town Of
Addison's Events And Selected Special Projects.

 

6.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Approve A Contract With Shiroma Southwest For Website
Content Management and Social Media In An Amount Not To Exceed
$49,500.00.

 

7.   Consider  And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager



7.   Consider  And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Approve a Contract with Rodney Hand Associates Marketing
Communications, LP For The Production Of Addison - The
Magazine Of The North Dallas Corridor In An Amount Not To Exceed
$132,000.00.

 

8.   Consider And Approve A Final Plat For One Lot Totaling 6.484 Acres
Located Generally At 14675 Dallas Parkway. FINAL PLAT/Crescent
Crown Addition/ Cawley Partners/Mr. Kim Sutton.  

 

9.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into A Contract With Kimley-Horn And Associates To
Update The Town's Master Transportation Plan In An Amount Not To
Exceed $76,597.00.

 

10.   Consider Authorizing The City Manager To Approve Final Payment
to Lea Park and Play, Inc. For The Purchase And Installation Of the
Les Lacs Park Playground System In An Amount No To Exceed
$9,969.70.

 

11.   Consider And Approve An Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Article IV,
Division 2 Of The Code Of Ordinances, Regarding The Town's
Investment Policy. 

 

12.   Consider And Approve A  Resolution Adopting The Town Of Addison
Investment Strategy For FY 2016.

 

13.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Casting A Vote For Blake
Clemens As The Fourth Member Of The Board Of Directors Of The
Dallas Central Appraisal District.

 

14.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Apply For A Grant Purchase And Install Permanent Recycling
Stations Through The North Texas Council Of Government
Materials Management Grant Program.

 

15.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager



15.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into An Agreement With Harris Corporation For
Maintenance On All Town Owned Portable Mobile And Control
Station Radio Equipment  For A Five Year Agreement. 

 

16.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With Launchability In An
Amount Not To Exceed $2,500.00.

 

17.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With Metrocrest
Chamber Of Commerce In An Amount Not To Exceed $35,000.00.

 

18.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With Metrocrest
Community Clinic In An Amount Not To Exceed $3,000.00.

 

19.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With Metrocrest Services
In An Amount Not To Exceed $61,000.00.

 

20.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With The Family Place In
An Amount Not To Exceed $12,000.00.

 

21.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With WaterTower
Theatre In An Amount Not To Exceed $295,000.00.

 

22.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into An Agreement With The WaterTower Theatre For Use
Of The Addison Theatre Center.

 

23.   Consider And Approve An Ordinance Amending Chapter 10, Animals
Of The Code Of Ordinance For The Town Of Addison.

 

Regular Items
 



24.   Hold A Public Hearing, Consider And Approve An Ordinance
Amending Planned Development O93-018, 8 Tracts Of Land
Totaling Approximately 40.7 Acres Addressed From 3712 Belt Line
Road to 3910 Belt Line Road, In Order To Grant Additional Allowed
Uses And Amend Requirements Relating To Parking And Building
Elevations . Case 1720-Z/Addison Town Center/Cencor Realty
Services, Mr. Bernard Shaw. 

 

25.   Hold A Public Hearing,Consider And Approve An Ordinance Approving
A Special Use Permit For A Gasoline Service Station On Property
Located At 3770 Belt Line Road. The Property Is Currently Zoned PD
(Planned Development) Through Ordinance O93-18. Case
1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center/CEI Engineering Associates, Inc./ Mr. Jim
Evans. 

 

26.   Hold A Public Hearing, Consider And Approve An Ordinance
Approving A Special Use Permit For The Sale Of Alcoholic
Beverages For On-Premises Consumption Only On Property
Located At 15650 Addison Road On Application From The Town Of
Addison . Case 1721-SUP/Addison Conference and Theatre Centre/Mr.
Mark Gooch. 

 

27.   Hold A Public Hearing,Consider And Approve An Ordinance Amending
Article XXI (Landcaping Regulations) By Revising The
Requirements Relating To The Maintenance Of Irrigation Systems
And Enforcement.  Case 1722-Z/Town of Addison/Charles Goff.

 

28.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Approve A Ground Lease Assignment From Tailwind Worldwide
To Mills Group, Inc. On Addison Airport For Office Space At 4584
Claire Chennault And The Creation Of A Leasehold Mortgage.

 

29.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Approve An 8-Year Ground Lease Extension At Addison Airport
For Key Development, LLC, At 4500 Westgrove Drive.

 

30.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager



30.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Accept A Grant From TXDOT Aviation For A Runway Incursion
Mitigation (RIM) Study At Addison Airport In The Amount Of
$48,460.00.

 

31.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Approve A Professional Services Contract With Cobb Fendley &
Associates, Inc. For Engineering Services Associated With
Development Review In An Amount No To Exceed $100,000.00.

 

32.   Present An Update On Various Capital Improvement Program
Projects.

 

33.   Discuss And Take Needed Action Regarding City Manager Welcome
Event Council Subcommittee Report .

 

Executive Session
 

34.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with
its attorney(s) on a mater in which the duty of the attorney(s) to the
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551,
Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to 

Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures I, L.P. and Urban
Green Energy Cause No. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial District
Court, Dallas County, Texas
The ponds or lakes at Vitruvian Park, located within the vicinity
and east of the intersection of Vitruvian Way and Ponte Ave,
and Farmers Branch Creek
Automotive Use Issues- 15600 Midway Road

Section 551.072, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the purchase, exchange,
lease or value of real property 

Duke's Icehouse
Section 551.087, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate commercial or financial
information that was received from a business prospect that seeks to
locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body,
and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations. 



Former Sam's Club Property
 

Reconvene from Executive Session
 

35.   RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into
Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matter discussed in
Executive Session.

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

 

Posted:
Laura Bell, 11/06/2015, 5:00pm

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES.
PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7090 AT LEAST

48 HOURS IN ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.



   
AI-1385     WS4             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Human Resources

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discuss Health Insurance Options For Town Of Addison Employees For
Calendar Year 2016. 

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A



   
AI-1420     Item #   2.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discuss The Status Of The Redevelopment Of The Former Sam's Club Site
Which Is Approximately 17.3 Acre Tract At 4150 Belt Line Road.

BACKGROUND:
Staff will provide an update on the status of the proposed redevelopment for the former
Sam's Club site.

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a



   
AI-1407     Item #   3.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present A Proclamation Declaring November2015 American Diabetes Month.

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a



   
AI-1399     Item #   4.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of The October 12, 2015 Special Meeting, October 13 & 27
,2015 Regular Meeting, October 15, 16, 20 & 23, 2015 Executive Session
Minutes.

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a

Attachments
October 12, 2015 Minutes 
October 16, 2015 Minutes 
October 23, 2015 Minutes 
October 13, 2015 Minutes 
October 27 2015 Minutes 
October 15, 2015 Minutes 
October 20, 2015 Minutes 



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
WORK SESSION

October 12, 2015
6:00 pm
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254 
Present: Arfsten; Carpenter; Heape; Hughes; Meier, Mayor; Moore; Wilcox 
 

Mayor Meier called the Worksession to order at 6:00pm. 
 

               

WORK SESSION
 

  1.   Presentation By Jay Ihrig On Behalf Of The Arbor Foundation
Regarding The Dove Sculpture In Oaks North Neighborhood.

  

 
  Council received an update on the sculpture for the Oaks North

neighborhood. Council agreed the sculpture would be appropriate in
the neighborhood. Council thanked the Arbor Foundation for their
work on this project. 

 

  2.   Discuss Council Calendar For November & December 2015 And
January & February 2016.

  

 
  Council discussed the calendar for upcoming meetings in November

through February 2016. Council agreed to the following schedule:

November 10th- Regular Worksession & Meeting
November 17th- placeholder for Worksession & Meeting if needed
December 8th- Regular Worksession & Meeting
December 14th- placeholder for Worksession & Meeting if needed
January 12th & 26th- Regular Worksesion & Meeting
February 9th & 23rd- Regular Worksession & Meeting

Any extra worksessions or meetings will be scheduled as needed
and with appropriate notice.

 

  3.   Discuss Boards & Commission Application Revisions.   

 
  City Secretary, Laura Bell, presented a draft application to Council

for the Boards and Commission process. Ms. Bell stated that this
application could also be used for special ad hoc committees
throughout the year if needed. This process would allow Council to
gather the information for potential applicants for any board,
commission, ad hoc committee, special project, etc.

Council agreed upon the main areas of the application. Ms. Bell was
instructed to put together minor edits that were needed and move
forward with the process. Ms. Bell informed Council that the process
as a whole would come back for discussion at a future worksession.



as a whole would come back for discussion at a future worksession.
The overall goal is to get the process approved and ready to proceed
by January 1, 2016. 

 

  4.   Discuss The Cost Of Living Adjustment For The Town Of Addison
Retirees And Texas Municipal Retirement System.

  

 
  Deputy City Manager, Cheryl Delaney, presented the item to Council.

She stated that the decision to fund a COLA increase is made by
Council each year. In 2008, Council decided to make this decision
yearly instead of granting an automatic increase. She stated that
about half of the cities who participate in the TMRS retirement
system have the automatic increase. This year the increase would be
$27,000 to cover all retirees. This amount was already in the budget
approved by Council in September.

Council discussed the item. Several points were brought up about
future budget impact and the fact that Social Security was not giving
a COLA increase this year.

Deputy City Manager Delaney stated that this item would be included
in the agenda for the meeting on October 13 for action. 

 

  5.   Discuss Proposed Revisions To The Addison Code Of Ordinances
Chapter 66 - Solid Waste.

  

 
  Director of Infrastructure & Development, Lisa Pyles, presented this

item to Council. She stated that staff looked at the ordinances from
several neighboring cities. She stated that the options presented
were what staff believed would work in Addison.

Council discussed the item. Discussion included screening the bins
from sight, placement of bins on collection day, alley entry homes
and placement and other concerns from Council.

Staff was directed to bring the ordinance forward at the October 27th
meeting. Staff will work with the vendor for options on bin size and
with citizens on placement and enforcement. 

 

  Mayor Meier recessed the Worksession at 6:56pm. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

  6.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation
with its attorney(s) on a matter in which the duty of the attorney(s) to
the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to 

Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures I, L.P. and Urban
Green Energy Cause No. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial District
Court, Dallas County, Texas

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment,

  



employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal
of a public officer or employee, pertaining to 

 City Manager Search Update.

 
RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 7:05pm.

Council recessed from Executive Session at 7:29pm.
Council reconvened into Executive Session at 7:37pm.
Council recessed from Executive Session at 9:25pm. 

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed
on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with
the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel);
§551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any
decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session
following the conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
WORK SESSION

October 16, 2015
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254 
4:30 PM- Executive Session 
Present: Arfsten; Carpenter; Heape; Meier, Mayor; Moore; Wilcox 
Absent: Hughes 
 

 

               

EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

    Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:
Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee, pertaining to:
 

 City Manager Interview Discussion & Debrief.

 

  

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 4:40pm.

Council adjourned from Executive Session at 6:17 pm.

No action taken. 
 

Adjourn Meeting
 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
Executive Session

October 23, 2015
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254 
5:00 PM Executive Session
Present: Arfsten; Carpenter; Heape; Hughes; Meier, Mayor; Moore 
Absent: Wilcox 
 

 

               

EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

  1.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment,
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or
dismissal of a public officer or employee, pertaining to   

City Manager Search Update

  

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 5:01 pm.

Council adjourned from Executive Session at 6:17 pm.
 

REGULAR ITEMS CONTINUED
 

  2.   RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will
reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matter
discussed in Executive Session.
 

  

 
  No action taken. 
 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session
closed to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters
listed on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with
the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel);
§551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations).
Any decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session
following the conclusion of the Executive Session.
 



 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
WORK SESSION

October 13, 2015
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254
5:30 pm Work Session I 7:30pm Regular Meeting
Present: Arfsten; Carpenter; Heape; Hughes; Mayor Meier; Moore; Wilcox 
 

Mayor Meier called the Worksession to order at 5:30pm. 
 

               

WORK SESSION
 
 

  1.   Discuss The FY 2016 Program Of Work For The Development
Services Division Of The Infrastructure And Development
Services Department.

  

 
  Charles Goff, Assistant Director Development Services, presented

this item, Mr. Goff discussed the three major projects that were
funded in the FY2016 Budget. The Master Transportation Plan will
be coming forward for consideration at the November 10th Meeting.
Staff also discussed with Council that there is funding for two
special area studies as call for in the Comprehensive Land Use
Plan. Staff reminded Council that Council input was needed on the
study area which was completed last year which included the
properties on the west side of Midway Road south of Beltway.
Council asked staff to schedule a work session time to revisit this
item. For the two new studies, Council selected Inwood Road and
the east side of Midway Road north of Belt Line Road for completion
this year. Staff was directed to meet with Mayor Pro Tem Moore
and Councilmember Hughes for further discussion.

 

  2.   Discuss A Recognition Garden At The Corner Of Beltway And
Proton Drives.

  

 
  Slade Strickland, Director of Parks and Michael Kashuba,

Landscape Architect, presented the item to Council. Council listened
to the options presented. Council agreed that the location proposed
is not the ideal location. Council also agreed to rethink the sculpture
that would have been placed in the park originally.  Council agrees
the idea of a recognition garden is a good one. However, the
location needs to the right fit for Addison.

Staff will direct the contractor to proceed with the original project as
approved. Staff will bring back other options and considerations to
Council at a later date. 

 

REGULAR MEETING
 



 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

 Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and
Council Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

 Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation.
Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with 
fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on
items that are on the current agenda. In accordance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot take action on items not
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a
future agenda.

 

 Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 

  3.   Consider Approval Of The September 22, 2015 City Council
Regular Meeting and Work Session Minutes

  

 
  Motion made by Moore 
  Seconded by Hughes  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Moore, Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  4.   Consider Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Contract
With Mister Sweeper, LP For Street Sweeping Services In An
Amount Not To Exceed $65,875.28.

  

 
  Council pulled Item 4 from Consent Agenda and considered it

separately.

Assistant Director-Infrastructure, Jason Shroyer, explained to
Council that this contract does include a stipulation for clean up after
severe weather incidents. 

  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,
Moore, Wilcox 

Passed 
 

  5.   Consider An Ordinance Providing For Increased Prior And
Current Service Annuities Through Texas Municipal Retirement
System For Retirees.

  

 
  Motion made by Arfsten Council pulled Item 5 for separate



  Motion made by Arfsten Council pulled Item 5 for separate
consideration.

Councilmember Wilcox seconded Councilmember Arfsten's motion
initially. After discussion, Councilmember Wilcox rescinded his
second. Councilmember Hughes then seconded the motion. 

  Seconded by Hughes  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Hughes 

NAY: Carpenter, Heape, Mayor Meier, Moore, Wilcox 
Failed 

 

  6.   Consider Approval Of The Final Payment To Starkbuilt
Construction Company For Completion Of The Celestial Park
Trail Project In An Amount Not To Exceed $6,612.82.

  

 
  Motion made by Moore 
  Seconded by Hughes  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Moore, Wilcox 
Passed 

 

Regular Items
 

  7.   Consider A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Planning &
Zoning Commission.

  

 
  Motion made by Hughes Council considered Item 7 after recessing

from Executive Session at 9:30pm.
  Seconded by Moore  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Moore, Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  8.   Consider An Ordinance Amending The Property Maintenance
Code Chapters 18 & 34, Various Sections To Provide
Revised Property Maintenance Standards Within The Town.

  

 
  Motion made by Arfsten Assistant Director-Development Services,

Charles Goff, presented the item to Council.

Council discussed the proposed amendments. Council agreed to
change the days a POD could be in a driveway from 72 hours to 5
days. 

  Seconded by Carpenter  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Moore, Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  9.   Consider An Ordinance Amending Various Sections Of Chapter
62 Of The Town Of Addison Code Of Ordinances In Regards To
Sign Regulations.
 

  



 
  Motion made by Moore Assistant Director-Development Services,

Charles Goff, presented the item.

Council mentioned that this item had been discussed in several
previous meetings and Council had given direction then. 

  Seconded by Carpenter  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Moore, Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  10.   Hold A Public Hearing And Consider An Ordinance Amending The
Zoning And Establish A Special Use Permit For A Hotel, Located
In A Commercial-1 (C-1) District, On A 1.64 Acre Vacant Tract Of
Land Located Approximately 250 Feet Northeast Of The Intersection
Of Addison Road And Belt Line Road. Case 1718-SUP/TownePlace
Suites By Mariott.

  

 
  Motion made by Moore Assistant Director-Development Services,

Charles Goff, presented the item to Council.

Mr. Shawn Trainnm, Ron Stewart and Ron Smith spoke on behalf of
the applicants and Marriott Hotels. 

Mr. Cole Snadon, on behalf of Beltway Commercial Real Estate,
spoke in favor of this item.

Aubri Simmons stated that she would hope that this is the right brand
and right decision for this property. She stated she hoped that this
development would attract crowds to the special events for the town.

The motion was made to DENY the application. 
  Seconded by Carpenter  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Moore 
NAY: Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  11.   Hold A Public Hearing And Consider An Ordinance Amending
Article XXX (Definitions) Of The Zoning Code In Regards To The
Definition Of A Hotel Or Motel. Case No. 1719-Z/Town Of Addison.

  

 
  Motion made by Moore Assistant Director-Development Services,

Charles Goff and City Attorney Brenda McDonald presented the item
to Council.

City Attorney Brenda McDonald stated that the ordinance should
include a stipulation requiring a full commercial kitchen. The
ordinance included in the packet was missing that stipulation.

Council agreed that this item has been discussed at many previous
meetings and the proposed ordinance looked good. 

  Seconded by Carpenter  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Moore, Wilcox 
Passed 



 

  12.   Present And Discuss The Town Of Addison Sustainability Plan.
 

  

 
  Infrastructure & Development Services Management Assistant,

Taylor Hollingshead presented the item to Council.

Council agreed that the first steps were great and the program
seemed to be doing well. Council would like to discuss the future of
the program further at a future meeting. Staff will bring the item back
to discuss. 

  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,
Moore, Wilcox 

Passed 
 
  Mayor Meier adjourned the Regular Meeting at 9:21 pm. 
 

Executive Session
 

    Closed (Executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to
Section 551.087, Texas Government Code, to discuss or deliberate
regarding commercial or financial information that the City Council
has received from a business prospect or business prospects that the
City Council seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the
territory of the Town of Addison and with which the City Council is
conducting economic development negotiations, and/or to deliberate
the offer of a financial or other incentive to such business prospect or
business prospects.
 

  

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 9:23pm.

Council recessed out of Executive Session at 9:30pm.
Council reconvened into Executive Session at 9:34pm.
Council recessed out of Executive Session at 9:54pm. 

  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,
Moore, Wilcox 

Passed 
 

Reconvene from Executive Session
 

    Discuss, consider, and take action regarding a business prospect or
business prospects that the City Council seeks to have locate, stay,
or expand in or near the territory of the Town of Addison and with
which the City Council is conducting economic development
negotiations, and/or regarding the offer of a financial or other
incentive to such business prospect or business prospects.

  

 
  Motion made by Moore 
  Seconded by Arfsten  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Moore, Wilcox 
Passed 

 



Adjourn Meeting

Mayor Meier adjourned the meeting at 9:55pm. 
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

October 27, 2015
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254
7:30 pm Regular Meeting
Present: Arfsten; Carpenter; Heape; Hughes; Mayor Meier; Wilcox 
Absent: Moore 
 

 

               

WORK SESSION
 
 

  1.   Reception For Addison Citizen Academy Graduates.   

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

 Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and
Council Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

 Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation.
Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with 
fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on
items that are on the current agenda. In accordance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot take action on items not
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a
future agenda.

 

Regular Items
 

  2.   Present Certificates To The 2015 Citizen's Academy Graduates.   

 
  Mayor Meier and Assistant To The City Manager Caitlan Smelley,

presented Certificates of Completion to the graduates. 
 

  3.   Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter   



  3.   Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Professional Services Agreement With Halff Associates,
Inc., To Complete The Detailed Studies Of The Remaining
Stormwater Drainage Basins In An Amount Not To Exceed
$900,350.00.
 

  

 
  Lisa Pyles, Director of Infrastructure & Development Services,

presented this item to Council. 
 

  Motion made by Hughes 
  Seconded by Arfsten  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  4.   Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into An Agreement For Fire Department Automatic Aid Between
The Town Of Addison And The Cities Of Carrollton, Coppell And
Farmers Branch.

  

 
  John O'Neal, Fire Chief, presented the item to Council. 
 

  Motion made by Carpenter 
  Seconded by Heape  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  5.   Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into An Agreement With The Texas Department Of
Transportation To Participate In The Routine Airport
Maintenance Program (RAMP) Grant For Airport Improvements
At Addison Airport In An Amount Not To Exceed $50,000.00.

  

 
  Lisa Pyles, Director of Infrastructure & Development Services,

presented this item to Council. 
 

  Motion made by Heape 
  Seconded by Arfsten  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  6.   Consider An Ordinance Amending Chapter 66 (Solid Waste) Of
The Code Of Ordinances For The Town Of Addison To Provide
Regulations For The Placement Of Recycle Containers.
 

  

 
  Lisa Pyles, Director of Infrastructure & Development Services,

presented the item to Council.  Questions concerned rear entry
alleyways screening, enforcement of violations and placement time
of the containers. 

 



  Motion made by Carpenter 
  Seconded by Wilcox  
  Voting  AYE: Arfsten, Carpenter, Heape, Hughes, Mayor Meier,

Wilcox 
Passed 

 

  8.   Review, Discuss & Take Needed Action Regarding Public
Comment Guidelines.
 

  

 
  City Secretary, Laura Bell, presented this item to Council. The new

guidelines and cards are meant to help speakers with presentations
and help with the efficiency of the meetings. Council agreed that the
new cards and guidelines were appropriate. Staff will have them
available at the next regular meeting.  

 

  9.   Discuss And Consider Action Needed Regarding The Selection
And Employment Of The City Manager.
 

  

 
  Mayor Meier stated that the Council had selected Wes Pierson as

the next Addison City Manager. Each Councilmember stated how
excited they were to have Mr. Pierson come aboard.

Motion made by Mayor Meier, David Heape & Mary Carpenter with
a second by Ivan Hughes, Bruce Arfsten & Dale Wilcox. The motion
passed unanimously. 

 

Executive Session
 

  10.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation
with its attorney(s) on a mater in which the duty of the attorney(s) to
the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to 

Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures I, L.P. and Urban
Green Energy Cause No. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial District
Court, Dallas County, Texas
The ponds or lakes at Vitruvian Park, located within the
vicinity and east of the intersection of Vitruvian Way and
Ponte Ave, and Farmers Branch Creek.

  

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 8:39 pm.
 

Reconvene from Executive Session
 

  11.   RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will
reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matter
discussed in Executive Session.

  

 
  Council reconvened out of Executive Session at 9:55pm.



  Council reconvened out of Executive Session at 9:55pm.

Mayor Meier adjourned the meeting at 9:55pm. 
 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
SPECIAL MEETING

October 15, 2015
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254 
1:00 pm Executive Session
Present: Arfsten; Carpenter; Heape; Hughes; Meier, Mayor; Moore; Wilcox 
 

 

               

 Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the City Council of the Town of
Addison, Texas may be in attendance at various City Manager Interview
Events on October 15, 2015 beginning at 1:00 pm. to end at 6:30 pm  at
Town Hall located at 5300 Belt Line Rd, Addison, Texas 75254 at which time
Town business/issues may be discussed, but no action will be taken. 

Council will convene in Executive Session at 1pm to 5pm pursuant to Section
551.074 Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public
officer or employee, pertaining to:
 

City Manager Search Update.

 
Reception will follow from 5-6:30pm with Council in attendance. 

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 1:00pm

Council recessed out of Executive Session at 4:50pm.

No action taken. 
 

 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
WORK SESSION

October 20, 2015
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254 
5:00 PM- Executive Session
 

Present: Arfsten; Carpenter; Heape; Hughes; Meier, Mayor; Moore; Wilcox 
 

               

EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

  6.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment,
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or
dismissal of a public officer or employee, pertaining to 

  City Manager Search Update

  

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 5:01 pm.

Council adjourned from Executive Session at 6:49 pm.

No action taken. 
 

Adjourn Meeting
 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



   
AI-1350     Item #   5.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Communications & Marketing

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Approve
A Contract With Shiroma Southwest For Public Relations And Media
Publicity Programs To Promote The Town Of Addison's Events And Selected
Special Projects.

BACKGROUND:
Shiroma Southwest has worked with the Town of Addison to help promote our special
events like Fork & Cork, Summer Series, Kaboom Town! and Oktoberfest for the past
few years.  Their efforts have garnered national media recognition for the community,
which reinforces Addison's brand and drives traffic to our hotels, restaurants and events.

This year, Shiroma will continue to develop and execute public relations and media
publicity programs to promote Addison's events, including but not limited to:
 
Out of Loop
Taste Addison
Summer Series
Kaboom Town!
Oktoberfest

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Yes/No: Yes
Funding Source: Hotel Fund
Amount: $80,000

Attachments
Resolution
Supplemental Information 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING A LETTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN
TOWN  OF ADDISON  AND  SOUTHWEST SPEAKERS BUREAU,  INC.
D.B.A.  SHIROMA/SOUTHWEST  FOR  EVENT  PUBLIC  RELATIONS
AND  PUBLICITY,  AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO
EXECUTE  THE  AGREEMENT,  AND  PROVIDING  AN  EFFECTIVE
DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Letter  Agreement  between  the  Town  of  Addison  and  Southwest
Speakers Bureau, Inc. D.B.A. Shiroma/Southwest for event public relations and publicity, a copy
of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is
hereby authorized to execute the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney











 

 

MEMO 
 

TO:    Mayor and Council 

FROM:   Mary Rosenbleeth, Public Communications Director 

DATE:  November 5, 2015 

RE:  Special Events Advertising 

 

Since we are requesting funding for Shiroma Southwest to again do the public relations for our 
special events, I wanted to share with you a snapshot of the team’s efforts this year.  Public 
relations campaigns are often difficult to quantify.  One industry norm is to determine the 
advertising equivalency for stories that appear on television, print, and online.  The table below 
details not only the number of stories and amount of air time generated through Shiroma’s 
efforts, but it also shows gross impressions.  For a 4.4 square mile community to have a 
program that generates more than $2.4 million dollars in publicity and garners in excess of 957 
million impressions is impressive.  Staff recommends to Council that Addison renew its contract 
with Shiroma at the same funding level as last year ($80,000 per year). 

 

Total Impressions 
for all 3 events: 957,586,206 

Total Publicity Value 
for all 3 events: $2,464,556 

 



 

  

 

 
 

 
 

Number of 
Television and 
Radio Stories 48 minutes  20 minutes 110 Stories 
Value of TV/Radio $170,000   $150,000 $307,320.58  
Number of Print 
Stories 10 26 265 
Value of Print 
Stories $142,000  $165,000 $1,368,213  

Highlights 

Online media and blogger 
coverage on approximately 30 
sites, reaching 190,419,151 
viewers 

Continuous online coverage 
with weekly listings in top 
sites including Angie’s A-list 
on WFAA.com,  DMN,  
Thrillist, Dallas Child and 
more, with nearly 
136,000,000 views                      
 
Coverage by top media 
including: WFAA-TV, Dallas 
Morning News, Dallas Child, 
North Dallas Neighbors Go, 
Art and Seek, Dallas 
Observer 

Top Listings, Including: Fodors, 
Mashable, Travel Channel, USA 
Today, Yahoo        

Gross Impressions 193,324,501 144,131,188 620,130,517 
Total Publicity 
Value (Radio, TV, 
Print + Online) 

$311,863  $477,160  $1,675,533  



   
AI-1381     Item #   6.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Communications & Marketing

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Approve
A Contract With Shiroma Southwest For Website Content Management and
Social Media In An Amount Not To Exceed $49,500.00.

BACKGROUND:
Over the past year, Shiroma Southwest has been instrumental in helping the town
navigate the new website development.  They have served as an interface between the
Town and the developer, populated the site with new content and trained staff on how to
make content additions.  During this same time, they have also been actively involved in
helping set up Facebook Pages for Police and Animal Control, as well as helping create
posts for both of Addison's facebook pages, developing a user policy and monitoring the
sites for violations of that policy.  In FY2016, staff recommends extending this
relationship.  Shiroma's staff is intimately familiar with the intricacies of the new website
and their ongoing counsel will be invaluable until staff is able to fully understand the site. 
Also, Shiroma's team is well versed in social media and has already helped us elevate
and expand our social media presence.  Staff has already begun working with Shiroma
to define and broaden Addison's digital footprint in an effort to communicate more
effectively with our residents and business community, but also increase visibility to
potential visitors and corporate relocations.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Yes/No: Yes
Funding Source: Hotel
Amount: $49,500

Attachments
Resolution



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING A LETTER AGREEMENT BETWEEN
TOWN  OF ADDISON  AND  SOUTHWEST SPEAKERS BUREAU,  INC.
D.B.A.  SHIROMA/SOUTHWEST  FOR  WEBSITE  CONTENT
MANAGEMENT  AND  SOCIAL  MEDIA,  AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Letter  Agreement  between  the  Town  of  Addison  and  Southwest
Speakers Bureau, Inc. D.B.A. Shiroma/Southwest for website content management and social
media, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City
Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney











   
AI-1382     7.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider  And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Approve
a Contract with Rodney Hand Associates Marketing Communications, LP
For The Production Of Addison - The Magazine Of The North Dallas Corridor 
In An Amount Not To Exceed $132,000.00.

BACKGROUND:
A redesign and move to six time schedule for ADDISON- The Magazine of the
North Dallas Corridor

Background: Addison - The Magazine of the North Dallas Corridor began in 1998 as a
two time per year publication that was distributed only in Addison hotels. Addison's
financial contribution at that time was $40,000 per issue, for a yearly contribution of
$80,000.

In 2000 the magazine went to three times a year and greatly expanded its scope to
include the business and residential communities and additional hotels in the North
Dallas Corridor (now at 32). The commitment per issue for Addison went down to 
$30,000 per issue ($90,000 yearly). In 2006 the publisher redesigned the magazine,
went to four times a year and added more distribution points totaling over 7,500
businesses, 8,000 residents, 6,500 hotel Rooms, newsstand and retail. The Town’s
financial commitment went to $27,750 per issue($111,000 yearly).

In 2012 the magazine made a very large investment in a multi-channel digital platform to
better serve the Town and other clients. The Town's exposure was greatly increased
because the ad schedule now includes the website, digital edition and E-News 
Weekly platforms, in addition to print. Since Addison Magazine had been a longtime
partner with the Town, the publication did not ask for increased financial commitment.

The Magazine is now increasing its frequency to six times a year and requesting a
financial commitment of $22,000 per issue. This is a significant drop per issue; however,
this makes the Town's total annual commitment slightly more, increasing it from
$111,000 to $132,000

Time per
year

Cost Per
Issue

Annual
Cost Distribution

1998 2 $40,000 $80K Addison Hotels



2000 3 $30,000 $90k

Addison Hotel, plus North
Dallas Corridor,
businesses and residential
community

2006 4 $27,750 $111K

Increased Distribution to
7,500 businesses, 8,000
residents, 6,500 hotel
rooms and added
newsstands and retail

2012 52 $0 $0 Added a digital platform

2015-16 6 $22,000 $132,000

Have continued to
increase circulation,
adding Foreign consulates
per EDT request in
2014-15.

The partnership between the Town and the magazine has spanned over 16 years and by
all accounts has been a tremendous value.

WHY GO TO SIX TIMES PER YEAR? 

According to Addison Magazine, a more established, six-time-a-year schedule will give
them more viability with the advertising agency community. As well it allows them to
cover the events and happenings on a timely basis, engaging readers even more. In the
modern publishing industry a quarterly schedule is an outlier and puts them as a
disadvantage with their competitors.

Some additional benefits the six time schedule will offer:

The magazine works closely with the Economic Development Department to
distribute the magazine to potential new businesses considering relocating to
Addison or other economic activity in the Town. It has added hundreds of
businesses to its circulation list at the direction of the Economic Development
Department, including a recent list of over one hundred foreign consulates.
An increased frequency will help the information flow be more top of mind for
these important decision makers.

The magazine is also involved in promoting the events and priorities of the
Economic Development Department, including the Addison Treehouse. An
increased frequency can help to promote their activities and events more
timely.

The magazine has begun performing ad resizing changes both in print and
digital for the Town at no charge , saving the Town in ad agency production
fees.



fees.

The magazine is and will continue to allow ads from WaterTower Theatre
and Cavanaugh Flight Museum at no charge so the Town isn't double
supporting those organizations.

It will be actively identifying large groups coming to Addison’s convention
hotels who would like to distribute the magazine to their group in advance
and will print and ship to those selected groups at no charge.

Senior staff of the magazine will be available to the Town for a marketing
committee to identify ways the magazine may be able to help save money in
other areas and add our considerable experience and expertise in marketing
communications.

The increase is included in this year's budget and Town staff recommends it forward to
Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Yes/No: Yes
Funding Source: 11
Amount: 132,000
 

Budgeted Yes/No:
Funding Source:
Amount:

Attachments
Resolution



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,
TEXAS APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR ADVERTISING BETWEEN
TOWN OF ADDISON AND RODNEY HAND & ASSOCIATES MARKETING
COMMUNICATIONS,  LP  FOR  PRODUCTION,  PROMOTION  AND
DISTRIBUTION  OF  ADDISON  MAGAZINE  PUBLICATIONS
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT,
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Agreement  for  Advertising  between  the  Town  of  Addison  and
Rodney  Hand  & Associates  Marketing  Communications,  LP  for  production,  promotion  and
distribution of Addison the Magazine of the North Dallas Corridor and Addison and the North
Dallas Corridor Visitors Guide, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is
hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 27th day of October, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A

























   
AI-1390     Item #   8.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Final Plat For One Lot Totaling 6.484 Acres Located
Generally At 14675 Dallas Parkway. FINAL PLAT/Crescent Crown
Addition/ Cawley Partners/Mr. Kim Sutton.  

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on October
20, 2015, voted to recommend approval of a final plat for one lot totaling 6.484 acres
located generally at the 14675 Dallas Parkway, subject to no conditions:
 
Voting Aye:  Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith
Voting Nay:   none
Absent:         Ennis

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Crescent Crown Addition Council Packet
Crescent Crown Addition Final Plat



FINAL PLAT/Crescent Crown Addition 
FINAL PLAT/Crescent Crown Addition. Presentation, discussion and consideration of a 

recommendation regarding a final plat for one lot totaling 6.484 acres located generally 

at 14675 Dallas Parkway, on application from Cawley Partners, represented by Mr. Kim 

Sutton. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 

 
October 15, 2015 

 
STAFF REPORT 
 
RE: FINAL PLAT/ Crescent Crown 

Addition 
 
LOCATION: 14675 Dallas Parkway 
 
REQUEST: Approval of a final plat. 
 
APPLICANT: Cawley Partners, represented by 

Mr. Kim Sutton. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 
Background.  This property has never been platted. Last year, the Town rezoned 
the property to accommodate an office building with a mixture of structured and 
surface parking. This plat records the subdivision of the tract and the easements 
associated with the development that is occurring on the property. 
 
Engineering Review.   The plat has been reviewed by Town staff and found to be 
in compliance with all requirements.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed plat subject to no conditions. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FINAL PLAT/Crescent Crown Addition 
October 20, 2015 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on October 
20, 2015, voted to recommend approval of a final plat for one lot totaling 6.484 acres 
located generally at the 14675 Dallas Parkway, subject to no conditions: 
 
Voting Aye:  Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith 
Voting Nay:   none 
Absent:         Ennis 







   
AI-1391     Item #   9.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Contract With Kimley-Horn And Associates To Update The Town's
Master Transportation Plan In An Amount Not To Exceed $76,597.00.

BACKGROUND:
The Master Transportation Plan is the guiding document for all major transportation
related improvements within a municipality. This plan indicates the location and
alignments of existing and future components of the Town's multi-modal transportation
system, establishes road classifications with technical design standards for each class,
and identifies desired improvements and expansion to the transportation system.

The Town's current Master Transportation Plan was approved in 1998 and was intended
to accommodate travel demand through 2010. It is time to update the plan to reflect
current best practices on a wide variety of transportation related requirements and to
plan for the system improvements that will be necessary to accommodate future growth.

Traffic engineering and the activities related to that, are considered a professional
service and therefore are not competitively bid. We can, however, base a selection on
statements of qualifications. The Town has worked with Kimley-Horn and Associates for
several years on traffic related matters and they are therefore pre-qualified for this type
of work and are& uniquely familiar with the Town's transportation system and current
requirements. For this reason, Kimley-Horn was chosen to propose a scope of work and
cost estimate for updating the Master Transportation Plan. Because the transportation
system is closely related to land use planning, Kimley-Horn is partnering with Prologue
Planning Services. Prologue Planning Services has provided land use/planning
consulting services to the Town for approximately two years on an as needed basis.

Kimley-Horn and Prologue Planning have proposed a scope of work that contemplates
the collection and analysis of pertinent traffic data regionally and within the Town. This
data will guide the team as they develop recommendations regarding street
classifications and cross sections, traffic calming applications, road diets, and overall
system improvements including an emphasis on pedestrian, bicycle and transit
connectivity. The team will also review and revise the technical requirements of the
design criteria manual.

The scope of work anticipates several opportunities for public involvement throughout
the process. Two community workshops will be held. One early in the process to solicit
input regarding transportation matters that should be explored and the second later in



the process to present and receive input on the preliminary draft of the plan. Additionally,
an online survey tool will be utilized to solicit input from the broader community that may
not be able to attend the community workshops. The scope also calls for a small
advisory group to meet with the team twice during the process for more detailed
discussion and input regarding the transportation issues and draft proposals. At the
conclusion of the process, the final draft of the plan will need to be formally adopted
through the public hearing process at both the Planning and Zoning Commission and
City Council.

Staff anticipates that this process will take roughly nine months to complete. The cost of
this project is $76,597.00 which was included in the approved FY2015-16 budget.  This
project was discussed at the October 13, 2015 work session.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution & Agreement



[Type here]

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  A  PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES
AGREEMENT BETWEEN TOWN OF ADDISON AND KIMLEY-HORN
AND ASSOCIATES, INC. IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $76,597.00,
FOR  THE  ADDISON  MASTER  TRANSPORTATION  PLAN  UPDATE,
AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE
AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Professional Services Agreement between the Town of Addison and
Kimley-Horn and Associates,  Inc.,  in  an  amount  not  to  exceed  $76,597.00 for  the  Addison
Master Transportation Plan Update, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A,
is hereby approved and the City Manager is authorized to execute the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

[Type here]





EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
1



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
2



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
3



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
4



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
5



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
6



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
7



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
8



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
9



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
10



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
11



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
12



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
13



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
14



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
15



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
16



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
17



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
18



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
19



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
20



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. _____________ Exhibit A – Page
21



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1392     Item #   10.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Parks & Recreation

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Authorizing The City Manager To Approve Final Payment to Lea
Park and Play, Inc. For The Purchase And Installation Of the Les Lacs Park
Playground System In An Amount No To Exceed $9,969.70.

BACKGROUND:
This project involved demolition of the existing twenty-year old playground structure and
surfacing and replacement with a new playground system, including a shade structure
and poured-in-place safety play surface. This is a request to make final payment of the
5% retainage held out of the total contract amount, now that all of the work and punch
list items are complete.
The original budgeted amount in the Infrastructure Investment Fund was $200,000. The
total contract amount was $199,394, which includes a change order to fund one
additional piece of play equipment totaling $4,631.

RECOMMENDATION:
Lea Park and Play completed the improvements and punch list items within the calendar
days allotted and within the project budget. Administration recommends making final
payment for a project well done.
The attachments include the Final Payment Application and warranty information.

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Yes/No: Yes
Funding Source: Infrastructure Investment Fund
Amount: $9,969.70

Attachments
Payment Application
Warranty
Warranty for Service







home what’s new custom play play structures

Limited One-Year Warranty – On all products against 
failure due to defects in material and workmanship. 

Limited Warranty For As Long As You Own The 
Product - On all aluminum posts, steel posts, stainless 
steel hardware and KidBuilders® steel clamps against 
structural failure due to corrosion and defects in 
materials and workmanship. 

Limited 50-Year Warranty - On the impact 
attenuation performance of LandSoft® Rubber Mulch 
safety surfacing when maintained to Little Tikes 
Commercial Play Structures specifications. 

Limited 15-Year Warranty - On all rigid main play 
structure plastic, steel, and vinyl coated components 
against structural failure due to corrosion and defects 
in materials and workmanship. 

Limited 10-Year Warranty - On all ShadeBuilders® 
steel frames against failure due to defects in materials 
and workmanship.  

Limited 10-Year Warranty - On LandSoft® Rubber 
Mulch color steadfastness.  

Limited 10-Year Warranty - On all Naturtek™ 
products against failure due to defects in materials and 
workmanship.

Limited 8-Year Warranty - On the impact attenuation 
performance and appearance of LandSoft Synthetic 
Turf safety surfacing when maintained to Little Tikes 
Commercial Play Structures specifications. 

Limited 5-Year Warranty - On all ShadeBuilders® 
fabric due to rot, UV deterioration (shades of red are 
limited to 3 years) or defective workmanship

Limited 5-Year Warranty - On all coated steel rope 
cables and Matrix® steel cables against structural 
failure due to corrosion and defects in materials and 
workmanship.

Limited 5-Year Warranty - On all Clever Climbers™ 
polyethylene slides, enclosures, main structure, decks, 
and plastic components against failure caused by 
defects in materials and workmanship.

Limited 3-Year Warranty - On KidTiles®, KidTimbers® 
Border Panels, Playground Sculptures and all 
KidRiders® products (excluding spring assemblies) 
against structural failure due to defects in materials 
and workmanship. 

Limited 1-Year Warranty - On all Learning Lab™ 
Sensory Tables and Tot Tree plastic components against 
failure caused by defects in materials and workmanship.

Limited 1-year Warranty - against structural failure 
due to defects in materials or workmanship for all 
products and components that are not specifically listed 
above, including, without limitation, all moving parts, 
such as swing bearings, chains, trolleys, springs, flexible 
climbers, and play panel mechanisms.

1. The warranty periods set out above shall begin on 
the date products are shipped from Seller’s facility.  
Repaired and/or replaced products are warranted 
through the expiration of the original warranty period.  

2. Seller’s Limited Warranty extends only to the 
original purchaser/end user of products from Seller or 
Seller’s authorized reseller (“Original Purchaser”). It is 
not transferable to anyone who subsequently purchases 
products from the Original Purchaser.

3. Seller’s Limited Warranties specifically do not cover 
defects and damages caused by: normal wear and tear, 
such as scratches, dents, mars, rope fray, color fade and 
surface rust; improper installation and assembly, use, 
service and/or maintenance inconsistent with Seller’s 
instructions and product specifications; unauthorized 
product modification and/or alteration; improper 
repair; neglect, abuse or vandalism; severe weather and 
natural disaster.  

4. Seller’s sole obligation relative to the above stated 
warranties is to provide replacement parts, products 
and materials only. Seller is expressly not required to 
cover labor charges or costs related to removal, repair, 
replacement, installation, service or handling of parts, 
products, or materials.  .    

5. All warranty claims for covered products occurring 
within the above stated warranty periods must be 
submitted by Buyer in writing to Seller within thirty 
(30) days from the date of discovery of the alleged 
defect, and must include a detailed description and 
photographs of the alleged defect or problem. Warranty 
claims should be directed to: 

PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc.
Attn: Customer Service

PO Box 897
Farmington, MO 63640
Phone: 800.325.8828

Facsimile: 573.760.7468
Email: warranty@ltcps.com

Seller may elect, in its sole discretion, to inspect the 
alleged defect(s) at Buyer’s site or at Seller’s facility.  
Buyer shall not return parts to Seller until authorized 
by Seller to do so.  Authorized returns to Seller’s 
manufacturing facility in Monett, Missouri must be 
properly packaged and shipped prepaid and insured, at 
Buyer’s expense.  After inspection and verification of 
warranty coverage, repaired or replacement parts and 
products shall be shipped to Buyer at Seller’s expense.  
Buyer agrees that venue for any court action to enforce 
these limited warranties shall be in Barry or Greene 
Counties in the State of Missouri.  

6. The above warranty is for repair or replacement 
only.  Except to that limited extent, Seller shall not 
under any circumstance be liable for any loss, cost, 
damage or expense of any kind arising out of breach 
of this warranty or otherwise.  Without intending to 
limit the foregoing sentence, it is specifically provided 
as follows:  SELLER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL, 
OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, OR ANY LOSS OF REVENUE, 
PROFIT OR USE, ARISING OUT OF A BREACH OF THIS 
WARRANTY OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE, 
INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, USE, OPERATION OR 
REPAIR OF ANY PRODUCT.  IN NO EVENT WILL SELLER 
BE LIABLE FOR ANY AMOUNT GREATER THAN THE 
PURCHASE PRICE OF A DEFECTIVE PRODUCT.

7. THE FOREGOING LIMITED WARRANTY IS THE 
SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY FOR SELLER’S 
PRODUCTS, AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IN LAW OR IN 
FACT.  SELLER SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES 
OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE, AND ANY IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES ARISING OUT OF COURSE OF DEALING 
OR PERFORMANCE OR TRADE USAGE.  

Prices:   Published prices are subject to change 
without notice.  All orders are subject to approval by 
PPLT. All prices are in U.S. dollars.  Product prices 
are FOB Monett, Missouri and do not include freight – 
freight charges will be added to product prices.  Lease 
purchasing options are available through the Lease 
Program.

Invoice Terms: Net 30 Days. Finance charge of  
1 1/2 % per month or maximum allowable by law will be 
added to past due balance.

Sales Tax:  Will be added to the invoice except when a 
tax exempt certificate is furnished.

Freight Charges:  Products are shipped FOB Monett, 
MO, Pre-Pay and Add.  For orders from Municipalities, 
Government Agencies, School Systems and Businesses 
(listed favorably with Dunn & Bradstreet), freight will 
be prepaid and added to the invoice in accordance with 
PPLT’s standard freight rate chart.  For orders that are 
to be prepaid, please contact our Sales Department for 
a firm freight quote before sending your prepaid order.  

Weights:  Shown as approximate and include packing 
materials
Delivery Terms:  Within the United States, F.O.B. 
Monett, MO.  For Exports (overseas shipments), 
typically shipments are EXW (Ex Works Factory) Monett, 
MO, USA. Consult the PPLT Sales Department for 
special terms and desired arrangements.  Ocean and air 
freight options are available.

Loss or Damage in Transit:  A signed bill of lading 
is our receipt from a carrier that our shipment to 
you was complete and in good condition.  Before you 
sign, please check this bill of lading carefully when 
the shipment reaches you to make sure there are no 
damages or shortages.  Once the shipment leaves our 
plant, we are no longer responsible for any damage, loss 
or shortage.  All claims for loss or damage to product 
should be reported immediately to our Customer 
Service Department.  All claims for product damage and 
shortage via common carrier must be promptly made 
by consignee (customer) direct to PPLT’s Customer 
Service Department.  When reporting damage, be 
sure to hold all containers and packing materials for 
inspection (claims should be filed within 15 days of 
receipt of shipment).

Cancellations and Returns:  Cancellations will be 
accepted upon written notification at our offices.  
Returns will be accepted only when freight charges are 
prepaid, insured, and we have expressly authorized the 
return.  Please provide invoice number, invoice date, 
and reason for your return.  Parts not included are 
custom parts, as well as used or damaged parts.  There 
will be a restocking fee for all returned orders and on 
canceled orders.

Specifications and Product Appearance:  PPLT has a 
policy of continuous product improvement and reserves 
the right to discontinue or change specifications or 
product appearance without written notice.

Freight Carrier Information:  All freight is shipped 
unassembled via UPS (if able) or common carrier.  On all 
common carrier shipments, the customer is responsible 
for unloading.  Inside delivery is available for an 
additional charge. 

LIMITATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND ADMINISTRATION

LIMITED PRODUCT WARRANTY                                           Revised December 31, 2014

Subject to the limitations, exclusions and provisions set out herein, PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc. warrants its products, under normal use and proper maintenance, as follows:

ADDITIONAL ORDER POLICIES

180 Contact your local sales representative listed on page 183.



components independent events find a representative

*

Commitment to Safety
Nothing is more important than a safe, positive play environment for children to play. Our commitment to providing this positive environment starts with meeting and/
or exceeding compliance with the performance safety specifications established by organizations such as ASTM, CPSC, CSA and EN. Beyond compliance, we are an active 
participant in many of these standard writing bodies providing input into the standard development process. Our associates and representatives have the knowledge and 
experience to provide positive play designs that provide the challenge and play value for all children.

Commitment to the Environment
Protecting and preserving the environment for our children’s future is a priority of everyone at PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc. We are committed to closing the recycling 
loop by using pre-consumer recycled material wherever possible and ensuring nearly everything we make can be recycled back into the environment. From steel and 
aluminum to rubber and plastic, almost everything we make uses some amount of recycled material. By installing a Little Tikes Commercial Play Structures play structure 
we are all doing our part to ensure a better world for our children.

GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS 
 
The Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC) created playground 
safety guidelines to help local communities, schools, day care centers, 
corporations and other groups build safe playgrounds. The Handbook 
for Public Playground Safety includes safety guidelines for designing, 
constructing, operating and maintaining public playgrounds.
U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission
Washington, D.C. 20207
E-mail: info@.gov
www.CPSC.gov 

ASTM
The American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM) is an independent 
world renowned developer of technical standards utilized in testing 
products. Standard Consumer Safety Performance Specifications for 
Playground Equipment for Public Use, F1487 & F2373 establishes nationally 
recognized safety standards for public playground equipment.
American Society for Testing and Materials
100 Barr Harbor Drive
West Conshohocken, PA 19428-2959
E-Mail: service@astm.org

CSA
Canadian Standard Association (CSA) is an independent organization whose 
mission is to provide an open and effective forum for activities facilitating 
the development of standards to meet national needs. The CSA Standard 
CAN/CSA-Z614, A Guideline on Children’s Playspaces and Equipment was 
approved.
Canadian Standard Association
5060 Spectrum Way Suite 100
Mississauga, Ontario, Canada L4W 5N6
1-800-463-6727
www.csa.ca

TÜV Product Service 
TÜV Product Service is a world renowned leader in testing and certification 
activities. European Standard EN1176 is the most up-to-date combined 
European Standard for Commercial Playground Equipment. Use of the 
TÜV certification mark is evidence to the customer of product quality and 
compliance to stringent safety standards.
TÜV SÜD America
10 Technology Drive
Peabody, MA 01960
www.TUVamerica.com

ASTM-F1487      CAN/CSA-Z614    EN1176 
KidBuilders®, SkyBuilders™, PlayBuilders®, MaxPlay® Systems and Clever Climbers™ play equipment has 
been tested to be in conformance with safety requirements and standards set forth by ASTM F1487, CAN/
CSA - Z614 and EN1176

When installed according to our layout drawings and installation instructions, KidBuilders, SkyBuilders, 
PlayBuilders, MaxPlay Systems and Clever Climbers play equipment meet guidelines as defined in the 
U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission’s Handbook for Public Playground Safety and the Canadian 
Standard CAN/CSA-Z614. 

KidBuilders, PlayBuilders, MaxPlay Systems, Clever Climbers and Spring Riders have been certified to the 
EN 1176 by TÜV Product Service GMBH.

PlayPower LT Farmington, Inc. is a member in good standing of IPEMA, the International Play Equipment 
Manufacturers Association. IPEMA is a member-driven international trade organization that represents 
and promotes an open market for manufacturers of play equipment.

In the interest of playground safety, IPEMA provides a Third Party Certification Service whereby a 
designated independent laboratory validates a participant’s certification of conformance to ASTM F1487, 
Standard Consumer Safety Performance Specification for Playground Equipment for Public Use, except 
sections 7.11, 10 & 12.6.1; CAN/CSA Z614, Children’s Playspaces and Equipment, except clauses 9.5, 10 & 
11; or both. The use of the corresponding logo in Little Tikes Commercial Play Structures catalog signifies 
that Little Tikes Commercial Play Structures has received written validation from the independent 
laboratory that the product(s) associated with the use of the logo conforms with the requirements of the 
indicated standard. Check the IPEMA website (www.ipema.org) to confirm product validation.

Validation is an ongoing process as new products are certified and released. 
Please contact your local representative for an updated listing or visit our web site at 
www.littletikescommercial.com

PlayPower LT 
Farmington, Inc.
Is certified to 
ISO 9001:2008
& ISO 14001:2004

American Welding 
Society Certified 
D1.1

Contract #
GS07F6384A

Canadian Welding 
Bureau Certified

CPSIA is the federal law mandating acceptable levels of various substances used in the manufacturing process for products used by children 
under the age of twelve.  Insist on CPSIA compliance.

181
U.S.   •   800.325.8828   •   littletikescommercial.com

Canada   •   800.265.9953   •   littletikescommercial.ca

Proper safety surfacing is required under all play 
equipment. Signage displaying safe play instructions 
and age appropriateness is strongly encouraged.

wa
rr

an
ty



	  
	  

Limited Service Warranty 

	  

In addition to the manufacturer's product warranty, Lea Park & 
Play Inc. provides a supplemental service warranty covering the 
labor for replacement of any warranted products installed by Lea 
Park & Play, Inc.  For the duration of the product warranty 
period, any products to be replaced under the manufacturer's 
warranty will be removed and reinstalled by Lea Park & Play, Inc. 
at no cost to the customer.  This service warranty is to provide 
peace of mind to our customers so they will not have any out of 
pocket costs for warranty items.  The fact that we only sell the 
highest quality products makes it possible for us to provide this 
service. 



   
AI-1393     Item #   11.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Finance

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve An Ordinance Amending Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 2
Of The Code Of Ordinances, Regarding The Town's Investment Policy. 

BACKGROUND:
This ordinance will update the Town’s Investment Policy criteria.  Two items will be
changed in the ordinance which provide an update to our investment policy regarding
investment officer bonding amounts and required training hours. 
 
The Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) requires the Council to annually review and
approve an investment policy for the Town. The Town’s investment advisor, First
Southwest Asset Management (FSAM), has assisted administration with the
development and review of the proposed investment policy. Administration is
recommending an update to our investment policy regarding investment officer bonding
and required training hours. The investment officer bonding is recommended to change
to $250,000, which is consistent with municipal best practices across the Dallas metro
area, and satisfies Town policy of ensuring investment officers are bonded. The current
policy of five percent of holdings would require bonding at unsustainably high levels of
expenditures for bonding fees. Additionally, administration is recommending a reduction
in required training hours from ten to eight hours per two fiscal years, which recognizes a
change in state law per House Bill 870, effective September 1, 2015, by the same
amount.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance 



TOWN OF ADDISON,TEXAS

ORDINANCE NO.                       

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS AMENDING
SECTION 2-204  OF THE CODE OF  ORDINANCES REGARDING
THE MINIMUM AMOUNT OF FIDELITY BONDS FOR THE CHIEF
FINANCIAL  OFFICER  AND  THE  CHIEF  FINANCIAL  OFFICER’S
DESIGNEES,  AND  REGARDING  THE  MINIMUM  NUMBER  OF
TRAINING  HOURS  RELATING  TO  INVESTMENT  OFFICER
RESPONSIBILITIES; PROVIDING  FOR SAVINGS,  SEVERABILITY
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (“City”) has adopted a written
investment  policy and a separate written investment strategy in accordance with Section
2256.005, Tex. Gov. Code, and the policy and the strategy are included in Chapter 2, Article
IV, Division 3 of the Code of Ordinances of the City; and

WHEREAS, Section 2256.005(e) provides that the governing  body of an investing
entity must review its investment policy and investment strategies not less than annually, and
adopt a  written instrument by rule, order, ordinance, or resolution stating that it has reviewed
the investment policy  and investment strategies, and the written instrument must record any
changes made to either the investment policy or investment strategies; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Legislature, during its 83rd regular session (2013),  adopted
Senate Bill No. 581 that amended portions of Chapter 2257 of the Texas Government Code
(the Public Funds Collateral Act); and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the City’s investment policy and
investment strategy, and, in accordance with Senate Bill No. 581, makes changes thereto as set
forth in this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The recitals  set  forth above are true and correct and incorporated as if
fully set forth herein.

S  ec  tion 2. Section 2-204 (Delegation of Authority), of the Code of Ordinances of
the Town  of  Addison,  Texas  is amended to read as follows (additions to the Code are
underlined; deletions are struck- through):

Section 2-204.- Delegation of Authority.

(a) . . . 

(b) With written approval from the City Manager, the CFO may delegate any phase
of the investment management  program to any of the Investment Officers. Such
approval shall state specifically the functions such person is authorized to perform



or that the person is authorized to perform all activities of the CFO under this
Policy. The CFO shall obtain  and maintain, at the Town’s expense, fidelity
bonds for himself and each of his designees in amounts determined adequate
by the CFO (which shall not be less than five percent of the amounts subject to
this policy   $250,000  ) for each fiscal year as shown by the approved budget. No
person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the
terms of this Policy and the internal procedures established by the CFO. A
current list of persons authorized to transact  investment business and wire  funds
on behalf of the Town shall be maintained by the CFO.

(c) . . . .

(d) . . . .

(e) The CFO and all Investment Officers shall attend at least one training session
relating to the treasurer’s or  officer’s responsibilities within 12 months after
taking office or assuming duties; and attend a training session not less than once
in a two-year period that begins on the first day of the Town’s fiscal year and
consists of the two consecutive  fiscal years after that date, and receive not less
than 10   8 hours of training. Such training from an independent source shall be
approved or endorsed by the Government Finance Officers Association,
Government Finance Officers Association of  Texas, Government Treasurers
Organization of Texas, Texas Municipal League, or the North Central Texas
Council of  Governments to include education in investment controls, security
risks, strategy risks, market risks, and compliance  with  the  Public  Funds
Investment Act.

S  ec  tion 3. Savings;  Repealer. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other
ordinances of the City and shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except
in  those instances where the provisions of those ordinances are in direct conflict with the
provisions of this Ordinance. Provided, however, that the repeal of such ordinances or
parts of such ordinances, and the amendments and changes made by this Ordinance, shall not
affect any right, property or claim which was or is vested in the City, or any act done, or
right accruing or  accrued, or established, or any suit, action or proceeding had or
commenced before the time  when this Ordinance shall take effect; nor shall said repeals,
amendments or changes affect any offense committed, or any penalty or forfeiture incurred,
or any suit or prosecution pending at the time when this Ordinance shall take effect under any
of the ordinances or sections thereof so repealed, amended or changed; and to that extent and
for that purpose the provisions of such  ordinances or parts of such ordinances shall be
deemed to remain and continue in full force and effect.

S  ec  tion 4. Severability. The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any
section, subsection, sentence, paragraph, phrase, word, or provision of this Ordinance or
the  application of any section, subsection, sentence, paragraph, phrase, word, or provision
hereof to  any person, firm, corporation, entity, situation or circumstance is for any  reason
adjudged invalid  or held unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of a court of
competent jurisdiction, the same shall not affect the validity of any other section, subsection,
phrase, word, or provision of  this Ordinance or the application of any other section,
subsection, sentence, paragraph, phrase, word, or provision to any person, firm, corporation,
entity, situation or circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted



the valid portions of this Ordinance adopted herein without the invalid or unconstitutional
section, subsection, sentence, paragraph, phrase,  word, or provision, and to this end the
remainder of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

S  ec  tion 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its
passage and approval and its publication as may be required by law, including but not limited
to the City Charter and ordinances.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, this
10th day of November, 2015.

                                                                                        Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:                                                                                    

By: 
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: 
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



   
AI-1394     Item #   12.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Finance

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A  Resolution Adopting The Town Of Addison
Investment Strategy For FY 2016.

BACKGROUND:
The Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) requires the Council to annually review the
Town's investment policy (Exhibit A) and strategy (Exhibit B). The Town's investment
adviser, First Southwest Asset Management, has assisted administration with the review
and suggested changes to the investment policy which also requires an ordinance
change. The investment policy ordinance is listed as a separate item, but reflects the
same changes to the investment policy language proposed in the presented investment
policy materials attached to this item. 
 
Investment Policy:  Administration is recommending an update to our investment
policy regarding investment officer bonding and required training hours. The investment
officer bonding is recommended to change to $250,000, which is consistent with
municipal best practices across the Dallas metro area, and satisfies Town policy of
ensuring investment officers are bonded. The current policy of five percent of holdings
would require bonding at unsustainably high levels of expenditures for bonding fees.
Additionally, administration is recommending a reduction in required training hours from
ten to eight hours per two fiscal years, which recognizes a change in state law per
House Bill 870, effective September 1, 2015, by the same amount. A listing of authorized
broker/dealers are also included and required by the investment policy. These
broker/dealers have meet all criteria outlined in the policy. 

Investment Strategy:  The investment strategy has been drafted to comply with all
aspects of the PFIA.  For FY 2016, administration is not recommending any change to
our investment strategy. The investment strategy has the following priorities:

Preservation and safety of principal
Understanding the suitability of the investment to the financial requirements of
the Town
Liquidity
Marketability of the investment if the need arises to liquidate the investment
prior to maturity
Diversification of the investment portfolio
Yield



 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
FY16 Investment Strategy - No Changes
Resolution



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF ADDISON 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 

For 

 

FY 2015-16 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: 
November 10, 2015 



2  

PREFACE 
 

It is the policy of the Town of Addison that, giving due regard to the safety and risk of 

investment, all available funds shall be invested in conformance with State and Federal 

Regulations, applicable Bond Resolution requirements, and adopted Investment Policy. 

 

In accordance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act (Chapter 2256, Tex. Gov. 

Code), the City Council shall adopt Investment Strategy Statements that address the following 

priorities (in order of importance): 
 

 

• Understanding the suitability of the investment to the financial requirements of the 

Town; 

• Preservation and safety of principal; 

• Liquidity; 

• Marketability of the investment if the need arises to liquidate the investment prior to 

maturity; 

• Diversification of the investment portfolio; and 

• Yield 

 

Effective investment strategy development coordinates the primary objectives of the 

Town’s Investment Policy and cash management procedures with investment security risk/return 

analysis to enhance interest earnings and reduce investment risk. Aggressive cash management 

shall be utilized to increase the available “investment period” for all Town funds. Investment 

security maturity selections shall be based on cash flow requirements and market conditions to 

take advantage of interest earnings as viable and material revenue to all Town funds. The Town’s 

portfolios shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and 

consistent with the Investment Policy. 

 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 

In order to minimize risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, investment maturities 

will not exceed the anticipated cash flow requirements of the funds. Investment guidelines by 

fund-type are as follows: 

 

Suitability – any investment eligible in the Investment Policy is suitable. 

 

Safety of principal – all investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived 

default risk. Market price fluctuations will, however, occur. By managing the weighted 

average days to maturity for the Operating fund portfolio to less than 270 days and 

restricting the maximum allowable maturity to five years, the price volatility of the 

overall portfolio will be minimized. 

 

Liquidity – operating funds require the greatest short-term liquidity of any of the fund 

types. Short-term investment pools and money market mutual funds should provide daily 

liquidity and may be utilized as a competitive yield alternative to fixed maturity 

investments. 



3  

 

Marketability – securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in the 

event of an unanticipated cash requirement. Historical market “spreads” between the bid 

and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of a percentage point 

shall define an efficient secondary market. 

 

Diversification – investment maturities should be staggered throughout the budget cycle 

to provide cash flow based on the anticipated operating needs of the Town. When 

conditions are favorable, market cycle risk will be reduced by diversifying the 

appropriate maturity structure out to three years. Adhering to the Investment Policy’s 

maximum investment-type limits (Section IX. INVESTMENT LIMITS) should restrict 

the exposure of the fund to any one-market sector. 

 

Yield – attaining a competitive market yield for comparable security-types and portfolio 

restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling three- 

month Treasury bill portfolio should be the minimum yield objective. The Town's Chief 

Financial Officer ("CFO") may also compare the operating fund’s performance to other 

appropriate benchmarks. 

 

The Investment Policy permits the Town to sell securities from time to time that it owns in order 

to better position its portfolio assets. Sales of securities prior to maturity shall be documented 

and approved by the CFO before such a transaction is consummated. Sales of securities, yielding 

net proceeds less than ninety-eight (98) percent of the book value of the securities, must be 

approved in advance and in writing by both the City Manager and the CFO. 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO.                 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,
TEXAS  ADOPTING  AN  INVESTMENT  POLICY  AND  INVESTMENT
STRATEGY  FOR  FISCAL  YEAR  2015-2016;  PROVIDING  AN  EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the Texas Public Funds Investment Act (“PF  I  A  ”) requires the City Council of
the Town of Addison, Texas (“Cit  y  ”) to annually review the City’s investment policy and strategy;
and

WHEREAS, the City’s investment  advisor, First Southwest  Asset Management, has
assisted City Staff with the development of the investment policy and strategy that are attached
to this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the investment  policy  and  strategy  have been drafted to comply with all
aspects of the PFIA; and

WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2015-2016, City Staff is not recommending any change in the
City’s investment strategy that has been previously adopted; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON TEXAS:

Section 1.  The recitals set forth above are true and correct and incorporated as if fully set
forth herein.

Section 2.   The City Council does hereby adopt and approve the Investment  Policy for
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 3.  The City Council does hereby adopt the investment strategy for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 attached hereto as Exhibit B.

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this 
10th day of November, 2015.

Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

Laura Bell, City Secretary



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 2



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 3



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 4



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 5



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 6



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 7



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 8



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 9



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 10



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 11



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page 12



EXHIBIT B

TOWN OF ADDISON

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

For

FY 2015-16

Adopted:
November 10,

2015

EXHIBIT B - Page 13



EXHIBIT B

PREFACE

It is the policy of the Town of Addison that, giving due regard to the safety and risk of
investment, all available funds shall be invested in conformance with State and Federal
Regulations, applicable Bond Resolution requirements, and adopted Investment Policy.

In accordance with the Texas Public Funds Investment Act (Chapter 2256, Tex. Gov.
Code), the City Council shall adopt Investment Strategy Statements that address the following
priorities (in order of importance):

 Understanding the suitability of the investment to the financial requirements of 
the Town;
 Preservation and safety of principal;
 Liquidity;
 Marketability of the investment if the need arises to liquidate the investment prior
to maturity;
 Diversification of the investment portfolio; and
 Yield

Effective investment strategy development coordinates the primary objectives of the
Town’s Investment Policy and cash management procedures with investment security risk/return
analysis to enhance interest earnings and reduce investment risk. Aggressive cash management
shall be utilized to increase the available “investment period” for all Town funds. Investment
security maturity selections shall be based on cash flow requirements and market conditions to
take advantage of interest earnings as viable and material revenue to all Town funds. The Town’s
portfolios shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and
consistent with the Investment Policy.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

In order to minimize risk of loss due to interest rate fluctuations, investment maturities
will not exceed the anticipated cash flow requirements of the funds. Investment guidelines by
fund-type are as follows:

Suitability –  any  investment  eligible  in  the  Investment  Policy  is
suitable.

Safety of principal – all investments shall be of high quality securities with no perceived
default risk. Market price fluctuations will, however, occur. By managing the weighted
average days to maturity for the Operating fund portfolio to less than 270 days and
restricting the maximum allowable maturity to five years, the price volatility of the
overall portfolio will be minimized.

Liquidity – operating funds require the greatest short-term liquidity of any of the fund
types. Short-term investment pools and money market mutual funds should provide daily
liquidity and may be utilized as a competitive yield alternative to fixed maturity
investments.



EXHIBIT B

Marketability – securities with active and efficient secondary markets are necessary in the
event of an unanticipated cash requirement. Historical market “spreads” between the bid
and offer prices of a particular security-type of less than a quarter of a percentage point
shall define an efficient secondary market.

Diversification – investment maturities should be staggered throughout the budget cycle
to provide cash flow based on the anticipated operating needs of the Town. When
conditions are favorable, market cycle risk will be reduced by diversifying the
appropriate maturity structure out to three years. Adhering to the Investment Policy’s
maximum investment-type limits (Section IX. INVESTMENT LIMITS) should
restrict the exposure of the fund to any one-market sector.

Yield – attaining a competitive market yield for comparable security-types and portfolio
restrictions is the desired objective. The yield of an equally weighted, rolling three-
month Treasury bill portfolio should be the minimum yield objective. The Town's Chief
Financial Officer ("CFO") may also compare the operating fund’s performance to other
appropriate benchmarks.

The Investment Policy permits the Town to sell securities from time to time that it owns in order
to better position its portfolio assets. Sales of securities prior to maturity shall be documented
and approved by the CFO before such a transaction is consummated. Sales of securities, yielding
net proceeds less than ninety-eight (98) percent of the book value of the securities, must be
approved in advance and in writing by both the City Manager and the CFO.



   
AI-1400     Item #   13.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Casting A Vote For Blake Clemens As The
Fourth Member Of The Board Of Directors Of The Dallas Central Appraisal
District.

BACKGROUND:
In September, Council passed a resolution naming a nominee for the Dallas Central
Appraisal District. The DCAD received all the nominations from surrounding
communities. Now the City Council is asked to pass a resolution casting a vote for the
fourth member of the Dallas Central Appraisal District. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this resolution. 

Attachments
Resolution 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION _______________

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS, CASTING ITS VOTE FOR THE 
FOURTH MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DALLAS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, Dallas County eligible taxing entities have expressed and approved an option which allows 
for representation to the Appraisal District Board of Directors (in accordance with Section 6.03 of the 
Texas Property Tax Code) as follows: 

1. The City of Dallas shall appoint one (1) member to the Board. 

2. The Dallas Independent School District shall appoint one (1) member to the Board. 

3. The Dallas County Commissioners Court shall appoint (1) member to the Board. The member 
appointed by the Dallas County Commissioners Court shall not be a resident of wither the City of
Dallas or the Dallas Independent School District. 

4. Each of the incorporated cities and town, except for the City of Dallas, shall have the right to 
nominate by an official resolution one (1) candidate as the fourth member of the Board of 
Directors. The said cities and towns shall, from the nominations received, elect by a majority 
vote, with each city and town being entitled to one (1) vote, the fourth member of the Board of 
Directors. 

5. Each of the School Districts, and the Dallas County Community College District, except the Dallas
Independent School District, shall have the right to nominate by an official resolution one (1) 
candidate as the fifth member of the Board of Directors. The said school districts shall among 
the nominations received appoint by a majority vote, with each school district being entitled to 
one (1) vote, the fifth member of the Board of Directors. 

The vote required for election to the Board of Directors in 4 and 5 hereof shall be by a majority of those 
authorized to vote in 4 and 5 respectively and not by a majority of the quorum, and

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison does hereby cast its vote by marking the ballot below: 

_____ Loren Byers   ___X__ Blake Clemens   _____ Steven Gorwood   _____ Michael Hurtt

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the Town of Addison does hereby confirm its 
one (1) vote for the election of Blake Clemens as the suburban cities’ representative to the Board of 
Directors of the Dallas Central Appraisal District. 

PASSED AND APPROVED, this the 10th day of November, 2015. 

___________________________________

Todd Meier, Mayor

Attest: 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY RESOLUTION NO. __________



__________________________

Laura Bell, City Secretary

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY RESOLUTION NO. __________



   
AI-1402     Item #   14.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Apply
For A Grant Purchase And Install Permanent Recycling Stations Through
The North Texas Council Of Government Materials Management Grant
Program.

BACKGROUND:
As part of the Town's initiatives related to sustainability, staff is proposing to request
funds through the 2016-2017 North Central Texas Council of Government Materials
Management Grant Program. If awarded the grant in February 2016, the Town would
use the funds to purchase twelve Big Belly solar-compacting waste stations to place in
eight of Addison's parks. These stations include trash and recycling containers that use
a solar-powered battery system to compact trash and recyclables allowing for more time
in between pick-ups and providing residents with a permanent opportunity to recycle in
some of Addison's most highly trafficked parks.

In order to apply for the grant by the January 15th deadline Town Staff is requesting a
resolution from City Council stating their wiliness to provide the up-front funding of no
more than $130,000 dollars for the Big Belly Solar Project. NCTCOG will reimburse the
Town for all funds expended for the project and the reimbursements will take place as
the materials are purchased. The grant will include:

Twelve 4x2x4 Big Belly Solar Compacting Duos (see attached picture)
Shipping
Custom Station Wraps
4 Concrete Pads
Smart Software (The Smart Software senses load volume in each waste
container and sends a notification to Town Staff when the containers are
nearing full capacity. )

After installation, the Parks Department will oversee the collection of waste and
recycling from these containers and any maintenance as needed. The attached maps list
all proposed locations. The Finance department has reviewed the grant requirements
and staff understands the reporting provisions required by this grant. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments



Attachments
Big Belly Spec Sheet
Big Belly Location Town Map
Grant Application 
Resolution 



www.bigbelly.com    info@bigbelly.com    +1-781-444-6002

Bi
gb

el
ly

 S
ta

tio
n 

O
pt

io
ns

 &
 A

cc
es

so
rie

s

Custom Station Wraps

Rear / street-facing 
(Optional rear door details on next page)

1120mm
44.1”

579mm
22.8”

1120mm
44.1”

579mm
22.8”

Side of Bigbelly 5 or Smartbelly 5

1059mm
41.7”

576mm
22.7”

109mm
4.3”

140mm
5.5”

572mm
22.5”

682mm
26.8”

Front / side-walk facing

1115mm
43.9”

803mm
31.6”

572mm
22.5”

Station Wrap Dimensions

Leverage the Bigbelly station hardware as an eye-catching messaging platform. Drive attention to your 
desired branding impressions and reach your target audience in a concentrated and visible way. 

 � Any configuration of Bigbelly and Smartbelly kiosks can be wrapped on all sides.
 � Customizable station wraps are available for any combination of station types. 
 � Promote your brand, public service announcements, sponsorships, advertising, and more. 
 � The wraps are full-color durable vinyl material and handle any type of weather while resisting fading.
 � Bigbelly’s design consultants are available to help you with your design or you can provide your own. 
 � Anti-graffiti wrap options also available for commonly vandalized areas.
 � Factory installed prior to deployment.

BB HW CONFIG-WRAPS-1501



0 2400

Feet

1
2

3

4

8

910
11

12

7

65

DA
LL

AS
PK

W
Y

SPRING VALLEY RD

BELT LINE RD

WESTGROVE DR

ADD ISON
RD

BELT LINE RD

MI
DW

AY
RD

MA
RS

H 
LN

DA
LL

AS
 P

KW
Y

Potential
Location Map

Big Belly

Town of Addison
GIS

® KE
Y T

O 
FE

AT
UR

ES Potential Big Belly
Locations

Labeled with map
book page number

Parks

Addison Town Limits























TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. 

A  RESOLUTION OF THE CITY  COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR, AND THE
RECEIPT  OF,  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  FUNDS  IN  AN  AMOUNT  NOT  TO
EXCEED $130,000 FOR A RECYCLING STATION PROGRAM THROUGH THE
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS; DESIGNATING
THE  CITY  MANAGER  OR  HIS  AUTHORIZED  DESIGNEE  AS  THE
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON FOR THE PURPOSE OF
GIVING REQUIRED ASSURANCES AND ACTING IN CONNECTION WITH
SAID  APPLICATION  AND  PROVIDING  REQUIRED  INFORMATION  AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS,  the City Council has been presented an application for the North Central
Texas  Council  of Governments  (NCTCOG), providing terms and conditions  for a Recycling
Station  Program  consisting  of   the  purchase  and  installation  of  twelve  Big  Belly  solar-
compacting recycle stations to be placed in eight of Addison’s parks; and

WHEREAS, the City Council appoints the City Manager or his authorized designee as
the grantee’s authorized official, given the power to apply for, accept, reject, alter, or terminate
the grant on behalf of the application agency; and

WHEREAS, the City Council supports the Recycling Station Program and if the Town is
awarded the grant, the Town will provide the up-front funds, which will be fully reimbursed by
the grant.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1. The  submission  of  the  grant  application  is  hereby  approved  for  local
government funds in an amount not the exceed $130,000.00 for a Recycling Station Program. If
awarded, the receipt of the grant funds by the Town of Addison is also approved and the Town
will comply with all project requirements.

Section 2. The  City  Manager,  or  his  authorized  designee,  is  appointed  as  the
authorized official to act on behalf of the Town of Addison with regard to this grant.

Section 3. This Resolution shall be effective from and after its date of passage 



DULY PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

                                                                                  
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

                                                                    
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

____________________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



   
AI-1404     Item #   15.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into An Agreement With Harris Corporation For Maintenance On All Town
Owned Portable Mobile And Control Station Radio Equipment  For A Five
Year Agreement. 

BACKGROUND:
Prior to the Town entering into an inter-local agreement for a joint public safety radio
system with the cities of Farmers Branch, Carrollton and Coppell, we contracted with the
City of Carrollton for public safety radio services. Part of that agreement was for their
sub-contractor to provide maintenance and repair of all portable, mobile and control
station equipment on an annual basis. These costs totaled $65,898.00 per year. 
These costs were included in the budget accordingly.

With the approval and purchase of the new Harris P25 Public Radio System, the Town of
Addison is now an equal partner and elected to have the Harris corporation provide the
same maintenance and repair services and a substantial cost savings over the previous
contract.

During the Term of this Terminal Maintenance Agreement (TMA), Harris agrees to repair
and maintain our mobile, portable and control station radio equipment for all Town
owned radio terminals. Costs will increase incrementally during the five year period of
the TMA due to the expiration of warranties for the varied types of equipment purchased.

$18,904.08 (year one).
$19,347.60 (year two)
$27,878.04 (year three)
$39,808.08 (year four)
$40,867.44 (year five)

$146,805.24 FIVE YEAR TOTAL

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution



Harris Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,
TEXAS  APPROVING  A  TERMINAL  MAINTENANCE  AGREEMENT
BETWEEN TOWN OF ADDISON AND HARRIS CORPORATION FOR
REPAIR  AND  MAINTENANCE  OF  MOBILE,  PORTABLE  AND
CONTROL STATION RADIO EQUIPMENT,  AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE  AGREEMENT,  AND  PROVIDING  AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Terminal Maintenance Agreement between the Town of Addison and Harris
Corporation for repair and maintenance of mobile, portable and control station radio equipment, a copy of
which is  attached to this Resolution as  Exhibit  A, is  hereby approved.  The City Manager is  hereby
authorized to execute the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 10th 
day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

[Type here]



EXHIBIT A

Terminal Maintenance Agreement
for

TOWN OF ADDISON

EXHIBIT A- Page 2



EXHIBIT A

CONTENTS

Figure 1.

TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

THIS TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (hereinafter “TMA”) is entered
into  as  of  the  Effective  Date,  by  and  between  Harris  Corporation,  a  Delaware
Corporation, through its RF Communications Division, located at 221 Jefferson Ridge
Parkway, Lynchburg, Virginia 24501, USA, (“Seller”), and the Town of Addison located
at 4799 Airport Parkway, Addison, Texas 75001 (hereinafter “Customer”) (each being a
“Party” and collectively “the Parties”).  Commencement of this Agreement shall occur
upon  Final  Acceptance  as  defined  in  the  System  Purchase  Agreement
(“Commencement Date”). 
Figure 2.
Figure 3. 1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

During the Term of this TMA, Seller agrees to repair and maintain Customer’s
mobile, portable and control station radio equipment (“Terminals” or “Terminal
Equipment”)  included  in  Addendum  II –  Equipment  List  in  accordance  with
Section 2 and Addendum IV, Warranty/Maintenance Support Statement of Work.
For  purposes of  this  TMA,  Terminal  Equipment  includes,  but  is  not  limited  to,
mobiles, portables, control stations, and their associated software.

  
2. CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Seller  shall  supply  all  supervision,  labor,  service  facilities,  repair  parts,  test
equipment, and supplies necessary to meet the service requirements stated in
this TMA.

EXHIBIT A- Page 3



EXHIBIT A

2.1 Service Facilities

Seller’s  Regional  Service  Center  in  Irving,  Texas  (“Facility”)  is  a  full
service  maintenance  facility  available  and  staffed  with  factory  trained
service technicians.  The Facility’s  staffing level  shall  be maintained to
sufficiently meet the service requirements stated in this TMA throughout
the Term of this TMA.

2.2 Right to Subcontract

Seller may subcontract service work to Seller’s authorized service centers.
Should any subcontractor fail to perform or, in the reasonable opinion of
Customer,  such  subcontractor’s  work  otherwise  proves  unsatisfactory,
Seller will arrange for continuing maintenance of the Terminal Equipment
by qualified technicians for the duration of this TMA.  

Customer  reserves  the  right  to  reject  work  performed  by  Seller’s
subcontractors when service work is not performed in accordance with the
service requirements set forth in this TMA.  Subcontractors shall comply
with all Federal, State, and local laws.

2.3 Terminal Spares 

2.3.1 For  purposes  of  this  TMA,  the  phrases  “Terminal  Spares”  and
“Terminal  Spares Inventory”  means the collective group of items
that have been identified by Seller to Customer that are needed to
complete repairs on a malfunctioning or broken unit which, if not
readily  available,  may result  in  leaving  a mobile  and/or  portable
radio user without a working radio unit.  The Parties acknowledge
that ready availability of Terminal Spares will  facilitate repairs by
Seller in the shortest possible time frame.

2.3.2 Customer  shall  pay  for  the  initial  purchase  of  Terminal  Spares
Inventory.   Seller  shall  thereafter  pay  the  cost  to  repair  and/or
replace any Terminal Spares used for repairing or maintaining the
Terminal  Equipment.   Seller  is  responsible  for the cost  to repair
and/or  replace  all  parts  utilized  maintaining  the  Terminal
Equipment.  

2.3.3 Customer shall be responsible for the care, custody, and control of
the Terminal Spares Inventory; provided, however, a portion of the
Terminal Spares Inventory shall be assigned by Customer to Seller
from time to time for purposes of conducting troubleshooting and
repairs of units in Seller’s service center.

2.3.4 Seller shall update software included in the Terminal Spares at the
same  time  as  software  updates  are  applied  to  the  Terminal

EXHIBIT A- Page 4



EXHIBIT A

Equipment in accordance with the applicable subsection of Section
2.6.

2.3.5 Seller will  support provisioning (i.e. stocking of replacement parts
and  providing  maintenance  and  repair  services)  of  Terminal
Equipment for a period of five (5) years after final production of the
respective model of Terminal Equipment for which production has
terminated. Terminal Equipment manufactured by third parties will
be  supported  in  accordance  with  the  individual  manufacturer’s
provisioning  policy.  Seller  will  utilize  commercially  reasonable
efforts to assure third party spare parts and equipment availability
to support its maintenance obligations under this TMA.  Seller shall
not be liable to Customer for third party spare parts and equipment
obsolescence  or  unavailability  under  this  TMA  beyond
commercially reasonable efforts.

2.3.6 Upon  termination  of  this  TMA,  regardless  of  the  reason  for
termination,   all  Terminal  Spares  that  are  in  the  possession  of
Seller  at  the time of  termination shall  be delivered to  Customer.
Upon  delivery  by  Customer  of  a  notice  of  termination  to  Seller,
Seller shall cease ordering, and cancel such orders which can be
cancelled for, any replacement parts to be placed in the Terminal
Spares inventory except as authorized by Customer or as needed
to  complete  any  repairs  or  maintenance  of  Terminal  Equipment
which are to be completed prior to the date of termination or as
otherwise authorized by Customer.

2.4 Working Hours

Working  Hours  are  defined  as  8:00  a.m.  to  5:00  p.m.  Central  Time,
Monday through Friday.  For the purposes of this TMA, the following shall
be considered holidays:

 New Year’s Day (January 1)
 Memorial Day (Last Monday of May)
 Independence Day (July 4)
 Labor Day (First Monday of September)
 Thanksgiving Day (Last Thursday of November)
 Christmas Day (December 25)

Work performed outside of Working Hours at Customer’s written request
is  defined  as  “emergency  service”  and  will  be  performed  at  Demand
Service Rates.

2.5 Demand Services

2.5.1 Demand Services Defined.

EXHIBIT A- Page 5



EXHIBIT A

“Demand Services” shall mean:

(i) A service request for the repair or maintenance of Terminal
Equipment that is not described elsewhere in this TMA;

(ii) The  installation,  removal,  or  reinstallation  of  Terminal
Equipment not associated with repair/maintenance efforts as
defined in this TMA;

(iii) Service work performed on Terminal Equipment necessary
because of intentional or negligent actions taken by a person
not  under  the control  of  Seller  resulting in damage to  the
Terminal Equipment.

2.5.2 Minimum Demand Services Charge

Charges for performance of Demand Services performed pursuant
to  Section  2.5.1(ii)  shall  be  at  the  rates  listed  in  Addendum  I,
Terminal Maintenance Rates (“Addendum I”), attached to this TMA.
Charges  for  Demand  Services  performed  pursuant  to  Section
2.5.1(iii) shall be at the hourly rate for Demand Services set forth in
Section D of Addendum I, plus the cost of any required parts.  Work
not  otherwise  expressly  covered  by  this  TMA  or  defined  as  a
Demand  Service  will  be  performed  at  Seller’s  then  current  rate
charged  to  other  customers  for  such  service  subject  to  the
limitations set forth in Addendum I.  Seller will charge a minimum of
½ hour (0.5 hour) for any Demand Services action requiring less
than  30  (thirty)  minutes.  Additional  time  is  charged  in  ½  hour
increments.  

2.5.3 Start Time for Demand Services Charge

Seller starts charging Demand Services travel time based on the
lesser of a) the time to travel to Customer’s location if traveling from
Seller’s Facility  or b)  the time to  travel  to Customer’s  location if
traveling from the technician’s previous work location.  Travel time
after the end of a Demand Services call will be the lesser of a) the
time to travel from Customer’s location to Seller’s Facility or b) the
time to travel from the Customer’s location to the next Customer
location.  If Seller’s technician leaves the Demand Services call and
is routed to a location other than Customer’s, then no return travel
time is charged to Customer.

2.5.4 Charges  for  Travel  Time  and  Mileage  on  Demand  Services
Work

(i) Seller  shall  not  charge  any  mileage  fees  for  Demand
Services work.

EXHIBIT A- Page 6



EXHIBIT A

(ii) Seller may charge travel time for technicians called out to
perform  Demand  Services  at  the  hourly  rate  set  forth  in
Section D of Addendum I.  

2.5.5 Prior Customer Approval Required for Demand Services Work

Customer  has  the  right  to  request  a  quote  for  any  requested
Demand Services.  Seller shall provide such quotes on a firm/fixed
price basis, if possible.  In cases where a firm fixed price quote is
not  possible,  Seller  shall  provide the best  possible estimation of
charges based on the work scope requested and as understood,
with  the  understanding  that  Seller  may  revise  such  estimate  as
needed during the progress of the work.  Customer shall be under
no  obligation  to  pay  for  Demand  Services  unless  authorized  in
writing  by  Customer  pursuant  to  either  a)  a  Purchase  Order
received by Seller for the amount quoted by Seller, or b) a written
authorization  to  proceed  received  by  Seller  based  on  a  quote
received from Seller; the written authorization to be provided either
by e-mail, facsimile, or hand delivery to Seller’s Shop Manager or
via USPS mail delivery.  

2.5.6 Customer Appeal of Charges or Rejection of Work performed
as Demand Services by Seller

Should Customer have questions about the labor or parts charges
for a Demand Services work effort, Customer should notify Seller’s
Shop Manager in writing via e-mail as to their contest or appeal of
Demand  Services  charges  incurred.  Seller  will  review  Demand
Services  charges  for  labor  and  parts  with  Customer  to  reach  a
mutual agreement.  Seller’s Shop Manager may make adjustment
to Demand Services invoices if charges are substantiated by Seller
to Customer.

2.5.7 Repair of Certain Damaged Terminal Equipment

Customer shall pay both the hourly rate for Demand Services as
well  as  the  cost  of  replacement  parts  for  Demand  Services
performed pursuant to Section 2.5.1(iii). 

2.6 Terminal Maintenance Responsibilities

2.6.1 Warranty Period Repair

During the Term of this TMA, Seller will provide corrective repairs to
Seller  manufactured  Terminal  Equipment  at  the  rates  listed  in
Addendum I, which shall include the labor and parts to complete
bench level repairs of the Terminal Equipment at Seller’s Facility.

EXHIBIT A- Page 7



EXHIBIT A

During  the  Warranty  Period  there  is  no  charge  for  corrective
repairs.

2.6.1.1 Customer  may  request  that  Seller  add  equipment  from
other  manufacturers.   Seller  will  advise  Customer  if  the
other manufacturers’ equipment can be added to this TMA,
and,  if  acceptable,  Seller  will  provide  a  quoted  price  to
include that equipment in this TMA.    

2.6.2 Warranty Period Maintenance

During  the  Warranty  Period,  Seller  shall  perform  the  following
additional maintenance services for Customer:

2.6.2.1 On-site  First  Echelon  troubleshooting  for  fixed  price  per
unit/per month as indicated for mobile radios in Addendum
I.

2.6.2.2 Annual Preventive Maintenance service for fixed price per
unit/per month as indicated in  Addendum I.  This optional
service  also  includes  installation  of  updates  to  terminal
radio software to the latest released version. This optional
service  also  includes  a  one-time  per  year  update  to  the
radio programming personality.  See details in Section 2.6.4
below.

2.6.3 Harris  Local  Bench  Repair  For  Portables  –  After  Warranty
Period Ends

Following  the  end  of  the  Warranty  Period,  Seller  will  provide
corrective Local Bench Repairs at Seller’s Facility for Customer’s
portable  terminals.   Customer  will  be  responsible  for  conducting
First Echelon troubleshooting to isolate and correct users portable
radio operation issues.  Customer will deliver the defective items to
Seller’s  Facility  for  bench repairs.   Seller  shall  also  perform the
following  additional  services  under  this  Section  2.6.3  relating  to
Customer’s portable radio units:

2.6.3.1 Pickup & Delivery service during the Term of this TMA
for fixed price per unit / per month as indicated in Addendum
I.  

2.6.3.2 Annual Preventive Maintenance service for fixed price
per  unit  /  per  month  as  indicated  in  Addendum  I.   This
service, also includes, as detailed in Section 2.6.6, below, (i)
installation of updates to terminal radio software to the latest
released version and (ii) a one-time per year update to the
radio programming personality.

EXHIBIT A- Page 8



EXHIBIT A

2.6.4 Harris First Echelon Repair for Mobiles– After Warranty End

Following the end of the Warranty Period, Seller will perform First
Echelon Troubleshooting relating to Customer’s mobile radio units,
which is defined as the initial service touch of Customer’s mobile
mounted radio equipment, whereby Seller’s personnel will conduct
the initial troubleshooting effort to isolate the defective items.  This
troubleshooting will occur at either Seller’s Facility or at Customer’s
location.   Seller  will  troubleshoot  the  problem  unit,  identify  the
defective part, replace the defective component(s) with spares from
Customer’s Terminal  Spares Inventory,  and return the operator’s
unit  to  full  functionality.   Seller  is  responsible  for  delivery of  the
defective  items to  Seller’s  Facility  for  bench troubleshooting and
repair.   Repaired  units  will  be  returned  by Seller  to  Customer’s
Terminal Spares Inventory.  

Seller  shall  also perform Annual  Preventive  Maintenance service
for the fixed price per unit/per month set forth in Addendum I, This
service includes, as detailed in Section 2.6.6, below, (i)  installation
of updates to terminal radio software to the latest released version
and  (ii)  a  one-time  per  year  update  to  the  radio  programming
personality and updates to equipment inventory.

2.6.5 Seller  shall  repair,  maintain  and  service  all  Terminal  Equipment
listed in Addendum II to this TMA.

2.6.6 Seller  shall  perform one  preventive  maintenance  inspection  and
test  annually  per  each  Terminal  Equipment  unit.  Preventive
maintenance will  be as recommended by the original  equipment
manufacturer (“OEM”) and required by applicable FCC regulations.
As  a  minimum,  such  inspections  and  tests  will  be  performed
annually for equipment listed in Addendum II.  The performance of
preventive  maintenance  shall  also  be  performed  substantially  in
accordance  with  the  detailed  preventive  maintenance  plan  in
Addendum IV Section 2 – Preventive Maintenance Statement of
Work.

2.6.6.1 Software Installation: At the time of the preventive
maintenance check of each unit, Seller shall also install the
most  current  tested,  approved  and  released  version  of
terminal  software  applicable  to  Customer’s  system.
Installation  of  new  software  at  any  time  other  than  the
preventive  maintenance  check  shall  be  done  as  Demand
Services.

EXHIBIT A- Page 9



EXHIBIT A

2.6.6.2 Personality  Programming:  At  time  of  preventive
maintenance  check,  Seller  shall  install  a  modified  or
replacement  programming  personality  into  each  radio  if
requested by Customer.  Programming of new personalities
at  any time other  than the  preventive  maintenance check
shall be done as Demand Services.

2.7 Service Records

Service Records relating to the repair and maintenance of each Terminal
Equipment shall be made and retained by Seller throughout the term of
this TMA.  The Service Records will include, as a minimum, an updated
preventive  maintenance  schedule,  completed  actions  on  each  unit,
identified issues with units requiring repair, time taken for completion of
the work, and a description of the resolution of discovered issues.  Copies
of Service Records shall be made available to Customer not later than ten
(10) business days after receipt of a written request by Seller; provided,
however, the results of preventive maintenance tests and inspections shall
be provided, to Customer not later than thirty (30) days of completion of
such tests or inspections without  the necessity of  Customer requesting
such records.

2.8 General

All services provided under this TMA are only applicable to the Terminal
Equipment listed in Addendum II to this TMA.

2.9 Addition of Terminal Equipment 

Customer  may  increase  or  decrease  the  number  of  units  of  Terminal
Equipment shown on Addendum II during the Term of this TMA.  Seller’s
service on new units of Terminal Equipment added to this TMA shall be
treated as warranty  service  until  the  warranty  expires  on such unit,  at
which time the Seller will  provide service for the unit depending on the
type of unit it is (i.e. mobile or portable).

EXHIBIT A- Page
10



EXHIBIT A

2.10 Special Conditions

Any and all special service conditions relating to Seller’s performance of
services  pursuant  to  this  TMA  are  set  forth  in  Addendum III “Special
Conditions” attached to this TMA and incorporated herein by reference.

Figure 4. 3. CUSTOMER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

3.1 Payment Due Dates

For the period beginning on the Commencement Date and ending the last
day of the first Contract Year,  Customer shall  pay to Seller an amount
equal to (i) the Annual Maintenance Fee set forth in Table A of Addendum
I to this TMA plus (ii) the Annual Maintenance Fee for the first Contract
Year  divided by 365 then multiplied by the  number of  days  within  the
period beginning on the first day of the Initial Term and ending on the day
before the first day of the first Contract Year, which amount shall be paid
not  later  than  ten  (10)  business  days  after  the  Commencement  Date.
Customer  agrees  to  pay  the  Annual  Maintenance  Fee  as  set  forth  in
Addendum I for the second and each subsequent Contract Year not later
than the  first  day of  the  respective  Contract  Year.   Fees  for  Demand
Services are invoiced monthly as set forth in Addendum I to this TMA and
are  payable  not  later  than  thirty  (30)  days  after  Customer’s  receipt  of
Seller’s invoice.

3.2 Adjustment in Rates

3.2.1 Commencing with  the first Renewal Term and for each Renewal
Term thereafter, Seller may revise the rates set forth in Addendum I
if  Seller  delivers  to  Customer  written  notice  setting  forth  the
amounts of the revised rates not later than ninety (90) days prior to
(i) the last day of the Initial Term(with respect to rates for the first
Renewal Term) or (ii) the last day of the then current Renewal Term
(with respect to rates for the second and later Renewal Term)(“the
Rate Notice”).  Rates which have been revised in accordance with
this Section 3.2 shall remain in effect for the entire Renewal Term
without further adjustment.  Seller shall not be authorized to adjust
the rates in  Addendum I, and Customer shall not be obligated to
pay any adjusted rates,  if  Seller  fails  to  timely  deliver  the  Rate
Notice.

3.2.2 In the event of an increase or decrease in the number of units of
Terminal  Equipment  for  which  services  are  provided  under  this
TMA during the course of a Contract Year,  the rates charged to
Customer shall be adjusted as follows:

EXHIBIT A- Page
11



EXHIBIT A

3.2.2.1 With  respect  to  the  Contract  Year  a  unit  which  is
under warranty is added, Customer will pay an amount equal
to the monthly cost per unit for warranty service multiplied by
the number of months remaining in the then current Contract
Year;

3.2.2.2 With  respect  to  the  Contract  Year  in  which  the
warranty expires on the unit,  the Annual Maintenance Fee
with shall be increased by an amount equal to (i) the monthly
cost  per  unit  for  warranty  service  related  to  said  unit
multiplied by the number of months said unit will  be under
warranty for that Contract Year plus (ii) the monthly cost per
unit for post-warranty service related to said unit multiplied
by  the  number  of  months  remaining  in  the  then  current
Contract Year during which the unit is not under warranty;
and

3.2.2.3 With  respect  to  the  deletion  of  units  of  Terminal
Equipment  from  this  Agreement  during  a  Contract  Year,
Seller shall provide a credit against the amount of the Annual
Maintenance  Fee  due  for  the  next  Contract  Year  in  an
amount equal to (i) the number of units deleted multiplied by
(ii) the applicable monthly fee related to that unit multiplied
by (iii) the number of months remaining in the Contract Year
after the unit was removed from service under this TMA.

3.2.3 A unit of Terminal Equipment shall be deemed added to this TMA
upon the first day of the calendar month following Seller’s receipt of
written notice from Customer of the request to add the unit to this
TMA.  A unit of Terminal Equipment shall not be deemed removed
from the scope of this TMA until the first day of the calendar month
following Customer’s delivery of written notice to Seller removing
such unit and identifying the unit by model and serial number.

3.2.4 If  the addition and deletion of  the Terminal  Equipment from this
TMA in the last Contract Year of the Term of this TMA results in a
credit being due Customer which would have been applied to the
Annual  Maintenance  Fee  for  the  next  Renewal  Term  but  for
termination of this TMA, Seller agrees to pay the amount of such
credit to Customer not later than thirty (30) days after termination of
this TMA.  This Section 3.2.4 shall survive the termination of this
TMA.

3.3 Limitation on Rate Adjustments

Increases in the rates set forth in Addendum I authorized by Section 3.2,
above, for each the Renewal Term shall  be limited to the lesser of (a)

EXHIBIT A- Page
12



EXHIBIT A

three percent (3%) of the rates charged during the last Contract Year of
the Initial Term or the immediately prior Renewal Term, as applicable, and
(b) the percentage difference between (i) the Consumer Price Index –All
Items  for  Dallas/Fort  Worth  (“CPI-U  –  DFW”)  published  by  the  U.S.
Department of Labor – Bureau of Labor Statistics for the month which is
published not later than 120 days prior to the end of the Initial Term or the
then  current  Renewal  Term,  as  applicable,  and  (ii)  the  CPI-U  –  DFW
published for the same month for the calendar year prior to the CPI-U –
DFW described in (i).   Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary,
Seller  shall  not  charge  Customer  rates  for  parts  sold  and  services
performed pursuant to this TMA greater than the rates that Seller charges
for like quantities and like services to Seller’s other customers who are
members of the North Central  Texas Council  of  Governments. Nothing
herein shall require Seller to increase the rates herein for the full amount
of increase to which Seller may be entitled.

3.4 Late Payments 

Except as set forth in Section 3.2, above, payments for services provided
pursuant to this TMA are due within thirty (30) days of receipt of Seller’s
invoice.  All  payments not made by Customer on or before the thirtieth
(30th)  day after  the payment  is  due under  this  TMA shall  bear  interest
commencing on the 31st day at the lesser of (i) one and one-half percent
(1.5%) per month or (ii) the maximum rate allowed by law.

3.5 Non-Appropriation

Failure of Customer to appropriate sufficient funds for any Contract Year
to pay Customer’s obligations hereunder shall result in termination of this
TMA at the end of the then current Contract Year.  Customer shall provide
written notice to Seller of such non-appropriation as soon as reasonably
possible. Customer shall pay Seller for all goods and services performed
by Seller that are not in dispute prior to the date of termination of this TMA
under  this  Section  3.5.   Customer  shall  pay  Seller  for  any  disputed
amounts, if  applicable, after such dispute is mutually resolved, and this
Section 3.5 shall survive the termination of this TMA for such purpose.
Seller  agrees  that  in  the  event  of  termination  of  this  TMA  under  this
Section 3.5, Seller will use its commercially reasonable efforts to cancel all
pending agreements  and orders with  third  parties and take such other
reasonable actions to reduce the amount of Customer’s remaining costs
owed under this TMA as of the date of the notice of termination. Except for
Customer’s obligation to pay for goods and services provided by Seller to
Customer pursuant to this TMA on or before the date of termination of the
TMA, Customer shall have no further obligation to Seller pursuant to this
TMA following termination of this TMA pursuant to this Section 3.5.  

EXHIBIT A- Page
13



EXHIBIT A

Figure 5. 4. WARRANTY

4.1 Seller warrants that all services performed under this TMA will be done in
an efficient and workmanlike manner and that upon completion of such
services  that  the  Terminal  Equipment  on  which  such  services  were
performed, if originally manufactured by Seller, will operate in accordance
with the original manufacturers specifications subject to such modifications
and/or enhancements in such operation by the subsequent installation of
software upgrades and versions into the Terminal  Equipment,  in which
case  the  Terminal  Equipment  shall  function  as  set  forth  in  Seller’s
technical release relating to such later software upgrades and versions.
Under  no  circumstances  will  Seller’s  liability  to  Customer  exceed  the
amounts paid by Customer under this TMA for the applicable service that
causes Customer’s claim.  IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE TO
CUSTOMER  FOR  ANY  SPECIAL,  CONSEQUENTIAL,  INCIDENTAL,
INDIRECT  OR  EXEMPLARY  DAMAGES  INCLUDING,  BUT  NOT
LIMITED  TO,  DAMAGES  RELATED  TO  LOSS  OF  PROFIT  OR
REVENUES,  LOSS  OF  USE  OF  THE  EQUIPMENT  OR  ANY
ASSOCIATED  EQUIPMENT,  COST  OF  CAPITAL,  COST  OF
SUBSTITUTE  GOODS,  FACILITIES,  SERVICES  OR  REPLACEMENT
POWER, DOWNTIME COSTS OR CLAIMS OF CUSTOMER’S CLIENTS,
IF ANY, FOR SUCH DAMAGES.  The limitation of liability for damages in
this Section 4.1 does not extend or include damages to or destruction of
any Terminal Equipment delivered to Seller for service or otherwise placed
in  the  possession  of  Seller  or  Seller’s  employees,  agents  or
subcontractors for  purpose of obtaining services pursuant  to this  TMA,
attributable  in  whole  or  in  part  to  the  intentional  or  negligent  acts  or
omissions  of  Seller  or  one  or  more  of  its  employees,  agents,  or
subcontractors. 

4.2 THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN SECTION 4.1 ABOVE IS SELLER’S
SOLE WARRANTY UNDER THIS TMA FOR THE SERVICES PROVIDED
PURSUANT TO THIS TMA AND IS IN LIEU OF ANY AND ALL OTHER
WARRANTIES  WHETHER  WRITTEN  OR  ORAL,  EXPRESSED  OR
IMPLIED,  STATUTORY  OR  OTHERWISE  INCLUDING,  BUT  NOT
LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS
FOR  A  PARTICULAR  PURPOSE  WITH  RESPECT  TO  SUCH
SERVICES.

4.3 Patents, Trademarks, Information

4.3.1 Nothing in this TMA shall be construed as:

4.3.1.1 A warranty or representation by Seller that any advice
provided under this TMA is or will be free from infringement
of patents or copyrights of third parties; provided, however,
Seller and its employees and/or subcontractors shall at no

EXHIBIT A- Page
14



EXHIBIT A

time provide any advice to Customer or perform any service
on the Terminal Equipment which Seller and its employees
and/or subcontractors know or reasonably suspect infringes
on  patents  or  copyrights  of  third  parties  against  Seller,
Customer, or both; or

4.3.1.2 Conferring a right to Customer to use in advertising,
publicity or otherwise any trademark or trade name of Seller;
or

4.3.1.3 Granting  to  Customer  by  implication,  estoppel,  or
otherwise any licenses or rights under patents of Seller.

4.3.2 Seller assumes no responsibilities whatsoever with respect to the
use by Customer or any third party of any information obtained by
Customer or third party under this TMA with respect to any use,
sale  or  other  disposition  by  Customer  or  its  clients  or  other
transferees of any products incorporating or made by use of the
information obtained under this TMA.

4.4 General

4.4.1 Customer understands and acknowledges that radio systems are subject
to degradation of service from natural phenomena such as so-called “skip”
interference, motor ignition and other electrical  noise, interference from
other users assigned by the FCC to the same or adjacent frequencies,
and  other  causes  which  are  beyond  the  reasonable  control  of  Seller.
Customer  agrees  Seller  cannot  be  responsible  for  such  degradation,
interference or disruption of service caused by operation of other radio
systems  or  by  natural  phenomena  or  by  motor  ignition  or  other
interference over which Seller has no reasonable control.  Such foregoing
interference and noise might be minimized by the addition at Customer’s
expense  of  corrective  devices  adapted  for  particular  locations  and
installations.  Upon the written request of Customer, Seller will investigate
interference complaints (at the rates specified in Addendum I to this TMA)
and make recommendations as to the use of such devices; however, total
freedom  from  noise  and  interference  cannot  be  guaranteed.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to radio systems designed and
installed  by  Seller  for  third  parties  after  the  installation  of  Customer’s
system, Seller shall, at Seller’s expense, provide such corrective devices
and  other  adjustments  to  Customer’s  system  if  the  interference  with
Customer’s  system is  determined to  be  from such later  installed  radio
system.  Such adjustments to Customer’s system shall not result in a loss
of coverage as originally designed.

4.4.2 Seller  does  not  assume  responsibility  for  signal  strength  unless  the
deficiency  is  the  result  of  substandard  equipment  maintenance  or  any

EXHIBIT A- Page
15



EXHIBIT A

other act or omission of Seller or subcontractors or any of their respective
personnel.

4.4.3 If,  due to  the  action  of  regulatory authorities,  changes to  the Terminal
Equipment become necessary, such changes will be performed by Seller
upon request at the expense of Customer.

Figure 6. 5. TERM AND TERMINATION

5.1 Initial Term

The  services  under  this  TMA  will  be  provided  by  Seller  to  Customer
beginning on the Commencement Date and ending on the last day of the
calendar month following the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Commencement
Date (the “Initial Term”). 

5.2 Renewal Term

The Term of this TMA shall be automatically extended at the end of the
Initial  Term for  an additional  one (1) year  and on a succeeding yearly
basis thereafter (each such extension of the Term being referred to herein
as “Renewal Term”) unless either Party notifies the other Party, in writing
not less than sixty (60) days prior to the end of the Initial  Term or the
Renewal Term then in effect that the Term shall not be extended.

5.3 “Term” Defined

The phrases “Initial Term” and “Renewal Term” as used in this TMA shall
collectively be referred to herein as “Term.”

5.4 “Contract Year” Defined

For  purposes  of  this  TMA,  the  phrase  “Contract  Year”  means  (i)  with
respect to the first Contract Year, the period beginning on the first day of
the first calendar month following the Commencement Date and ending on
the day prior to the anniversary of said beginning date and (ii) with respect
to  each  subsequent  Contract  Year,  the  period  beginning  with  the
anniversary of the beginning of the first  Contract Year  and end on the
immediately  following anniversary  of  the  end date  of  the  first  Contract
Year.  By way of example, if the Commencement Date is November 13,
2015, the first day of the first Contract Year would be December 1, 2015,
the last day of the first Contract Year would be November 30, 2016, the
first day of the second Contract Year would be December 1, 2016, the last
day of the second Contract Year would be November 30, 2017, the first
day of the third Contract Year would be December 1, 2017, the last day of
the third Contract Year would be November 30, 2018, and so on.

EXHIBIT A- Page
16



EXHIBIT A

5.5 Customer Default for Non-Payment

If Customer fails to pay Seller any undisputed amounts on or before the
fortieth  (40th)  day  after  such  amount  is  due,  Seller  may  suspend  the
provision of services under this TMA not earlier than five (5) days after
providing written notice to Customer of Seller’s intent to suspend services
until such undisputed amount is paid.  If (i) any undisputed amount due
under  this  TMA  remains  unpaid  on  or  before  the  75 th day  after  such
amount is due, and (ii) Seller has delivered to Customer the above notice
relating to suspension of services, and (iii) Seller has, in fact, suspended
its services hereunder to Customer, Seller may elect to terminate this TMA
not earlier than the fifteenth (15th) day after delivery of written notice to
Customer  of  Seller’s  election  to  terminate  this  TMA  provided  that
Customer  has  not  prior  to  the  date  of  termination  paid  to  Seller  all
undisputed amounts plus accrued late payment interest.  In the event of
termination of the TMA pursuant to this Section 5.5, Customer shall be
entitled to a refund of a prorated amount of the Annual Maintenance Fee
paid for the then current Contract Year calculated in the same manner as
the refund in Section 5.6, below, which amount may be offset against any
undisputed amount plus accrued late payment interest remaining unpaid
as of the termination date.

5.6 Seller’s Default

In  the  event  of  a  material  breach  of  this  TMA  by  Seller  which  shall
continue for thirty (30) days after written notice of such material breach
(including a reasonably detailed statement of the nature of such breach)
shall have been given to Seller by Customer, Customer shall be entitled to
avail itself cumulatively of any and all remedies available at law, in equity,
or otherwise (provided such remedies are not otherwise limited under the
terms of this TMA) and either: (1) suspend performance of its payment
obligations  under  this  TMA  for  as  long  as  the  breach  continues
uncorrected; or (2) terminate this TMA by written notice to Seller if  the
breach remains uncorrected. Each of the following shall constitute material
breaches of this Agreement:

5.6.1 Violation by Seller of any State, Federal or local law, or failure by
Seller to comply with any applicable State and/or Federal service
standards,  as  expressed  by  applicable  statutes,  rules  and/or
regulations.

5.6.2 Failure  by Seller  to  carry  applicable  licenses or  certifications  as
required by law; and

5.6.3 Failure  of  Seller  to  perform the  services  described  in  this  TMA
absent an event of Force Majeure.

EXHIBIT A- Page
17



EXHIBIT A

In the event Customer terminates this TMA pursuant to this Section 5.6,
not  later  than thirty  (30)  days  after  such termination  date,  Seller  shall
refund to Customer the unearned portion of the Annual Maintenance Fee
in an amount equal to (i) the amount of the Annual Maintenance Fee paid
for  the  then  current  Contract  Year,  (ii)  divided  by  365  and  then  (iii)
multiplied by the number of days remaining in the then current Contract
Year after the termination date.  The amount of such refund shall accrue
interest beginning after the thirtieth (30th) day after the termination date at
the highest rate allowed by law if Seller fails to pay such refund by that
date.

5.7 Termination Following Force Majeure

If Seller is unable to perform the services described in this TMA following
a Force Majeure Event, or is otherwise unable to procure such services
from a third party who Seller has certified as authorized to perform work
on  the  Terminal  Equipment  without  voiding  any  warranty  made  to
Customer, and such inability continues for a period of thirty (30) days,
Customer shall have the right to terminate this TMA upon providing Seller
written notice of termination, in which case this TMA shall be immediately
terminated.  If Customer terminates this TMA pursuant to this Section 5.7,
Customer’s remedies shall be limited to a refund of the unearned portion
of the Annual Maintenance Fee in an amount equal to (i) the amount of
the Annual Maintenance Fee paid for the then current Contract Year, (ii)
divided by 365 and then (iii) multiplied by the number of days remaining in
the then current Contract Year after the termination date. The amount of
such refund shall  accrue interest  beginning after  the sixtieth  (60 th)  day
after the termination date at the highest rate allowed by law if Seller fails to
pay such refund by that date.

Figure 7. 6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

6.1 Limits on Damages

Except for Seller's liability to third parties for its willful misconduct or negligent
acts  or omissions as more particularly described in Section 7 “Indemnification
and  Hold  Harmless,”  below,  the  total  liability  of  Seller,  including  its
subcontractors or suppliers, for all claims of any kind for any loss or damage,
whether in contract, warranty, tort (including negligence or infringement), strict
liability  or  otherwise,  arising  out  of,  connected  with,  or  resulting  from  the
performance  or  non-performance  of  this  TMA or  from the  manufacture,  sale,
delivery,  installation,  technical  direction  of  installation,  resale,  repair,
replacement, licensing or use of any Hardware, Software or the furnishing of any
Service pursuant to this TMA, shall not exceed the greater of (a) the total amount
paid by Customer to Seller pursuant to this  TMA or (b) the limits  of Seller’s
insurance coverage.

EXHIBIT A- Page
18



EXHIBIT A

6.2 Special, Consequential, Etc. Damages 

IN NO EVENT, WHETHER AS A RESULT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT,
WARRANTY, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR INFRINGEMENT),
STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE, SHALL EITHER PARTY, OR ITS
SUBCONTRACTORS  OR  SUPPLIERS,  BE  LIABLE  TO  THE  OTHER
PARTY  FOR  ANY  SPECIAL,  CONSEQUENTIAL,  INCIDENTAL,
INDIRECT  OR  EXEMPLARY  DAMAGES  INCLUDING,  BUT  NOT
LIMITED TO, LOSS OF PROFITS OR REVENUES, LOSS OF USE OF
THE HARDWARE OR ANY OTHER EQUIPMENT, COST OF CAPITAL,
COST  OF  SUBSTITUTE  GOODS,  FACILITIES,  SERVICES  OR
DOWNTIME COSTS.

6.3 Third Party Damages

6.3.1 Seller  shall  not  be  liable  for  costs  incurred  for  repair  and/or
replacement  of  Terminal  Equipment  that  fails  or  becomes
inoperative due to negligence on the part of a user other than Seller
or Seller’s employees or contractors, liquid intrusion not caused by
the negligent or intentional acts or omissions by Seller or Seller’s
employee  or  contractors,  lightning  damage,  installations  or
removals  performed  by  third  parties  not  employed  or  otherwise
hired  by  Seller,  and/or  acts  of  God,  acts  of  terrorism  or  work
performed by third parties not authorized by Seller to perform work
on Seller equipment.

6.3.2 Seller shall not be liable for costs incurred for correcting, replacing
or  repairing  equipment  damaged and/or  data  corruption  induced
and/or  caused  by  third  party  personnel  not  hired  by  Seller  to
perform  such  correction,  replacement,  or  repair  or  other
equipment/systems not provided by or under the direction of Seller.

6.4 Other Agreements

The provisions of this Section 6, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, shall apply
notwithstanding any other provisions of this TMA

6.5 Survival

The provisions if this Section 6, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, shall survive the
expiration or termination of this TMA.

6.6 Force Majeure Event.

Neither  Party  shall  be  liable  for  delays  in  delivery  or  failure  to  perform due
directly or indirectly to (1) causes beyond a Party’s reasonable control, (2) Acts of
God, acts (including failure to act) of any governmental authority, wars (declared

EXHIBIT A- Page
19



EXHIBIT A

or undeclared),  riots,  revolutions,  strikes  or  other  labor  disputes,  fires,  floods,
sabotage,  nuclear  incidents,  earthquakes,  storms,  epidemics,  or  (3)  Seller's
inability to timely obtain necessary materials, items, components or services from
suppliers who are affected by the foregoing circumstances (each being a “Force
Majeure Event”).   Upon the occurrence  of a Force Majeure Event,  Seller  and
Customer (as the case may be) shall as soon as practical after the onset of the
Force Majeure Event, notify the other Party of such event and shall, at the same
time  or  at  the  earliest  practical  date  after  such  notice,  specify  the  date  such
performance shall occur or recommence.  Subject to Section 5.7 of this TMA, in
the event of such delay or failure, the time for performance shall be extended for a
reasonable time period to compensate for the time lost by the Party by reason of
the Force Majeure Event.

Figure 8. 7. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS 

7.1 Indemnification

Seller  shall  be  responsible  for  and  agrees  to  INDEMNIFY,  HOLD
HARMLESS  and  DEFEND  Customer,  its  governing  body,  boards,
commissions, agencies, officers and employees (collectively “the Indemnified
Parties”)  from and against all  liability,  losses,  damages,  harm, judgments,
proceedings, suits, liens, penalties, fines, fees (including reasonable attorneys
fees), costs or expenses which the Indemnified Parties (or any of them) may
sustain, incur or be required to pay by reason of third party claims, demands
and/or causes of action for damages resulting from personal injuries, loss of
life or damage to or destruction of tangible property, (collectively “Claims”)
resulting from, caused by, or relating to the willful misconduct or negligent
acts or omissions of Seller or of any of Seller's officers, agents, employees, or
subcontractors in performance of or otherwise in connection with this TMA
(and including all of Seller’s work and services as set forth herein).  SUCH
INDEMNITY,  HOLD  HARMLESS,  AND  DEFENSE  OBLIGATION
SHALL  AND  DOES  INCLUDE  CLAIMS  ALLEGED  OR  FOUND  TO
HAVE BEEN CAUSED  IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE OR GROSS
NEGLIGENCE OF ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTIES, OR CONDUCT BY
ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTIES THAT WOULD GIVE RISE TO STRICT
LIABILITY OF ANY KIND.  However, Seller’s liability under this clause
shall be reduced by that portion of the total amount of the Claims (excluding
defense fees and costs) equal to the Indemnified Parties’ proportionate share
of the negligence or gross negligence, or conduct that would give rise to strict
liability of any kind that caused the Claim.  Likewise, Seller’s liability for the
Indemnified Parties’ defense costs and attorneys’ fees shall  be reduced by
that portion of the defense costs and attorneys’ fees equal to the Indemnified
Parties’ proportionate share of the negligence,  or conduct that would give
rise to strict liability of any kind, that caused the loss.

Figure 9.
7.2 Notice of Claim

EXHIBIT A- Page
20



EXHIBIT A

Customer agrees to notify Seller in writing as soon as practical of any third party
claim, demand or cause of action for which any of the Indemnified Parties will
request  indemnification  from  Seller.   The  Indemnified  Party(ies)  seeking
indemnification and a defense from Seller pursuant to Section 7.1 must provide
Seller  with  the  necessary  information  and  assistance  to  defend  or  settle  such
claim, demand or cause of action. The obligations of Seller under this section and
Section  7.1,  above,  shall  survive  the  expiration  or  termination  of  this  TMA.
Notwithstanding  anything  to  the  contrary  herein,  Seller  understands,
acknowledges, and agrees that this TMA contains no obligation of Customer to
indemnify,  defend,  or  hold  harmless  Seller,  its  officers,  directors,  employees,
shareholders,  partners,  contractors,  subcontractors,  or  affiliates  under  any
circumstances arising from or related to the performance of this TMA. Nothing in
this section or Section 7.1, above, shall be deemed an admission or waiver of any
immunity from liability. Further, nothing in this TMA shall be read to grant rights
or benefits to third parties.

EXHIBIT A- Page
21



EXHIBIT A

Figure 10. 8. GENERAL PROVISIONS

8.1 Notices.

Notices  and  other  communications  between  the  Parties  shall  be
transmitted in writing by (i) United State Postal Service via certified mail,
return receipt requested, or (ii) hand delivery or (iii) nationally recognized
overnight  courier  service  (e.g.  United Parcel  Service,  Federal  Express,
DHL, or similar service) to the Parties at the addresses set forth below and
shall be deemed effective upon (1) receipt by the receiving Party, if hand
delivered or sent by nationally recognized courier service, or (2) five (5)
business days after placement in a receptacle of the United States Postal
Service, if sent by certified mail,  return receipt requested.  Either Party
may change its address by giving notice in writing thereof to the other
Party.

Seller: Customer:

Director, Field Services
Harris Corporation
221 Jefferson Ridge Parkway
Lynchburg, Virginia  24501

Paul Spencer
Town of Addison 
Police Chief
4799 Airport Parkway
Addison, TX 75001

With copy to: With copy to:

Regional Manager
Harris Corp
8105  N.  Belt  Line  Road,  Suite
170
Irving, Texas  75063-6070

Brenda N. McDonald
Messer, Rockefeller & Fort, PLLC
6351 Preston Road, Suite 350
Frisco, Texas  75034

8.2. Entire Agreement; No Third Party Beneficiaries

The entire agreement of the Parties is contained herein (inclusive of the
Exhibits  attached  hereto),  and  this  TMA  supersedes  any  and  all  oral
agreements and negotiations between the Parties relating to the subject
matter  hereof.  Except  as  stated  herein  to  the  contrary  (including  the
indemnity, hold harmless, and defense provisions included in Section 7,
above), this TMA is solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto and is not
intended to create or grant any rights,  contractual  or otherwise,  to any
third person or entity.

8.3. Amendment

The Parties expressly agree that this TMA shall not be amended in any
manner except in a writing(s) executed by authorized representatives of
the Parties.

EXHIBIT A- Page
22



EXHIBIT A

8.4 Severability

The invalidity, in whole or in part, of any Section or part of any Section of
this TMA shall not affect the validity of the remainder of such Section or
this TMA. 

8.5 Waiver

No provision of this TMA may be waived except in a writing signed by the
Party waiving enforcement.  No provision of this TMA shall be deemed to
be waived by reason of any failure to previously enforce such term. In no
event shall the making of any payment required by this TMA constitute or
be construed as a waiver by Customer of any breach of the covenants of
this TMA or a waiver of any default of Seller and the making of any such
payment by Customer while any such default or breach shall exist shall in
no way impair or prejudice the right of Customer with respect to recovery
of damages or other remedy as a result of such breach or default.

8.6 Headings; “Includes”

Section headings are inserted for convenience only and shall not be used
in any way to construe the meaning of terms used in this TMA.  As used in
this TMA, the words “includes” and “including” are terms of enlargement
and not of limitation or exclusive enumeration, and use of the terms does
not create a presumption that components not expressed are excluded.

8.7 Governing Law

The  Parties  expressly  understand  and  agree  that  in  the  event  of  any
disagreement or controversy between the Parties, the laws of the State of
Texas shall be controlling without regard to the application of any conflict
of laws statutes.  Venue for any legal proceedings shall be in a state court
in  Dallas  County,  Texas,  except  where  federal  law  places  exclusive
jurisdiction of the matter in controversy in a federal court, in which case
venue shall be in the United States District Court for the Northern District
of Texas – Dallas Division. 

8.8 Assignment; Successors and Assigns

8.8.1 Except as provided herein, this TMA shall not be assigned nor any
interest or obligation in this TMA transferred by either Party without
the  written  consent  of  the  other  Party,  which  shall  not  be
unreasonably withheld or delayed.

8.8.2 Notwithstanding Section 8.8.1, above,

EXHIBIT A- Page
23



EXHIBIT A

A. Seller may assign this TMA, without consent, (a) in whole or
in part, to an affiliate of Seller or (b) in the event of a change
of controlling ownership interest (either directly or indirectly)
in  Seller  or  in  the  event  of  merger,  recapitalization,
consolidation, other business combination or sale of all  or
substantially all of the assets of Seller.  For purposes hereof,
“affiliate” means all  persons, corporations, or other entities
which  control  Seller,  and  (ii)  all  persons,  corporations  or
other entities under the control  of  Seller.   As used in this
paragraph A, the definition of affiliate,  “control”  means the
possession, directly or indirectly,  of  the power  to direct or
cause the  direction  of  the  management  and policies  of  a
person,  corporation,  or  other  entity,  whether  through
ownership  of  voting  securities  or  partnership  interests,  by
contract, or otherwise without the consent or approval of any
other person or entity.

B. In  addition,  Seller  may  also  assign  or  transfer,  without
consent, claims for money due or to become due Seller from
Customer under this TMA to a bank, trust company or other
financial institution if and only if the instrument of assignment
contains  a  provision  substantially  to  the  effect  that  it  is
agreed that the right of the assignee in and to any moneys
due  or  to  become due  to  Seller  shall  be  subject  to  prior
claims  of  all  persons,  firms  and  corporations  for  services
rendered or  materials  supplied for the performance of  the
Work called for in this TMA.

8.8.3 Any  Party  making  an  assignment  of  all  or  any  portion  of  this
Agreement shall promptly provide the other Party written notice of
any such permitted assignment or transfer.  Regardless of whether
or not an assignment by a Party requires the consent of the other
Party, no assignment authorized pursuant to this Agreement shall
be  effective  and  enforceable  as  to  the  other  Party  unless  such
assignment is in writing, signed by the assignor and assignee(s),
and  includes  an  agreement  by  the  assignee  to  assume without
amendment all duties and obligations of the assignor as set forth in
this Agreement, and a copy of the assignment is delivered to the
Party who is not a party to the assignment.

8.9 Attachments and Addenda

All  exhibits,  attachments,  and  addenda  referenced  in  this  TMA  and
attached hereto are incorporated into this TMA as if fully set forth herein
and constitute additional terms and conditions of this TMA.

EXHIBIT A- Page
24



EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT A- Page
25



EXHIBIT A

8.10 Counterparts

This TMA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument.

8.11 Effective Date

This TMA shall be effective upon the date it bears the signatures, whether
in  the  same  original  document  or  in  counterparts,  of  the  authorized
representatives of the Parties (“the Effective Date”).

(Signatures on following page)

EXHIBIT A- Page
26



EXHIBIT A

SIGNED AND AGREED this ____ day of _________________________, 2015.

SELLER:

HARRIS CORPORATION -
RF COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION

By: ____________________________
Christopher W. Chaffee,
Senior Manager, Contracts

SIGNED AND AGREED this ___________day of _________________, 2015.

CUSTOMER:

TOWN OF ADDISON

By: ____________________________
Charles W. Daniels, 
Interim City Manager

ATTEST

_____________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

EXHIBIT A- Page
27



Figure 11. ADDENDUM I - TERMINAL MAINTENANCE RATES

A. Harris Local Bench Repair Rates
A          B                         C                      D            E                     F                   G                    H                       I                      J                       K                       L                  M         
N        O

Comments:  
Cell: C4  - PD = 15   -  FD = 15  -  PW = 35 Cell: E4  -  PD = 75  -  FD = 32
Cell: H4  -  PD = 30 Cell: I4  -  PD = 5  -  FD = 12
Cell: J4  -  ?  = 3

B. First Echelon Repair Rates
REFERENCE SECTION 2.6.2 - WARRANTY 

REFERENCE SECTION 2.6.3 - LOCAL BENCH  FOR PORTABLES

REFERENCE SECTION 2.6.4 - FIRST ECHELON FOR MOBILES

Pricing Shown is Per Unit / Per Month      
Terminal Model Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
XG-25 Portable Warranty Warranty  $    4.65  $    4.79  $    4.93 
XG-75 Portable Warranty Warranty  $    4.65  $    4.79  $    4.93 

XG-100 Portable Warranty Warranty
 Warrant

y  $    6.39  $    6.58 
      

XG-25 Mobile  $    5.04  $    5.19  $  15.41  $  15.88  $  16.35 
XG-75 Mobile  $    5.04  $    5.19  $  15.41  $  15.88  $  16.35 
XG-100 Mobile  $    5.04  $    5.19  $    5.35  $  20.36  $  20.97 
      
CS-7000 Control Station - Includes Radio  $  11.74 12.09  $  35.57  $  36.64  $  37.74 

Page 28 of 2
ADDENDUM I TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS



Annual Preventive Maint + S/W Upgrade + Personality 
Update $    4.17 $    4.30 $    4.43 $    4.56 $    4.70

Pickup / Delivery Service $    1.33 $    1.33 $    1.33 $    1.33 $    1.33

Personality Management by Harris
 $     0.67

 $
0.67  $     0.67  $     0.67  $     0.67

C. UNUSED AND RESERVED

D. DEMAND SERVICE RATES
Hourly Rate (normal Working Hours):                 $100  .00                   
Hourly Rate (Nights & Saturday):                 $150  .00                   
Hourly Rate (Sunday & Holidays):                $150  .00                   
Mobile/Portable Radio Reprogramming:   Price quoted on a per occurrence basis  .

E. OTHER SUBCONTRACTED SERVICES

Service provided by third party vendors performing Demand Services labor at the request of Customer will be provided at 
cost plus 15%.

Page 29 of 2
ADDENDUM I TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS



ADDENDUM II - EQUIPMENT LIST

A. TERMINAL EQUIPMENT:

Radio Model # Qty.
XG-25P 65 Portable Radio
XG-75P   0 Portable Radio
XG-100P           107 Portable Radio
XG-25M   0 Mobile Radio
M7300 30 Mobile Radio
XG-100M 17 Mobile Radio
CS-7000   3 Control Station with:

M7300 3 each Mobile Radio

<End of List>

TERMINAL SPARES
*Terminal Spares purchased by Customer may be designated and tracked separately
by  serial  number,  or  at  Customer  discretion  may  be  included  in  the  inventory  in
Addendum II – Equipment List – Section A – Terminal Equipment.  Terminal Spares will
be maintained per all terms and conditions stated for actively used equipment covered
in Section A inventory.   

Page 30 of 1
ADDENDUM II TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS



ADDENDUM III - SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1.0 Maintenance Exclusions
The items identified below are covered by Seller  during  the  Warranty Period
provided they have been supplied and installed by Seller.  Following the end of
the Warranty Period, the items identified below are specifically excluded from
coverage from this TMA, unless otherwise noted in  Addendum II (A) Terminal
Equipment List or as later agreed in writing.  Customer may request services on
the items identified below at the then current Demand Services Rates listed in
Addendum I – Section D.

1.1 Portable Equipment

Customer shall be responsible for repair and replacement of the following
portable radio equipment after the end of the items’ Warranty Period:

o Personal audio accessories (headset, ear piece), 
o carrying cases and devices, 
o batteries and antennas 

1.2 Mobile Equipment

Customer shall be responsible for repair and replacement of the following
mobile radio equipment after the end of the items’ Warranty Period:

o Antennas
o Power Cables
o Control Head to T/R package cables for remote mount units
o Fuses & Fuse Holders
o Audio Accessories (microphone, headset, ear piece)
o Any issues related to vehicular power systems

 Voltages out of radio specification range
 Voltage spikes

1.3 Control Stations

Customer shall be responsible for repair and replacement of the following
control  station  radio  equipment  after  the  end  of  the  items’  Warranty
Period:

o Antenna systems (antenna, feedline & PolyPhaser)
o Audio Accessories (microphone, headset, ear piece)

2.0 Additions / Deletions to Addendum II – Equipment List
Customer may add or delete equipment items to the list of maintained equipment
by notifying Seller  in writing.   As additional  items are purchased they will  be
added to this TMA at time of the annual Renewal Period and per terms of Section
2.6.1.1.   Any changes to  this TMA will  be through an Amendment document

Page 31 of 1
ADDENDUM III TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS



completed  by  Seller  and  provided  to  Customer  for  review,  approval  and
signature.   The  Amendment  document  will  provide  revised  equipment  lists,
revised pricing structure changes and any necessary changes to fully incorporate
the additional items into the TMA.

Page 32 of 1
ADDENDUM III TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS



ADDENDUM IV - WARRANTY/MAINTENANCE SUPPORT STATEMENT OF WORK

The  Addendum  IV sets  forth  Seller’s  maintenance  obligations,  exclusions,  and
additional  options  available  to  Customer  pursuant  to  this  TMA.   Descriptions  of
obligations and exclusions under the requested options and Demand Services require
Customer to purchase those options.

1.0 Local Support

Seller maintains a 10,500 square foot Regional Service Center located in Irving, Texas
(“Sellers’ Facility”).  Seller’s Facility supports Seller’s staff of service managers, project
managers, engineers and technicians, who are responsible for supporting all of Seller’s
customers within a multi-state region in the western United States of America.  Seller’s
Facility  has  a  repair  depot  for  local  repair  of  Seller’s  mobile  and  portable  radio
equipment, an equipment staging area, spare parts warehouse, drive in service bay and
office space.

2.0 Depot Maintenance

Seller’s Depot Repair and Return Facility (“R&R”) is located in Forest, Virginia and is
staffed with certified Master Technicians. A “Master Technician” means a person who
has  completed  all  Seller-required  technical  training  course  on  the  equipment  being
serviced.   Seller’s  Facility  and  the  R&R  are  ISO  9001:  2000  and  Factory  Mutual
Certified.   State-of-the-art  test  equipment and certified  Master  Technicians verify  all
repairs meet or exceed prescribed specifications.

3.0 Terminal Radio Equipment Repair Statement of Work

3.1 Maintenance Responsibilities

Seller’s Facility technicians and staff will provide warranty and maintenance actions on
all Terminal Equipment included in this TMA. Seller may subcontract some preventive
maintenance services.

3.2 Initiation of Terminal Service Request from Customer:

Customer initiates a Terminal Service Request by sending an e-mail to the Harris
Service  Center  group e-mail  box  Irving.Office@harris.com which  is  monitored
during normal Working Hours by the Harris Service Center Shop Manager and
the three Harris Service Center Field Technicians.  Customer Terminal Service
Request will contain:

A. Name of Customer initiating request
B. Customer Agency (Coppell FD, Carrollton PD, etc)
C. Customer call back phone number
D. Unit Number needing maintenance service
E. Brief Problem Description

Page 33 of 4
ADDENDUM IV TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

mailto:Irving.Office@harris.com


The e-mail will be replied to by the currently on-call Field Technician, copied to all other
Seller personnel.  Seller’s on-call Field Technician will contact the initiating Customer
contact within one (1) Working Hour.  Example: A call initiated between 8:00 AM and
4:00 PM during a Working Day will be replied to within one hour on that day.  However,
a call initiated after 4:00 PM will receive a reply the next business morning prior to 9:00
AM.  Any calls for terminal service received after hours or weekends will receive a reply
the next business morning prior to 9:00 AM.  

3.3 Maintenance Logs

Seller shall utilize its existing ticket tracking system to log all requests for service and all
service actions taken. Seller’s technicians open a ticket when any service request from
Customer is initiated.  Seller’s technicians will update that ticket as the troubleshooting
process proceeds until completion.  Data is entered into the ticket to record Customer’s
initial  service request,  call  back and on-site  arrival  times,  troubleshooting completion
times, actions taken during the troubleshooting process, parts utilized and final outcome
of the troubleshooting process.  Service reports as defined below will be extracted from
this ticket system to provide the required reports.

3.4 Service Reports

Seller shall submit the following service reports by the tenth (10th) day of each
month for the previous month’s service:

A. Monthly service activity, including model number, serial number, 
work performed, corrective action.

B. Mutually agreed metrics.  

3.5 Terminal Spares

Customer shall purchase the Terminal Spares as indicated in the recommended
spare parts list provided with the System Purchase Agreement.  Terminal radios
spare parts will  be stored at Customer’s facility.   Customer is responsible for
tracking the inventory of their Terminal radio equipment spares.  

3.6 Tech-Link Support Services

The  Tech-Link  website  offers  electronic  retrieval/exchange  of  technical
information, which allows subscribers to:

A. Search Seller technical libraries
B. Read current software release notes
C. Request technical assistance from TAC
D. Participate in User Forums
E. Technical Service Memos
F. Subscription  to  Tech-Link  is  an  included  service  with  purchase  of  the

Software FX Agreement.  

Page 34 of 4
ADDENDUM IV TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS



3.7 Terminal Equipment Service Ticket Initiation Process

To  ensure  compliance  with  service  ticket  requirements,  Seller  will  respond
utilizing the following escalation procedure:

3.7.1 Reference  services  provided  by  the  Local  Bench  Repair
service option:

A. Customer may drop off and pickup Terminal Equipment for
repair at Seller’s Facility.  

B. Seller will perform once a week pickup and delivery service
at Customer’s designated facility.  Any items for repair will be
picked-up  and  any items that  have  been  repaired  will  be
delivered to Customer for return to their spares inventory.  

C. During the equipment Warranty Period, there is no charge
for break/fix repairs.  Customer may request that Seller re-
program radios to make changes to operational features or
functions  in  the  programming  personality.   Such  re-
programming is not a warranty service and will be provided
as a Demand Service by Seller to Customer.  

3.7.2 Reference  services  provided  by  the  First  Echelon  Repair
service level:

A. Customer may drop off and pickup Terminal Equipment for
repair at Seller’s Facility. 

B. Customer  may  bring  mobile  radios  to  Seller’s  Facility  for
troubleshooting and repair by Seller’s technicians.   

C. Customer may initiate a service request to Seller for on-site
service at Customer location.  Seller will respond and be on-
site to service the vehicle or item requested not later than
three  (3)  business  days  (24  working  hours).  Please  see
Addendum  IV under  the  subsection  Maintenance
Responsibilities, Initiation of Terminal Service Request from
Customer.

D. During the equipment Warranty Period, there is no charge
for break/fix repairs.  Customer may request that Seller re-
program radios to make changes to operational features or
functions  in  the  programming  Personality.   Such  re-
programming is not a warranty service and will be provided
as a Demand Service by Seller to Customer.

4.0 Preventive Maintenance Statement of Work

Seller  shall  perform  annual  preventive  maintenance  (“PM”)  on  all  Seller  supplied
Terminal Equipment as listed in Addendum II.

Page 35 of 4
ADDENDUM IV TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS



Seller shall perform preventive maintenance inspections and tests as recommended by
the  Harris  Maintenance  Manuals,  using  the  most  current  revision  applicable  to  the
model(s)  of  equipment  being  serviced.   Documentation  of  PM services  will  include
measured  values  of  all  FCC  required  performance  criteria  and  other  parameters
measured per the specifications in the Maintenance Manuals.

Page 36 of 4
ADDENDUM IV TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Terminal Maintenance Agreement 
for 

TOWN OF ADDISON 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 
CONTENTS 

 
1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT ................................................................................................... 3 

2. CONDITIONS OF SERVICE ................................................................................................ 3 

3. CUSTOMER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS ......................................................................... 10 

4. WARRANTY ...................................................................................................................... 12 

5. TERM AND TERMINATION .............................................................................................. 14 

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY............................................................................................... 17 

7. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS................................................................... 18 

8. GENERAL PROVISIONS .................................................................................................. 20 

SIGNATURE PAGE……… ....................................................................................................... 24 
ADDENDUM I - TERMINAL MAINTENANCE RATES ................................................................ 1 

ADDENDUM II - EQUIPMENT LIST ........................................................................................... 1 

ADDENDUM III - SPECIAL CONDITIONS ................................................................................. 1 

1.0 Maintenance Exclusions ............................................................................................. 1 

2.0 Additions / Deletions to Addendum II – Equipment List ............................................... 1 

ADDENDUM IV - WARRANTY/MAINTENANCE SUPPORT STATEMENT OF WORK ............. 1 

1.0 Local Support ............................................................................................................. 1 

2.0 Depot Maintenance .................................................................................................... 1 

3.0 Terminal Radio Equipment Repair Statement of Work ................................................ 1 

 4.0  Preventive Maintenance Statement of Work .............................................................. 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (hereinafter “TMA”) is entered 
into as of the Effective Date, by and between Harris Corporation, a Delaware Corporation, 
through its RF Communications Division, located at 221 Jefferson Ridge Parkway, Lynchburg, 
Virginia 24501, USA, (“Seller”), and the Town of Addison located at 4799 Airport Parkway, 
Addison, Texas 75001 (hereinafter “Customer”) (each being a “Party” and collectively “the 
Parties”).  Commencement of this Agreement shall occur upon Final Acceptance as defined in 
the System Purchase Agreement (“Commencement Date”).  
 
1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 
 
 During the Term of this TMA, Seller agrees to repair and maintain Customer’s mobile, 

portable and control station radio equipment (“Terminals” or “Terminal Equipment”) 
included in Addendum II – Equipment List in accordance with Section 2 and Addendum 
IV, Warranty/Maintenance Support Statement of Work.  For purposes of this TMA, 
Terminal Equipment includes, but is not limited to, mobiles, portables, control stations, and 
their associated software. 

   
2. CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 
 Seller shall supply all supervision, labor, service facilities, repair parts, test equipment, 

and supplies necessary to meet the service requirements stated in this TMA. 

2.1 Service Facilities 
 

Seller’s Regional Service Center in Irving, Texas (“Facility”) is a full service 
maintenance facility available and staffed with factory trained service technicians.  
The Facility’s staffing level shall be maintained to sufficiently meet the service 
requirements stated in this TMA throughout the Term of this TMA. 

2.2 Right to Subcontract 
 

Seller may subcontract service work to Seller’s authorized service centers.  
Should any subcontractor fail to perform or, in the reasonable opinion of 
Customer, such subcontractor’s work otherwise proves unsatisfactory, Seller will 
arrange for continuing maintenance of the Terminal Equipment by qualified 
technicians for the duration of this TMA.   
 
Customer reserves the right to reject work performed by Seller’s subcontractors 
when service work is not performed in accordance with the service requirements 
set forth in this TMA.  Subcontractors shall comply with all Federal, State, and 
local laws. 
 

 

Page 3 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



2.3  Terminal Spares  
   

2.3.1 For purposes of this TMA, the phrases “Terminal Spares” and “Terminal 
Spares Inventory” means the collective group of items that have been 
identified by Seller to Customer that are needed to complete repairs on a 
malfunctioning or broken unit which, if not readily available, may result in 
leaving a mobile and/or portable radio user without a working radio unit.  
The Parties acknowledge that ready availability of Terminal Spares will 
facilitate repairs by Seller in the shortest possible time frame. 
 

2.3.2 Customer shall pay for the initial purchase of Terminal Spares Inventory.  
Seller shall thereafter pay the cost to repair and/or replace any Terminal 
Spares used for repairing or maintaining the Terminal Equipment.  Seller 
is responsible for the cost to repair and/or replace all parts utilized 
maintaining the Terminal Equipment.   

 
2.3.3 Customer shall be responsible for the care, custody, and control of the 

Terminal Spares Inventory; provided, however, a portion of the Terminal 
Spares Inventory shall be assigned by Customer to Seller from time to 
time for purposes of conducting troubleshooting and repairs of units in 
Seller’s service center. 

 
2.3.4 Seller shall update software included in the Terminal Spares at the same 

time as software updates are applied to the Terminal Equipment in 
accordance with the applicable subsection of Section 2.6. 

 
2.3.5 Seller will support provisioning (i.e. stocking of replacement parts and 

providing maintenance and repair services) of Terminal Equipment for a 
period of five (5) years after final production of the respective model of 
Terminal Equipment for which production has terminated. Terminal 
Equipment manufactured by third parties will be supported in accordance 
with the individual manufacturer’s provisioning policy. Seller will utilize 
commercially reasonable efforts to assure third party spare parts and 
equipment availability to support its maintenance obligations under this 
TMA.  Seller shall not be liable to Customer for third party spare parts and 
equipment obsolescence or unavailability under this TMA beyond 
commercially reasonable efforts. 

 
2.3.6 Upon termination of this TMA, regardless of the reason for termination,  

all Terminal Spares that are in the possession of Seller at the time of 
termination shall be delivered to Customer.  Upon delivery by Customer 
of a notice of termination to Seller, Seller shall cease ordering, and cancel 
such orders which can be cancelled for, any replacement parts to be placed 
in the Terminal Spares inventory except as authorized by Customer or as 
needed to complete any repairs or maintenance of Terminal Equipment 

Page 4 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



which are to be completed prior to the date of termination or as otherwise 
authorized by Customer. 

2.4 Working Hours 
 

Working Hours are defined as 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Central Time, Monday 
through Friday.  For the purposes of this TMA, the following shall be considered 
holidays: 
 

• New Year’s Day (January 1) 
• Memorial Day (Last Monday of May) 
• Independence Day (July 4) 
• Labor Day (First Monday of September) 
• Thanksgiving Day (Last Thursday of November) 
• Christmas Day (December 25) 

 
Work performed outside of Working Hours at Customer’s written request is 
defined as “emergency service” and will be performed at Demand Service Rates. 

2.5 Demand Services 
 

2.5.1 Demand Services Defined. 
 

“Demand Services” shall mean: 
 
(i) A service request for the repair or maintenance of Terminal 

Equipment that is not described elsewhere in this TMA; 
 
(ii) The installation, removal, or reinstallation of Terminal Equipment 

not associated with repair/maintenance efforts as defined in this 
TMA; 

 
(iii) Service work performed on Terminal Equipment necessary 

because of intentional or negligent actions taken by a person not 
under the control of Seller resulting in damage to the Terminal 
Equipment. 

 
2.5.2 Minimum Demand Services Charge 
 

Charges for performance of Demand Services performed pursuant to 
Section 2.5.1(ii) shall be at the rates listed in Addendum I, Terminal 
Maintenance Rates (“Addendum I”), attached to this TMA.  Charges for 
Demand Services performed pursuant to Section 2.5.1(iii) shall be at the 
hourly rate for Demand Services set forth in Section D of Addendum I, 
plus the cost of any required parts.  Work not otherwise expressly covered 
by this TMA or defined as a Demand Service will be performed at Seller’s 
then current rate charged to other customers for such service subject to the 

Page 5 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



limitations set forth in Addendum I.  Seller will charge a minimum of ½ 
hour (0.5 hour) for any Demand Services action requiring less than 30 
(thirty) minutes. Additional time is charged in ½ hour increments.   
 

2.5.3 Start Time for Demand Services Charge 
 

Seller starts charging Demand Services travel time based on the lesser of 
a) the time to travel to Customer’s location if traveling from Seller’s 
Facility or b) the time to travel to Customer’s location if traveling from the 
technician’s previous work location.  Travel time after the end of a 
Demand Services call will be the lesser of a) the time to travel from 
Customer’s location to Seller’s Facility or b) the time to travel from the 
Customer’s location to the next Customer location.  If Seller’s technician 
leaves the Demand Services call and is routed to a location other than 
Customer’s, then no return travel time is charged to Customer. 

 
2.5.4 Charges for Travel Time and Mileage on Demand Services Work 
  

(i) Seller shall not charge any mileage fees for Demand Services 
work. 

 
(ii) Seller may charge travel time for technicians called out to perform 

Demand Services at the hourly rate set forth in Section D of 
Addendum I.   

 
2.5.5 Prior Customer Approval Required for Demand Services Work 
  

Customer has the right to request a quote for any requested Demand 
Services.  Seller shall provide such quotes on a firm/fixed price basis, if 
possible.  In cases where a firm fixed price quote is not possible, Seller 
shall provide the best possible estimation of charges based on the work 
scope requested and as understood, with the understanding that Seller may 
revise such estimate as needed during the progress of the work.  Customer 
shall be under no obligation to pay for Demand Services unless authorized 
in writing by Customer pursuant to either a) a Purchase Order received by 
Seller for the amount quoted by Seller, or b) a written authorization to 
proceed received by Seller based on a quote received from Seller; the 
written authorization to be provided either by e-mail, facsimile, or hand 
delivery to Seller’s Shop Manager or via USPS mail delivery.   

 
2.5.6 Customer Appeal of Charges or Rejection of Work performed as 

Demand Services by Seller 
  

Should Customer have questions about the labor or parts charges for a 
Demand Services work effort, Customer should notify Seller’s Shop 
Manager in writing via e-mail as to their contest or appeal of Demand 

Page 6 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



Services charges incurred. Seller will review Demand Services charges for 
labor and parts with Customer to reach a mutual agreement.  Seller’s Shop 
Manager may make adjustment to Demand Services invoices if charges 
are substantiated by Seller to Customer. 
 

2.5.7 Repair of Certain Damaged Terminal Equipment 
 

Customer shall pay both the hourly rate for Demand Services as well as 
the cost of replacement parts for Demand Services performed pursuant to 
Section 2.5.1(iii).  

2.6 Terminal Maintenance Responsibilities 
 

2.6.1 Warranty Period Repair 
 

During the Term of this TMA, Seller will provide corrective repairs to 
Seller manufactured Terminal Equipment at the rates listed in Addendum 
I, which shall include the labor and parts to complete bench level repairs 
of the Terminal Equipment at Seller’s Facility.  During the Warranty 
Period there is no charge for corrective repairs. 
 
2.6.1.1 Customer may request that Seller add equipment from other 

manufacturers.  Seller will advise Customer if the other 
manufacturers’ equipment can be added to this TMA, and, if 
acceptable, Seller will provide a quoted price to include that 
equipment in this TMA.     

 
2.6.2 Warranty Period Maintenance 
 

During the Warranty Period, Seller shall perform the following additional 
maintenance services for Customer: 
 
2.6.2.1 On-site First Echelon troubleshooting for fixed price per unit/per 

month as indicated for mobile radios in Addendum I. 
 
2.6.2.2 Annual Preventive Maintenance service for fixed price per 

unit/per month as indicated in Addendum I.  This optional service 
also includes installation of updates to terminal radio software to 
the latest released version. This optional service also includes a 
one-time per year update to the radio programming personality.  
See details in Section 2.6.4 below. 

 
2.6.3 Harris Local Bench Repair For Portables – After Warranty Period 

Ends 
 
Following the end of the Warranty Period, Seller will provide corrective 
Local Bench Repairs at Seller’s Facility for Customer’s portable terminals.  

Page 7 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



Customer will be responsible for conducting First Echelon troubleshooting 
to isolate and correct users portable radio operation issues.  Customer will 
deliver the defective items to Seller’s Facility for bench repairs.  Seller 
shall also perform the following additional services under this Section 
2.6.3 relating to Customer’s portable radio units: 

 
2.6.3.1 Pickup & Delivery service during the Term of this TMA for fixed 

price per unit / per month as indicated in Addendum I.   
 

2.6.3.2 Annual Preventive Maintenance service for fixed price per unit / 
per month as indicated in Addendum I.  This service, also includes, 
as detailed in Section 2.6.6, below, (i) installation of updates to 
terminal radio software to the latest released version and (ii) a one-
time per year update to the radio programming personality. 
 

2.6.4 Harris First Echelon Repair for Mobiles– After Warranty End 
 
Following the end of the Warranty Period, Seller will perform First 
Echelon Troubleshooting relating to Customer’s mobile radio units, which 
is defined as the initial service touch of Customer’s mobile mounted radio 
equipment, whereby Seller’s personnel will conduct the initial 
troubleshooting effort to isolate the defective items.  This troubleshooting 
will occur at either Seller’s Facility or at Customer’s location.  Seller will 
troubleshoot the problem unit, identify the defective part, replace the 
defective component(s) with spares from Customer’s Terminal Spares 
Inventory, and return the operator’s unit to full functionality.  Seller is 
responsible for delivery of the defective items to Seller’s Facility for 
bench troubleshooting and repair.  Repaired units will be returned by 
Seller to Customer’s Terminal Spares Inventory.   
 
Seller shall also perform Annual Preventive Maintenance service for the 
fixed price per unit/per month set forth in Addendum I, This service 
includes, as detailed in Section 2.6.6, below, (i)  installation of updates to 
terminal radio software to the latest released version  and (ii) a one-time 
per year update to the radio programming personality and updates to 
equipment inventory. 

  
2.6.5 Seller shall repair, maintain and service all Terminal Equipment listed in 

Addendum II to this TMA. 
 
2.6.6 Seller shall perform one preventive maintenance inspection and test 

annually per each Terminal Equipment unit. Preventive maintenance will 
be as recommended by the original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and 
required by applicable FCC regulations. As a minimum, such inspections 
and tests will be performed annually for equipment listed in Addendum II.  
The performance of preventive maintenance shall also be performed 

Page 8 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



substantially in accordance with the detailed preventive maintenance plan 
in Addendum IV Section 2 – Preventive Maintenance Statement of Work. 

 
2.6.6.1 Software Installation: At the time of the preventive maintenance 

check of each unit, Seller shall also install the most current tested, 
approved and released version of terminal software applicable to 
Customer’s system.  Installation of new software at any time other 
than the preventive maintenance check shall be done as Demand 
Services. 
 

2.6.6.2 Personality Programming: At time of preventive maintenance 
check, Seller shall install a modified or replacement programming 
personality into each radio if requested by Customer.  
Programming of new personalities at any time other than the 
preventive maintenance check shall be done as Demand Services. 

2.7 Service Records 
 

Service Records relating to the repair and maintenance of each Terminal 
Equipment shall be made and retained by Seller throughout the term of this TMA.  
The Service Records will include, as a minimum, an updated preventive 
maintenance schedule, completed actions on each unit, identified issues with units 
requiring repair, time taken for completion of the work, and a description of the 
resolution of discovered issues.  Copies of Service Records shall be made 
available to Customer not later than ten (10) business days after receipt of a 
written request by Seller; provided, however, the results of preventive 
maintenance tests and inspections shall be provided, to Customer not later than 
thirty (30) days of completion of such tests or inspections without the necessity of 
Customer requesting such records. 

2.8 General 
 

All services provided under this TMA are only applicable to the Terminal 
Equipment listed in Addendum II to this TMA. 
 

2.9 Addition of Terminal Equipment  
 

Customer may increase or decrease the number of units of Terminal Equipment 
shown on Addendum II during the Term of this TMA.  Seller’s service on new 
units of Terminal Equipment added to this TMA shall be treated as warranty 
service until the warranty expires on such unit, at which time the Seller will 
provide service for the unit depending on the type of unit it is (i.e. mobile or 
portable). 

  

Page 9 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



2.10 Special Conditions 
 

Any and all special service conditions relating to Seller’s performance of services 
pursuant to this TMA are set forth in Addendum III “Special Conditions” attached 
to this TMA and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
3. CUSTOMER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS 
 

3.1 Payment Due Dates 
 
 For the period beginning on the Commencement Date and ending the last day of 

the first Contract Year, Customer shall pay to Seller an amount equal to (i) the 
Annual Maintenance Fee set forth in Table A of Addendum I to this TMA plus 
(ii) the Annual Maintenance Fee for the first Contract Year divided by 365 then 
multiplied by the number of days within the period beginning on the first day of 
the Initial Term and ending on the day before the first day of the first Contract 
Year, which amount shall be paid not later than ten (10) business days after the 
Commencement Date.  Customer agrees to pay the Annual Maintenance Fee as 
set forth in Addendum I for the second and each subsequent Contract Year not 
later than the first day of the respective Contract Year.  Fees for Demand Services 
are invoiced monthly as set forth in Addendum I to this TMA and are payable not 
later than thirty (30) days after Customer’s receipt of Seller’s invoice. 

 
3.2 Adjustment in Rates 
 

3.2.1 Commencing with the first Renewal Term and for each Renewal Term 
thereafter, Seller may revise the rates set forth in Addendum I if Seller 
delivers to Customer written notice setting forth the amounts of the 
revised rates not later than ninety (90) days prior to (i) the last day of the 
Initial Term(with respect to rates for the first Renewal Term) or (ii) the 
last day of the then current Renewal Term (with respect to rates for the 
second and later Renewal Term)(“the Rate Notice”).  Rates which have 
been revised in accordance with this Section 3.2 shall remain in effect for 
the entire Renewal Term without further adjustment.  Seller shall not be 
authorized to adjust the rates in Addendum I, and Customer shall not be 
obligated to pay any adjusted rates, if Seller fails to timely deliver the Rate 
Notice. 

 
3.2.2 In the event of an increase or decrease in the number of units of Terminal 

Equipment for which services are provided under this TMA during the 
course of a Contract Year, the rates charged to Customer shall be adjusted 
as follows: 

 
3.2.2.1 With respect to the Contract Year a unit which is under warranty is 

added, Customer will pay an amount equal to the monthly cost per 

Page 10 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



unit for warranty service multiplied by the number of months 
remaining in the then current Contract Year; 

 
3.2.2.2 With respect to the Contract Year in which the warranty expires on 

the unit, the Annual Maintenance Fee with shall be increased by an 
amount equal to (i) the monthly cost per unit for warranty service 
related to said unit multiplied by the number of months said unit 
will be under warranty for that Contract Year plus (ii) the monthly 
cost per unit for post-warranty service related to said unit 
multiplied by the number of months remaining in the then current 
Contract Year during which the unit is not under warranty; and 

 
3.2.2.3 With respect to the deletion of units of Terminal Equipment from 

this Agreement during a Contract Year, Seller shall provide a 
credit against the amount of the Annual Maintenance Fee due for 
the next Contract Year in an amount equal to (i) the number of 
units deleted multiplied by (ii) the applicable monthly fee related 
to that unit multiplied by (iii) the number of months remaining in 
the Contract Year after the unit was removed from service under 
this TMA. 

 
3.2.3 A unit of Terminal Equipment shall be deemed added to this TMA upon 

the first day of the calendar month following Seller’s receipt of written 
notice from Customer of the request to add the unit to this TMA.  A unit 
of Terminal Equipment shall not be deemed removed from the scope of 
this TMA until the first day of the calendar month following Customer’s 
delivery of written notice to Seller removing such unit and identifying the 
unit by model and serial number. 

 
3.2.4 If the addition and deletion of the Terminal Equipment from this TMA in 

the last Contract Year of the Term of this TMA results in a credit being 
due Customer which would have been applied to the Annual Maintenance 
Fee for the next Renewal Term but for termination of this TMA, Seller 
agrees to pay the amount of such credit to Customer not later than thirty 
(30) days after termination of this TMA.  This Section 3.2.4 shall survive 
the termination of this TMA. 

 
3.3 Limitation on Rate Adjustments 
 
 Increases in the rates set forth in Addendum I authorized by Section 3.2, above, 

for each the Renewal Term shall be limited to the lesser of (a) three percent (3%) 
of the rates charged during the last Contract Year of the Initial Term or the 
immediately prior Renewal Term, as applicable, and (b) the percentage difference 
between (i) the Consumer Price Index –All Items for Dallas/Fort Worth (“CPI-U 
– DFW”) published by the U.S. Department of Labor – Bureau of Labor Statistics 
for the month which is published not later than 120 days prior to the end of the 

Page 11 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



Initial Term or the then current Renewal Term, as applicable, and (ii) the CPI-U – 
DFW published for the same month for the calendar year prior to the CPI-U – 
DFW described in (i).  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Seller 
shall not charge Customer rates for parts sold and services performed pursuant to 
this TMA greater than the rates that Seller charges for like quantities and like 
services to Seller’s other customers who are members of the North Central Texas 
Council of Governments. Nothing herein shall require Seller to increase the rates 
herein for the full amount of increase to which Seller may be entitled. 

 
3.4 Late Payments  
 
 Except as set forth in Section 3.2, above, payments for services provided pursuant 

to this TMA are due within thirty (30) days of receipt of Seller’s invoice.  All 
payments not made by Customer on or before the thirtieth (30th) day after the 
payment is due under this TMA shall bear interest commencing on the 31st day at 
the lesser of (i) one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month or (ii) the maximum 
rate allowed by law. 

 
3.5 Non-Appropriation 
 

Failure of Customer to appropriate sufficient funds for any Contract Year to pay 
Customer’s obligations hereunder shall result in termination of this TMA at the 
end of the then current Contract Year.  Customer shall provide written notice to 
Seller of such non-appropriation as soon as reasonably possible. Customer shall 
pay Seller for all goods and services performed by Seller that are not in dispute 
prior to the date of termination of this TMA under this Section 3.5.  Customer 
shall pay Seller for any disputed amounts, if applicable, after such dispute is 
mutually resolved, and this Section 3.5 shall survive the termination of this TMA 
for such purpose.  Seller agrees that in the event of termination of this TMA under 
this Section 3.5, Seller will use its commercially reasonable efforts to cancel all 
pending agreements and orders with third parties and take such other reasonable 
actions to reduce the amount of Customer’s remaining costs owed under this 
TMA as of the date of the notice of termination. Except for Customer’s obligation 
to pay for goods and services provided by Seller to Customer pursuant to this 
TMA on or before the date of termination of the TMA, Customer shall have no 
further obligation to Seller pursuant to this TMA following termination of this 
TMA pursuant to this Section 3.5.   

 
4. WARRANTY 
 

4.1 Seller warrants that all services performed under this TMA will be done in an 
efficient and workmanlike manner and that upon completion of such services that 
the Terminal Equipment on which such services were performed, if originally 
manufactured by Seller, will operate in accordance with the original 
manufacturers specifications subject to such modifications and/or enhancements 
in such operation by the subsequent installation of software upgrades and versions 

Page 12 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



into the Terminal Equipment, in which case the Terminal Equipment shall 
function as set forth in Seller’s technical release relating to such later software 
upgrades and versions.  Under no circumstances will Seller’s liability to Customer 
exceed the amounts paid by Customer under this TMA for the applicable service 
that causes Customer’s claim.  IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE 
TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, 
INDIRECT OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED 
TO, DAMAGES RELATED TO LOSS OF PROFIT OR REVENUES, LOSS OF 
USE OF THE EQUIPMENT OR ANY ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT, COST OF 
CAPITAL, COST OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS, FACILITIES, SERVICES OR 
REPLACEMENT POWER, DOWNTIME COSTS OR CLAIMS OF 
CUSTOMER’S CLIENTS, IF ANY, FOR SUCH DAMAGES.  The limitation of 
liability for damages in this Section 4.1 does not extend or included damages to or 
destruction of any Terminal Equipment delivered to Seller for service or 
otherwise placed in the possession of Seller or Seller’s employees, agents or 
subcontractors for purpose of obtaining services pursuant to this TMA, 
attributable in whole or in part to the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of 
Seller or one or more of its employees, agents, or subcontractors.  

 
4.2 THE WARRANTY SET FORTH IN SECTION 4.1 ABOVE IS SELLER’S 

SOLE WARRANTY UNDER THIS TMA FOR THE SERVICES PROVIDED 
PURSUANT TO THIS TMA AND IS IN LIEU OF ANY AND ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES WHETHER WRITTEN OR ORAL, EXPRESSED OR 
IMPLIED, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SERVICES. 

 
4.3 Patents, Trademarks, Information 

 
4.3.1 Nothing in this TMA shall be construed as: 

 
4.3.1.1 A warranty or representation by Seller that any advice provided 

under this TMA is or will be free from infringement of patents or 
copyrights of third parties; provided, however, Seller and its 
employees and/or subcontractors shall at no time provide any 
advice to Customer or perform any service on the Terminal 
Equipment which Seller and its employees and/or subcontractors 
know or reasonably suspect infringes on patents or copyrights of 
third parties against Seller, Customer, or both; or 

 
4.3.1.2 Conferring a right to Customer to use in advertising, publicity or 

otherwise any trademark or trade name of Seller; or 
 

4.3.1.3 Granting to Customer by implication, estoppel, or otherwise any 
licenses or rights under patents of Seller. 

Page 13 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



4.3.2 Seller assumes no responsibilities whatsoever with respect to the use by 
Customer or any third party of any information obtained by Customer or 
third party under this TMA with respect to any use, sale or other 
disposition by Customer or its clients or other transferees of any products 
incorporating or made by use of the information obtained under this TMA. 

 
4.4 General 
 

4.4.1 Customer understands and acknowledges that radio systems are subject to 
degradation of service from natural phenomena such as so-called “skip” 
interference, motor ignition and other electrical noise, interference from other 
users assigned by the FCC to the same or adjacent frequencies, and other causes 
which are beyond the reasonable control of Seller.  Customer agrees Seller cannot 
be responsible for such degradation, interference or disruption of service caused 
by operation of other radio systems or by natural phenomena or by motor ignition 
or other interference over which Seller has no reasonable control.  Such foregoing 
interference and noise might be minimized by the addition at Customer’s expense 
of corrective devices adapted for particular locations and installations.  Upon the 
written request of Customer, Seller will investigate interference complaints (at the 
rates specified in Addendum I to this TMA) and make recommendations as to the 
use of such devices; however, total freedom from noise and interference cannot be 
guaranteed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to radio systems 
designed and installed by Seller for third parties after the installation of 
Customer’s system, Seller shall, at Seller’s expense, provide such corrective 
devices and other adjustments to Customer’s system if the interference with 
Customer’s system is determined to be from such later installed radio system.  
Such adjustments to Customer’s system shall not result in a loss of coverage as 
originally designed. 

 
4.4.2 Seller does not assume responsibility for signal strength unless the deficiency is 

the result of substandard equipment maintenance or any other act or omission of 
Seller or subcontractors or any of their respective personnel. 

 
4.4.3 If, due to the action of regulatory authorities, changes to the Terminal Equipment 

become necessary, such changes will be performed by Seller upon request at the 
expense of Customer. 

 
5. TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

5.1 Initial Term 
 

The services under this TMA will be provided by Seller to Customer beginning 
on the Commencement Date and ending on the last day of the calendar month 
following the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Commencement Date (the “Initial 
Term”).  

 

Page 14 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



5.2 Renewal Term 
 

The Term of this TMA shall be automatically extended at the end of the Initial 
Term for an additional one (1) year and on a succeeding yearly basis thereafter 
(each such extension of the Term being referred to herein as “Renewal Term”) 
unless either Party notifies the other Party, in writing not less than sixty (60) days 
prior to the end of the Initial Term or the Renewal Term then in effect that the 
Term shall not be extended. 

 
5.3 “Term” Defined 
 
 The phrases “Initial Term” and “Renewal Term” as used in this TMA shall 

collectively be referred to herein as “Term.” 
 
5.4 “Contract Year” Defined 
 
 For purposes of this TMA, the phrase “Contract Year” means (i) with respect to 

the first Contract Year, the period beginning on the first day of the first calendar 
month following the Commencement Date and ending on the day prior to the 
anniversary of said beginning date and (ii) with respect to each subsequent 
Contract Year, the period beginning with the anniversary of the beginning of the 
first Contract Year and end on the immediately following anniversary of the end 
date of the first Contract Year.  By way of example, if the Commencement Date is 
November 13, 2015, the first day of the first Contract Year would be December 1, 
2015, the last day of the first Contract Year would be November 30, 2016, the 
first day of the second Contract Year would be December 1, 2016, the last day of 
the second Contract Year would be November 30, 2017, the first day of the third 
Contract Year would be December 1, 2017, the last day of the third Contract Year 
would be November 30, 2018, and so on. 

 
5.5 Customer Default for Non-Payment 
 
 If Customer fails to pay Seller any undisputed amounts on or before the fortieth 

(40th) day after such amount is due, Seller may suspend the provision of services 
under this TMA not earlier than five (5) days after providing written notice to 
Customer of Seller’s intent to suspend services until such undisputed amount is 
paid.  If (i) any undisputed amount due under this TMA remains unpaid on or 
before the 75th day after such amount is due, and (ii) Seller has delivered to 
Customer the above notice relating to suspension of services, and (iii) Seller has, 
in fact, suspended its services hereunder to Customer, Seller may elect to 
terminate this TMA not earlier than the fifteenth (15th) day after delivery of 
written notice to Customer of Seller’s election to terminate this TMA provided 
that Customer has not prior to the date of termination paid to Seller all undisputed 
amounts plus accrued late payment interest.  In the event of termination of the 
TMA pursuant to this Section 5.5, Customer shall be entitled to a refund of a 
prorated amount of the Annual Maintenance Fee paid for the then current 

Page 15 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



Contract Year calculated in the same manner as the refund in Section 5.6, below, 
which amount may be offset against any undisputed amount plus accrued late 
payment interest remaining unpaid as of the termination date. 

 
5.6 Seller’s Default 
 
 In the event of a material breach of this TMA by Seller which shall continue for 

thirty (30) days after written notice of such material breach (including a 
reasonably detailed statement of the nature of such breach) shall have been given 
to Seller by Customer, Customer shall be entitled to avail itself cumulatively of 
any and all remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise (provided such 
remedies are not otherwise limited under the terms of this TMA) and either: (1) 
suspend performance of its payment obligations under this TMA for as long as the 
breach continues uncorrected; or (2) terminate this TMA by written notice to 
Seller if the breach remains uncorrected. Each of the following shall constitute 
material breaches of this Agreement: 

 
5.6.1 Violation by Seller of any State, Federal or local law, or failure by Seller 

to comply with any applicable State and/or Federal service standards, as 
expressed by applicable statutes, rules and/or regulations. 

 
5.6.2 Failure by Seller to carry applicable licenses or certifications as required 

by law; and 
 
5.6.3 Failure of Seller to perform the services described in this TMA absent an 

event of Force Majeure. 
 
In the event Customer terminates this TMA pursuant to this Section 5.6, not later 
than thirty (30) days after such termination date, Seller shall refund to Customer 
the unearned portion of the Annual Maintenance Fee in an amount equal to (i) the 
amount of the Annual Maintenance Fee paid for the then current Contract Year, 
(ii) divided by 365 and then (iii) multiplied by the number of days remaining in 
the then current Contract Year after the termination date.  The amount of such 
refund shall accrue interest beginning after the thirtieth (30th) day after the 
termination date at the highest rate allowed by law if Seller fails to pay such 
refund by that date. 
 

5.7 Termination Following Force Majeure 
 

If Seller is unable to perform the services described in this TMA following a 
Force Majeure Event, or is otherwise unable to procure such services from a third 
party who Seller has certified as authorized to perform work on the Terminal 
Equipment without voiding any warranty made to Customer, and such inability 
continues for a period of thirty (30) days, Customer shall have the right to 
terminate this TMA upon providing Seller written notice of termination, in which 
case this TMA shall be immediately terminated.  If Customer terminates this 

Page 16 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



TMA pursuant to this Section 5.7, Customer’s remedies shall be limited to a 
refund of the unearned portion of the Annual Maintenance Fee in an amount equal 
to (i) the amount of the Annual Maintenance Fee paid for the then current 
Contract Year, (ii) divided by 365 and then (iii) multiplied by the number of days 
remaining in the then current Contract Year after the termination date. The 
amount of such refund shall accrue interest beginning after the sixtieth (60th) day 
after the termination date at the highest rate allowed by law if Seller fails to pay 
such refund by that date. 

 
6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY  
 

6.1 Limits on Damages 
 

Except for Seller's liability to third parties for its willful misconduct or negligent 
acts or omissions as more particularly described in Section 7 “Indemnification 
and Hold Harmless,” below, the total liability of Seller, including its 
subcontractors or suppliers, for all claims of any kind for any loss or damage, 
whether in contract, warranty, tort (including negligence or infringement), strict 
liability or otherwise, arising out of, connected with, or resulting from the 
performance or non-performance of this TMA or from the manufacture, sale, 
delivery, installation, technical direction of installation, resale, repair, 
replacement, licensing or use of any Hardware, Software or the furnishing of any 
Service pursuant to this TMA, shall not exceed the greater of (a) the total amount 
paid by Customer to Seller pursuant to this TMA or (b) the limits of Seller’s 
insurance coverage. 

 
6.2 Special, Consequential, Etc. Damages  
 

IN NO EVENT, WHETHER AS A RESULT OF BREACH OF CONTRACT, 
WARRANTY, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR INFRINGEMENT), 
STRICT LIABILITY OR OTHERWISE, SHALL EITHER PARTY, OR ITS 
SUBCONTRACTORS OR SUPPLIERS, BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY 
FOR ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR 
EXEMPLARY DAMAGES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, LOSS OF 
PROFITS OR REVENUES, LOSS OF USE OF THE HARDWARE OR ANY 
OTHER EQUIPMENT, COST OF CAPITAL, COST OF SUBSTITUTE 
GOODS, FACILITIES, SERVICES OR DOWNTIME COSTS. 

 
6.3 Third Party Damages 
 

6.3.1 Seller shall not be liable for costs incurred for repair and/or replacement of 
Terminal Equipment that fails or becomes inoperative due to negligence 
on the part of a user other than Seller or Seller’s employees or contractors, 
liquid intrusion not caused by the negligent or intentional acts or 
omissions by Seller or Seller’s employee or contractors, lightning damage, 
installations or removals performed by third parties not employed or 

Page 17 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



otherwise hired by Seller, and/or acts of God, acts of terrorism or work 
performed by third parties not authorized by Seller to perform work on 
Seller equipment. 

 
6.3.2 Seller shall not be liable for costs incurred for correcting, replacing or 

repairing equipment damaged and/or data corruption induced and/or 
caused by third party personnel not hired by Seller to perform such 
correction, replacement, or repair or other equipment/systems not provided 
by or under the direction of Seller. 

 
6.4 Other Agreements 

 
The provisions of this Section 6, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, shall apply 
notwithstanding any other provisions of this TMA 

 
6.5 Survival 
 

The provisions if this Section 6, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this TMA. 

 
6.6 Force Majeure Event. 
 

Neither Party shall be liable for delays in delivery or failure to perform due 
directly or indirectly to (1) causes beyond a Party’s reasonable control, (2) Acts of 
God, acts (including failure to act) of any governmental authority, wars (declared 
or undeclared), riots, revolutions, strikes or other labor disputes, fires, floods, 
sabotage, nuclear incidents, earthquakes, storms, epidemics, or (3) Seller's 
inability to timely obtain necessary materials, items, components or services from 
suppliers who are affected by the foregoing circumstances (each being a “Force 
Majeure Event”).  Upon the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event, Seller and 
Customer (as the case may be) shall as soon as practical after the onset of the 
Force Majeure Event, notify the other Party of such event and shall, at the same 
time or at the earliest practical date after such notice, specify the date such 
performance shall occur or recommence.  Subject to Section 5.7 of this TMA, in 
the event of such delay or failure, the time for performance shall be extended for a 
reasonable time period to compensate for the time lost by the Party by reason of 
the Force Majeure Event. 

 
7. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS  

 
7.1 Indemnification 
 

Seller shall be responsible for and agrees to INDEMNIFY, HOLD 
HARMLESS and DEFEND Customer, its governing body, boards, 
commissions, agencies, officers and employees (collectively “the Indemnified 
Parties”) from and against all liability, losses, damages, harm, judgments, 

Page 18 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



proceedings, suits, liens, penalties, fines, fees (including reasonable attorneys 
fees), costs or expenses which the Indemnified Parties (or any of them) may 
sustain, incur or be required to pay by reason of third party claims, demands 
and/or causes of action for damages resulting from personal injuries, loss of 
life or damage to or destruction of tangible property, (collectively “Claims”) 
resulting from, caused by, or relating to the willful misconduct or negligent 
acts or omissions of Seller or of any of Seller's officers, agents, employees, or 
subcontractors in performance of or otherwise in connection with this TMA 
(and including all of Seller’s work and services as set forth herein).  SUCH 
INDEMNITY, HOLD HARMLESS, AND DEFENSE OBLIGATION 
SHALL AND DOES INCLUDE CLAIMS ALLEGED OR FOUND TO 
HAVE BEEN CAUSED  IN PART BY THE NEGLIGENCE OR GROSS 
NEGLIGENCE OF ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTIES, OR CONDUCT BY 
ANY INDEMNIFIED PARTIES THAT WOULD GIVE RISE TO STRICT 
LIABILITY OF ANY KIND.  However, Seller’s liability under this clause 
shall be reduced by that portion of the total amount of the Claims (excluding 
defense fees and costs) equal to the Indemnified Parties’ proportionate share 
of the negligence or gross negligence, or conduct that would give rise to strict 
liability of any kind that caused the Claim.  Likewise, Seller’s liability for the 
Indemnified Parties’ defense costs and attorneys’ fees shall be reduced by 
that portion of the defense costs and attorneys’ fees equal to the Indemnified 
Parties’ proportionate share of the negligence, or conduct that would give 
rise to strict liability of any kind, that caused the loss. 

 
7.2 Notice of Claim 
 

Customer agrees to notify Seller in writing as soon as practical of any third party 
claim, demand or cause of action for which any of the Indemnified Parties will 
request indemnification from Seller.  The Indemnified Party(ies) seeking 
indemnification and a defense from Seller pursuant to Section 7.1 must provide 
Seller with the necessary information and assistance to defend or settle such 
claim, demand or cause of action. The obligations of Seller under this section and 
Section 7.1, above, shall survive the expiration or termination of this TMA.  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Seller understands, 
acknowledges, and agrees that this TMA contains no obligation of Customer to 
indemnify, defend, or hold harmless Seller, its officers, directors, employees, 
shareholders, partners, contractors, subcontractors, or affiliates under any 
circumstances arising from or related to the performance of this TMA. Nothing in 
this section or Section 7.1, above, shall be deemed an admission or waiver of any 
immunity from liability. Further, nothing in this TMA shall be read to grant rights 
or benefits to third parties. 

  

Page 19 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



8. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

8.1 Notices. 
 

Notices and other communications between the Parties shall be transmitted in 
writing by (i) United State Postal Service via certified mail, return receipt 
requested, or (ii) hand delivery or (iii) nationally recognized overnight courier 
service (e.g. United Parcel Service, Federal Express, DHL, or similar service) to 
the Parties at the addresses set forth below and shall be deemed effective upon (1) 
receipt by the receiving Party, if hand delivered or sent by nationally recognized 
courier service, or (2) five (5) business days after placement in a receptacle of the 
United States Postal Service, if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.  
Either Party may change its address by giving notice in writing thereof to the 
other Party. 

   
Seller: 
 

Customer: 
 

Director, Field Services 
Harris Corporation 
221 Jefferson Ridge Parkway 
Lynchburg, Virginia  24501 

Paul Spencer 
Town of Addison  
Police Chief 
4799 Airport Parkway 
Addison, TX 75001 
 

With copy to: 
 

With copy to: 
 

Regional Manager 
Harris Corp 
8105 N. Belt Line Road, Suite 170 
Irving, Texas  75063-6070 

___________________ 
___________________ 
___________________ 
___________________ 
 

8.2. Entire Agreement; No Third Party Beneficiaries 
 

The entire agreement of the Parties is contained herein (inclusive of the Exhibits 
attached hereto), and this TMA supersedes any and all oral agreements and 
negotiations between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof. Except as 
stated herein to the contrary (including the indemnity, hold harmless, and defense 
provisions included in Section 7, above), this TMA is solely for the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and is not intended to create or grant any rights, contractual or 
otherwise, to any third person or entity. 

 
8.3. Amendment 

 
The Parties expressly agree that this TMA shall not be amended in any manner 
except in a writing(s) executed by authorized representatives of the Parties. 

 
 

Page 20 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



8.4 Severability 
 

The invalidity, in whole or in part, of any Section or part of any Section of this 
TMA shall not affect the validity of the remainder of such Section or this TMA.  

 
8.5 Waiver 

 
No provision of this TMA may be waived except in a writing signed by the Party 
waiving enforcement.  No provision of this TMA shall be deemed to be waived 
by reason of any failure to previously enforce such term. In no event shall the 
making of any payment required by this TMA constitute or be construed as a 
waiver by Customer of any breach of the covenants of this TMA or a waiver of 
any default of Seller and the making of any such payment by Customer while 
any such default or breach shall exist shall in no way impair or prejudice the 
right of Customer with respect to recovery of damages or other remedy as a 
result of such breach or default. 

 
8.6 Headings; “Includes” 

 
Section headings are inserted for convenience only and shall not be used in any 
way to construe the meaning of terms used in this TMA.  As used in this TMA, 
the words “includes” and “including” are terms of enlargement and not of 
limitation or exclusive enumeration, and use of the terms does not create a 
presumption that components not expressed are excluded. 

 
8.7 Governing Law 
 

The Parties expressly understand and agree that in the event of any disagreement 
or controversy between the Parties, the laws of the State of Texas shall be 
controlling without regard to the application of any conflict of laws statutes.  
Venue for any legal proceedings shall be in a state court in Dallas County, Texas, 
except where federal law places exclusive jurisdiction of the matter in controversy 
in a federal court, in which case venue shall be in the United States District Court 
for the Northern District of Texas – Dallas Division.  

 
8.8 Assignment; Successors and Assigns 

 
8.8.1 Except as provided herein, this TMA shall not be assigned nor any interest 

or obligation in this TMA transferred by either Party without the written 
consent of the other Party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed. 

 
8.8.2 Notwithstanding Section 8.8.1, above, 

 
A. Seller may assign this TMA, without consent, (a) in whole or in 

part, to an affiliate of Seller or (b) in the event of a change of 

Page 21 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



controlling ownership interest (either directly or indirectly) in 
Seller or in the event of merger, recapitalization, consolidation, 
other business combination or sale of all or substantially all of the 
assets of Seller.  For purposes hereof, “affiliate” means all persons, 
corporations, or other entities which control Seller, and (ii) all 
persons, corporations or other entities under the control of Seller.  
As used in this paragraph A, the definition of affiliate, “control” 
means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct 
or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, 
corporation, or other entity, whether through ownership of voting 
securities or partnership interests, by contract, or otherwise without 
the consent or approval of any other person or entity. 

 
B. In addition, Seller may also assign or transfer, without consent, 

claims for money due or to become due Seller from Customer 
under this TMA to a bank, trust company or other financial 
institution if and only if the instrument of assignment contains a 
provision substantially to the effect that it is agreed that the right of 
the assignee in and to any moneys due or to become due to Seller 
shall be subject to prior claims of all persons, firms and 
corporations for services rendered or materials supplied for the 
performance of the Work called for in this TMA. 

 
8.8.3 Any Party making an assignment of all or any portion of this Agreement 

shall promptly provide the other Party written notice of any such permitted 
assignment or transfer.  Regardless of whether or not an assignment by a 
Party requires the consent of the other Party, no assignment authorized 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be effective and enforceable as to the 
other Party unless such assignment is in writing, signed by the assignor 
and assignee(s), and includes an agreement by the assignee to assume 
without amendment all duties and obligations of the assignor as set forth 
in this Agreement, and a copy of the assignment is delivered to the Party 
who is not a party to the assignment. 

 
8.9 Attachments and Addenda 
 

All exhibits, attachments, and addenda referenced in this TMA and attached 
hereto are incorporated into this TMA as if fully set forth herein and constitute 
additional terms and conditions of this TMA. 
 

  

Page 22 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



8.10 Counterparts 
 

This TMA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original and constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
8.11 Effective Date 
 

This TMA shall be effective upon the date it bears the signatures, whether in the 
same original document or in counterparts, of the authorized representatives of the 
Parties (“the Effective Date”). 

 
(Signatures on following page) 

  

Page 23 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



SIGNED AND AGREED this ____ day of _________________________, 2015. 
 

SELLER: 
 
HARRIS CORPORATION - 
RF COMMUNICATIONS DIVISION 
 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 Christopher W. Chaffee, 
 Senior Manager, Contracts 
 
 

SIGNED AND AGREED this ___________day of _________________, 2015. 
 

CUSTOMER: 
 
TOWN OF ADDISON 
 
By: ____________________________ 
  

 
ATTEST 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Town Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Town Attorney 

Page 24 of 24 TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



ADDENDUM I - TERMINAL MAINTENANCE RATES 
 
A. Harris Local Bench Repair Rates 

A          B                         C                      D            E                     F                   G                    H                       I                      J                       K                       L                  M             N        O 

Radio Model XG-25P XG-75P XG-100P XG-25M XG-75M M7300 XG-100M
CS7000 C.S.
W/M7300

Annual PM + 
S/W & 

Personality 

Personality 
Management

Pickup / 
Delivery 

Totals 
Annually

Quantity 65 0 107 0 0 30 17 3 222 222 172

Yr 1 - Per Unit -$               -$               -$               60.48$           60.48$           60.48$                 60.48$           140.88$             50.04$                 8.04$             15.96$           
Yr 2 - Per Unit -$               -$               -$               62.28$           62.28$           62.28$                 62.28$           145.08$             51.60$                 8.04$             15.96$           
Yr 3 - Per Unit 55.80$           55.80$           -$               184.92$         184.92$         184.92$               64.20$           426.84$             53.16$                 8.04$             15.96$           
Yr 4 - Per Unit 57.48$           57.48$           76.68$           190.56$         190.56$         190.56$               244.32$         439.68$             54.72$                 8.04$             15.96$           
Yr 5 - Per Unit 59.16$           59.16$           78.96$           196.20$         196.20$         196.20$               251.64$         452.88$             56.40$                 8.04$             15.96$           

Yr 1 - Total -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               1,814.40$            1,028.16$      422.64$             11,108.88$          1,784.88$      2,745.12$      18,904.08$            
Yr 2 - Total -$               -$               -$               -$               -$               1,868.40$            1,058.76$      435.24$             11,455.20$          1,784.88$      2,745.12$      19,347.60$            
Yr 3 - Total 3,627.00$      -$               -$               -$               -$               5,547.60$            1,091.40$      1,280.52$          11,801.52$          1,784.88$      2,745.12$      27,878.04$            
Yr 4 - Total 3,736.20$      -$               8,204.76$      -$               -$               5,716.80$            4,153.44$      1,319.04$          12,147.84$          1,784.88$      2,745.12$      39,808.08$            
Yr 5 - Total 3,845.40$      -$               8,448.72$      -$               -$               5,886.00$            4,277.88$      1,358.64$          12,520.80$          1,784.88$      2,745.12$      40,867.44$            

11,208.60$    -$               16,653.48$    -$               -$               20,833.20$          11,609.64$    4,816.08$          59,034.24$          8,924.40$      13,725.60$    146,805.24$          

146,805.24$          

Total Units Annual PM & 
S/W

Pers Mgt Pickup Del
Port

Pickup Del 
Mobile

222 1 1 1 0

Grand Totals - 5 Years

Local Bench Repair First Echelon Hybrid Pricing Model Additional Services

 Per Unit / 
Per Year 

Per Year 
Totals

Addison 
Pricing

 
 
Comments:   
Cell: C4  - PD = 15   -  FD = 15  -  PW = 35 Cell: E4  -  PD = 75  -  FD = 32 
Cell: H4  -  PD = 30 Cell: I4  -  PD = 5  -  FD = 12 
Cell: J4  -  ?  = 3  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 ADDENDUM I TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



B. First Echelon Repair Rates 
REFERENCE SECTION 2.6.2 - WARRANTY  
REFERENCE SECTION 2.6.3 - LOCAL BENCH  FOR PORTABLES 
REFERENCE SECTION 2.6.4 - FIRST ECHELON FOR MOBILES 

Pricing Shown is Per Unit / Per Month           
Terminal Model Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 
XG-25 Portable Warranty Warranty  $    4.65   $    4.79   $    4.93  
XG-75 Portable Warranty Warranty  $    4.65   $    4.79   $    4.93  
XG-100 Portable Warranty Warranty  Warranty   $    6.39   $    6.58  

            
XG-25 Mobile  $    5.04   $    5.19   $  15.41   $  15.88   $  16.35  
XG-75 Mobile  $    5.04   $    5.19   $  15.41   $  15.88   $  16.35  
XG-100 Mobile  $    5.04   $    5.19   $    5.35   $  20.36   $  20.97  
            
CS-7000 Control Station - Includes Radio  $  11.74  12.09  $  35.57   $  36.64   $  37.74  
Annual Preventive Maint + S/W Upgrade + Personality Update $    4.17 $    4.30 $    4.43 $    4.56 $    4.70 
Pickup / Delivery Service $    1.33 $    1.33 $    1.33 $    1.33 $    1.33 
Personality Management by Harris  $     0.67   $     0.67   $     0.67   $     0.67   $     0.67  

 
C. UNUSED AND RESERVED 

D. DEMAND SERVICE RATES 
 Hourly Rate (normal Working Hours):    $100.00   
 Hourly Rate (Nights & Saturday):    $150.00   
 Hourly Rate (Sunday & Holidays):   $150.00   
 Mobile/Portable Radio Reprogramming:    Price quoted on a per occurrence basis. 

E. OTHER SUBCONTRACTED SERVICES 
 

Service provided by third party vendors performing Demand Services labor at the request of Customer will be provided at cost 
plus 15%.

Page 2 of 2 ADDENDUM I TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



ADDENDUM II - EQUIPMENT LIST 
 

A. TERMINAL EQUIPMENT: 
  

Radio Model # Qty. 
XG-25P  65 Portable Radio 
XG-75P    0 Portable Radio 
XG-100P           107  Portable Radio 
XG-25M    0 Mobile Radio 
M7300   30  Mobile Radio 
XG-100M  17  Mobile Radio 
CS-7000     3 Control Station with: 

M7300  3 each  Mobile Radio 
 

<End of List> 
 
TERMINAL SPARES 
*Terminal Spares purchased by Customer may be designated and tracked separately by serial 
number, or at Customer discretion may be included in the inventory in Addendum II – Equipment 
List – Section A – Terminal Equipment.  Terminal Spares will be maintained per all terms and 
conditions stated for actively used equipment covered in Section A inventory.    
 

Page 1 of 1 ADDENDUM II TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



ADDENDUM III - SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

1.0 Maintenance Exclusions 
The items identified below are covered by Seller during the Warranty Period provided 
they have been supplied and installed by Seller.  Following the end of the Warranty 
Period, the items identified below are specifically excluded from coverage from this 
TMA, unless otherwise noted in Addendum II (A) Terminal Equipment List or as later 
agreed in writing.  Customer may request services on the items identified below at the 
then current Demand Services Rates listed in Addendum I – Section D. 
 

1.1 Portable Equipment 
 

Customer shall be responsible for repair and replacement of the following 
portable radio equipment after the end of the items’ Warranty Period: 

o Personal audio accessories (headset, ear piece),  
o carrying cases and devices,  
o batteries and antennas  

1.2 Mobile Equipment 
 

Customer shall be responsible for repair and replacement of the following mobile 
radio equipment after the end of the items’ Warranty Period: 

o Antennas 
o Power Cables 
o Control Head to T/R package cables for remote mount units 
o Fuses & Fuse Holders 
o Audio Accessories (microphone, headset, ear piece) 
o Any issues related to vehicular power systems 

 Voltages out of radio specification range 
 Voltage spikes 

1.3 Control Stations 
 

Customer shall be responsible for repair and replacement of the following control 
station radio equipment after the end of the items’ Warranty Period: 

o Antenna systems (antenna, feedline & PolyPhaser) 
o Audio Accessories (microphone, headset, ear piece) 

2.0 Additions / Deletions to Addendum II – Equipment List 
Customer may add or delete equipment items to the list of maintained equipment by 
notifying Seller in writing.  As additional items are purchased they will be added to this 
TMA at time of the annual Renewal Period and per terms of Section 2.6.1.1.  Any 
changes to this TMA will be through an Amendment document completed by Seller and 
provided to Customer for review, approval and signature.  The Amendment document 
will provide revised equipment lists, revised pricing structure changes and any necessary 
changes to fully incorporate the additional items into the TMA. 

Page 1 of 1 ADDENDUM III TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



ADDENDUM IV - WARRANTY/MAINTENANCE SUPPORT STATEMENT OF WORK 
 
The Addendum IV sets forth Seller’s maintenance obligations, exclusions, and additional options 
available to Customer pursuant to this TMA.  Descriptions of obligations and exclusions under 
the requested options and Demand Services require Customer to purchase those options. 

1.0 Local Support 
 
Seller maintains a 10,500 square foot Regional Service Center located in Irving, Texas (“Sellers’ 
Facility”).  Seller’s Facility supports Seller’s staff of service managers, project managers, 
engineers and technicians, who are responsible for supporting all of Seller’s customers within a 
multi-state region in the western United States of America.  Seller’s Facility has a repair depot 
for local repair of Seller’s mobile and portable radio equipment, an equipment staging area, spare 
parts warehouse, drive in service bay and office space. 

2.0 Depot Maintenance 
 
Seller’s Depot Repair and Return Facility (“R&R”) is located in Forest, Virginia and is staffed 
with certified Master Technicians. A “Master Technician” means a person who has completed all 
Seller-required technical training course on the equipment being serviced.  Seller’s Facility and 
the R&R are ISO 9001: 2000 and Factory Mutual Certified.  State-of-the-art test equipment and 
certified Master Technicians verify all repairs meet or exceed prescribed specifications. 

3.0 Terminal Radio Equipment Repair Statement of Work 

3.1 Maintenance Responsibilities 

Seller’s Facility technicians and staff will provide warranty and maintenance actions on 
all Terminal Equipment included in this TMA. Seller may subcontract some preventive 
maintenance services. 

3.2 Initiation of Terminal Service Request from Customer: 
 
Customer initiates a Terminal Service Request by sending an e-mail to the Harris Service 
Center group e-mail box Irving.Office@harris.com which is monitored during normal 
Working Hours by the Harris Service Center Shop Manager and the three Harris Service 
Center Field Technicians.  Customer Terminal Service Request will contain: 
 

A. Name of Customer initiating request 
B. Customer Agency (Coppell FD, Carrollton PD, etc) 
C. Customer call back phone number 
D. Unit Number needing maintenance service 
E. Brief Problem Description 

Page 1 of 4 ADDENDUM IV TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

mailto:Irving.Office@harris.com


The e-mail will be replied to by the currently on-call Field Technician, copied to all other 
Seller personnel.  Seller’s on-call Field Technician will contact the initiating Customer 
contact within one (1) Working Hour.  Example: A call initiated between 8:00 AM and 
4:00 PM during a Working Day will be replied to within one hour on that day.  However, 
a call initiated after 4:00 PM will receive a reply the next business morning prior to 9:00 
AM.  Any calls for terminal service received after hours or weekends will receive a reply 
the next business morning prior to 9:00 AM.   

3.3 Maintenance Logs 

Seller shall utilize its existing ticket tracking system to log all requests for service and all 
service actions taken. Seller’s technicians open a ticket when any service request from 
Customer is initiated.  Seller’s technicians will update that ticket as the troubleshooting 
process proceeds until completion.  Data is entered into the ticket to record Customer’s 
initial service request, call back and on-site arrival times, troubleshooting completion 
times, actions taken during the troubleshooting process, parts utilized and final outcome 
of the troubleshooting process.  Service reports as defined below will be extracted from 
this ticket system to provide the required reports. 

3.4 Service Reports 
 

Seller shall submit the following service reports by the tenth (10th) day of each month for 
the previous month’s service: 
 

A. Monthly service activity, including model number, serial number, work 
performed, corrective action. 

 
B. Mutually agreed metrics.   

3.5 Terminal Spares 
 

Customer shall purchase the Terminal Spares as indicated in the recommended spare 
parts list provided with the System Purchase Agreement.  Terminal radios spare parts will 
be stored at Customer’s facility.  Customer is responsible for tracking the inventory of 
their Terminal radio equipment spares.   

3.6 Tech-Link Support Services 
 

The Tech-Link website offers electronic retrieval/exchange of technical information, 
which allows subscribers to: 
 
A. Search Seller technical libraries 
B. Read current software release notes 
C. Request technical assistance from TAC 
D. Participate in User Forums 
E. Technical Service Memos 
F. Subscription to Tech-Link is an included service with purchase of the Software 

FX Agreement.   

Page 2 of 4 ADDENDUM IV TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



3.7 Terminal Equipment Service Ticket Initiation Process 
 

To ensure compliance with service ticket requirements, Seller will respond utilizing the 
following escalation procedure: 

3.7.1 Reference services provided by the Local Bench Repair service 
option: 
A. Customer may drop off and pickup Terminal Equipment for repair 

at Seller’s Facility.   

B. Seller will perform once a week pickup and delivery service at 
Customer’s designated facility.  Any items for repair will be 
picked-up and any items that have been repaired will be delivered 
to Customer for return to their spares inventory.   

C. During the equipment Warranty Period, there is no charge for 
break/fix repairs.  Customer may request that Seller re-program 
radios to make changes to operational features or functions in the 
programming personality.  Such re-programming is not a warranty 
service and will be provided as a Demand Service by Seller to 
Customer.   

3.7.2 Reference services provided by the First Echelon Repair service level: 
A. Customer may drop off and pickup Terminal Equipment for repair 

at Seller’s Facility.  

B. Customer may bring mobile radios to Seller’s Facility for 
troubleshooting and repair by Seller’s technicians.    

C. Customer may initiate a service request to Seller for on-site service 
at Customer location.  Seller will respond and be on-site to service 
the vehicle or item requested not later than three (3) business days 
(24 working hours). Please see Addendum IV under the subsection 
Maintenance Responsibilities, Initiation of Terminal Service 
Request from Customer. 

D. During the equipment Warranty Period, there is no charge for 
break/fix repairs.  Customer may request that Seller re-program 
radios to make changes to operational features or functions in the 
programming Personality.  Such re-programming is not a warranty 
service and will be provided as a Demand Service by Seller to 
Customer. 

4.0 Preventive Maintenance Statement of Work 
 
Seller shall perform annual preventive maintenance (“PM”) on all Seller supplied Terminal 
Equipment as listed in Addendum II. 
 
Seller shall perform preventive maintenance inspections and tests as recommended by the Harris 
Maintenance Manuals, using the most current revision applicable to the model(s) of equipment 

Page 3 of 4 ADDENDUM IV TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



being serviced.  Documentation of PM services will include measured values of all FCC required 
performance criteria and other parameters measured per the specifications in the Maintenance 
Manuals. 

Page 4 of 4 ADDENDUM IV TO TERMINAL MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT: HARRIS CORPORATION AND 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 



   
AI-1421     Item #   16.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Grant Funding Agreement With Launchability In An Amount Not To
Exceed $2,500.00.

BACKGROUND:
The City Council of the Town of Addison, has investigated and determined that it is in the
best interest of the Town to provide a grant of public funds to various organizations that
promote public purposes and benefit the public within the Town. The City Council has
adopted an application process whereby these organizations may apply for public funds
that will be used for public purposes within the Town, as determined by the Town. 

LaunchAbility submitted an Application to the Town for consideration. The Town has
reviewed the Application and investigated and determined that the requests set forth in
the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Resolution. 

Attachments
Resolution And Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  A  GRANT  FUNDING  AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE TOWN AND LAUNCHABILITY; AUTHORIZING THE
CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE  GRANT  FUNDING
AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the  City  Council  of  the  Town of  Addison,  Texas  (“City  Council”)  has
investigated  and  determined  that  it  is  in  the  best  interest  of  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas
(“Town”)  to  provide  a  grant  of  public  funds  to  various  organizations  that  promote  public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  has  adopted  an  application  process  (“Application”)
whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be used for public purposes
within the Town, as determined by the Town; and

WHEREAS, LaunchAbility submitted an Application to the Town for consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens;
and 

WHEREAS, the Town and LaunchAbility desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth
the terms and conditions regarding LaunchAbility’s use of the public funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Grant Funding Agreement between the Town and LaunchAbility,  a
copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager
is hereby authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney





EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1422     Item #   17.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Grant Funding Agreement With Metrocrest Chamber Of Commerce In
An Amount Not To Exceed $35,000.00.

BACKGROUND:
The City Council has investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the
Town to provide a grant of public funds to various organizations that promote public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town. The City Council has adopted an
application process  whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be
used for public purposes within the Town, as determined by the Town.
 
The Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce submitted an Application to the Town for
consideration.  The Town has reviewed the application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its
citizens.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this Resolution. 

Attachments
Resolution And Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  A  GRANT  FUNDING  AGREEMENT
BETWEEN  THE  TOWN  AND  METROCREST  CHAMBER  OF
COMMERCE;  AUTHORIZING  THE CITY  MANAGER  TO EXECUTE
THE  GRANT  FUNDING  AGREEMENT;  AND  PROVIDING  FOR  AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the  City  Council  of  the  Town of  Addison,  Texas  (“City  Council”)  has
investigated  and  determined  that  it  is  in  the  best  interest  of  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas
(“Town”)  to  provide  a  grant  of  public  funds  to  various  organizations  that  promote  public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  has  adopted  an  application  process  (“Application”)
whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be used for public purposes
within the Town, as determined by the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  Metrocrest  Chamber  of  Commerce  submitted  an Application  to  the
Town for consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens;
and 

WHEREAS, the Town and Metrocrest Chamber of Commerce desire to enter into this
Agreement  to  set  forth  the  terms  and  conditions  regarding  the  Metrocrest  Chamber  of
Commerce’s use of the public funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Grant  Funding  Agreement  between  the  Town  and  Metrocrest
Chamber of Commerce, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby
approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1423     Item #   18.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Grant Funding Agreement With Metrocrest Community Clinic In An
Amount Not To Exceed $3,000.00.

BACKGROUND:
The City Council has investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the
Town to provide a grant of public funds to various organizations that promote public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town. The City Council has adopted an
application process  whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be
used for public purposes within the Town, as determined by the Town.
 
The Metrocrest Community Clinic submitted an Application to the Town for
consideration. The Town has reviewed the application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its
citizens.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Resolution. 

Attachments
Resolution and Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  A  GRANT  FUNDING  AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE TOWN AND METROCREST COMMUNITY CLINIC;
AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE  GRANT
FUNDING  AGREEMENT;  AND  PROVIDING  FOR  AN  EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the  City  Council  of  the  Town of  Addison,  Texas  (“City  Council”)  has
investigated  and  determined  that  it  is  in  the  best  interest  of  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas
(“Town”)  to  provide  a  grant  of  public  funds  to  various  organizations  that  promote  public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  has  adopted  an  application  process  (“Application”)
whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be used for public purposes
within the Town, as determined by the Town; and

WHEREAS, the Metrocrest Community Clinic submitted an Application to the Town for
consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens;
and 

WHEREAS,  the  Town  and  Metrocrest  Community  Clinic  desire  to  enter  into  this
Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions regarding the Metrocrest Community Clinic use
of the public funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Grant  Funding  Agreement  between  the  Town  and  Metrocrest
Community  Clinic,  a  copy of  which  is  attached  to  this  Resolution  as  Exhibit  A, is  hereby
approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1424     Item #   19.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Grant Funding Agreement With Metrocrest Services In An Amount Not
To Exceed $61,000.00.

BACKGROUND:
The City Council has investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the
Town to provide a grant of public funds to various organizations that promote public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town. The City Council has adopted an
application process  whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be
used for public purposes within the Town, as determined by the Town.
 
The Metrocrest Services submitted an Application to the Town for consideration. The
Town has reviewed the application and investigated and determined that the requests
set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this Resolution. 

Attachments
Resolution and Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  A  GRANT  FUNDING  AGREEMENT
BETWEEN  THE  TOWN  AND  METROCREST  SERVICES;
AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE  GRANT
FUNDING  AGREEMENT;  AND  PROVIDING  FOR  AN  EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the  City  Council  of  the  Town of  Addison,  Texas  (“City  Council”)  has
investigated  and  determined  that  it  is  in  the  best  interest  of  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas
(“Town”)  to  provide  a  grant  of  public  funds  to  various  organizations  that  promote  public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  has  adopted  an  application  process  (“Application”)
whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be used for public purposes
within the Town, as determined by the Town; and

WHEREAS,  Metrocrest  Services  submitted  an  Application  to  the  Town  for
consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens;
and 

WHEREAS, the Town and Metrocrest Services desire to enter into this Agreement to set
forth the terms and conditions regarding Metrocrest Services’ use of the public funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Grant  Funding  Agreement  between  the  Town  and  Metrocrest
Services, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:



By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1425     Item #   20.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Grant Funding Agreement With The Family Place In An Amount Not To
Exceed $12,000.00.

BACKGROUND:
The City Council has investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the
Town to provide a grant of public funds to various organizations that promote public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town. The City Council has adopted an
application process  whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be
used for public purposes within the Town, as determined by the Town.
 
The Family Place submitted an Application to the Town for consideration. The Town has
reviewed the application and investigated and determined that the requests set forth in
the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this Resolution. 

Attachments
Resolution and Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  A  GRANT  FUNDING  AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE TOWN AND THE FAMILY PLACE; AUTHORIZING
THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE  GRANT  FUNDING
AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the  City  Council  of  the  Town of  Addison,  Texas  (“City  Council”)  has
investigated  and  determined  that  it  is  in  the  best  interest  of  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas
(“Town”)  to  provide  a  grant  of  public  funds  to  various  organizations  that  promote  public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  has  adopted  an  application  process  (“Application”)
whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be used for public purposes
within the Town, as determined by the Town; and

WHEREAS, The Family Place submitted an Application to the Town for consideration;
and

WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens;
and 

WHEREAS, the Town and The Family Place desire to enter into this Agreement to set
forth the terms and conditions regarding The Family Place’s use of the public funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Grant Funding Agreement between the Town and The Family Place, a
copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager
is hereby authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney





EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1426     Item #   21.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Grant Funding Agreement With WaterTower Theatre In An Amount Not
To Exceed $295,000.00.

BACKGROUND:
The City Council has investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the
Town to provide a grant of public funds to various organizations that promote public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town. The City Council has adopted an
application process  whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be
used for public purposes within the Town, as determined by the Town.
 
The WaterTower Theatre submitted an Application to the Town for consideration. The
Town has reviewed the application and investigated and determined that the requests
set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this Resolution. 

Attachments
Resolution and Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  A  GRANT  FUNDING  AGREEMENT
BETWEEN  THE  TOWN  AND  WATER  TOWER  THEATRE;
AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE  GRANT
FUNDING  AGREEMENT;  AND  PROVIDING  FOR  AN  EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, the  City  Council  of  the  Town of  Addison,  Texas  (“City  Council”)  has
investigated  and  determined  that  it  is  in  the  best  interest  of  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas
(“Town”)  to  provide  a  grant  of  public  funds  to  various  organizations  that  promote  public
purposes and benefit the public within the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  has  adopted  an  application  process  (“Application”)
whereby these organizations may apply for public funds that will be used for public purposes
within the Town, as determined by the Town; and

WHEREAS,  the  Water  Tower  Theatre  submitted  an  Application  to  the  Town  for
consideration; and

WHEREAS, the Town has reviewed the Application and investigated and determined
that the requests set forth in the Application are for a public purpose and will benefit its citizens;
and 

WHEREAS, the Town and Water Tower Theatre desire to enter into this Agreement to
set forth the terms and conditions regarding the Water Tower Theatre’s use of the public funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Grant  Funding  Agreement  between  the  Town  and  Water  Tower
Theatre, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney





EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1427     Item #   22.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into An Agreement With The WaterTower Theatre For Use Of The Addison
Theatre Center.

BACKGROUND:
The City Council has investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the
Town to utilize public property such as the Addison Theatre Center in an effective
manner. The City Council has further investigated and determined that it is beneficial to
allow a reputable theatre company to use the Addison Theatre Center on an annual
basis to achieve this goal.
 
The Water Tower Theatre is a reputable company who’s history demonstrates capability
in the use of the Addison Theatre Center. The Town has agreed to enter into the
agreement.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this Resolution. 

Attachments
Resolution and Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING A USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
TOWN AND THE WATER TOWER THEATRE FOR THE USE OF THE
ADDISON THEATRE CENTER; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER
TO  EXECUTE  THE  GRANT  FUNDING  AGREEMENT;  AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the  City  Council  of  the  Town of  Addison,  Texas  (“City  Council”)  has
investigated  and  determined  that  it  is  in  the  best  interest  of  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas
(“Town”) to utilize public property such as the Addison Theatre Center in an effective manner;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council has further investigated and determined that it is beneficial
to allow a reputable theatre company to use the Addison Theatre Center on an annual basis to
achieve this goal; and 

WHEREAS,  the  Water  Tower  Theatre  is  a  reputable  company  who’s  history
demonstrates capability in the use of the Addison Theatre Center; and 

WHEREAS,  as  a  result,  the  City Council  desires  to  enter  into  this  Use Agreement,
whereby the Town and the Water  Tower Theatre  may contractually  agree on the terms and
conditions of use of the Addison Theatre Center (“Use Agreement”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Use Agreement between the Town and the Water Tower Theatre, a
copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager
is hereby authorized to execute said agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney





EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1411     Item #   23.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve An Ordinance Amending Chapter 10, Animals Of The
Code Of Ordinance For The Town Of Addison.

BACKGROUND:
The City Attorney has requested a revision to the ordinance to amend the language that
establishes the regular, routine or habitual feeding of waterfowl. The prior ordinance
contained language that conclusively established the behavior. The amended ordinance
contains language that creates a presumption of the behavior. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Ordinance. 

Attachments
Ordinance
Amended Section of Ordinance



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

ORDINANCE NO.                 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,  TEXAS AMENDING
SECTION 10-11(C) “FEEDING OF WATERFOWL,”  OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES,  TOWN  OF  ADDISON,  TEXAS,  TO  ESTABLISH
PRESUMPTION REGARDING “REGULAR, ROUTINE OR HABITTUAL
BEHAVIOR OR PRACTICE”; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00)
FOR  EACH  OFFENSE;  AND  PROVIDING  FOR   SAVINGS,
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,
TEXAS, THAT:

Section 1.  Chapter 10 – Animals, Section 10-11 – Feeding of Waterfowl, Subsection (c) of the
Code of Ordinances, Town of Addison, Texas shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows:

Sec. 10-11.  Feeding of waterfowl.
. . . 

(c) No person shall engage in the regular, routine, or habitual practice of feeding any
waterfowl within any pond or lake within the town or within any public property
adjacent  thereto,  or  on  any  private  property.   No  person  shall  regularly,
routinely, or habitually create or foster any condition or allow any condition to
exist or continue which results in a congregation or congestion of waterfowl.
For purposes of this section, the behavior is presumed to be regular, routine or
habitual when three (3) written warnings have been issued to the same individual
within a sixty (60) day period.  Once three (3) written warnings have been issued
within a sixty (60) day period, it shall not be necessary to again establish regular,
routine  or  habitual  behavior  by  the  issuance  of  written  warnings  for  that
individual.   Regular,  routine or habitual  practice may also be established by
other evidence. 

Section 2.  Penalty Clause.

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this Ordinance or
the  Code  of  Ordinances,  Town  of  Addison,  Texas  as  amended  hereby,  commits  a  Class  C
misdemeanor punishable by a fine as set forth in Section 1-7 of the Code of Ordinances, Addison,
Texas for each offense, and each and every day such violation shall continue shall constitute a
separate offense. 

Section 3.  Savings.

The Code of Ordinance, Addison, Texas, shall remain in full force and effect save and
except as amended by this Ordinance.

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ Page 1



ORDINANCE NO. ______________ Page 2



Section 4.  Cumulative Clause.

This  Ordinance  shall  be cumulative  of all  provisions  of  state  or federal  law and other
ordinances of the Town of Addison, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in
direct conflict with the provisions of such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of
such ordinances are hereby repealed.

Section 5.  Severability Clause.

It  is  hereby declared  to  be the  intention  of  the City Council  that  the phrases,  clauses,
sentences,  paragraphs  and sections  of  this  Ordinance  are  severable,  and if  any phrase,  clause,
sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this Ordinance, since
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation of this Ordinance
of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section.

Section 6.  Effective Date.

This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and publication as
required by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the
10th day of November, 2015.

                                                                                  
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By:                                                                            
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:                                                                            
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

Date of Publication: ___________________

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ Page 3



Section 1.  Chapter 10 – Animals, Section 10-11 – Feeding of Waterfowl, Subsection (c) of the
Code of Ordinances, Town of Addison, Texas shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows:

Sec. 10-11.  Feeding of waterfowl.
. . . 

(c) No person shall engage in the regular, routine, or habitual practice of feeding any
waterfowl within any pond or lake within the town or within any public property
adjacent  thereto,  or  on  any  private  property.   No  person  shall  regularly,
routinely, or habitually create or foster any condition or allow any condition to
exist or continue which results in a congregation or congestion of waterfowl.
For purposes of this section, the behavior is presumed to be regular, routine or
habitual practice is conclusively established by the prior issuance ofwhen three
(3) written warnings have been issued to the same individual within a sixty (60)
day period.  Once three (3) written warnings have been issued within a sixty (60)
day period, it shall not be necessary to again establish regular, routine or habitual
behavior  by  the  issuance  of  written  warnings  for  that  individual.   Regular,
routine or habitual practice may also be established by other evidence. 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ Page 1



   
AI-1396     Item #   24.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Consider And Approve An Ordinance Amending Planned
Development O93-018, 8 Tracts Of Land Totaling Approximately 40.7 Acres
Addressed From 3712 Belt Line Road to 3910 Belt Line Road, In Order To
Grant Additional Allowed Uses And Amend Requirements Relating To
Parking And Building Elevations . Case 1720-Z/Addison Town Center/Cencor
Realty Services, Mr. Bernard Shaw. 

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on October
20, 2015, voted to recommend approval of ordinance amending Planned Development
O93-018, on 8 tracts of land totaling approximately 40.7 acres addressed from 3712 Belt
Line Road to 3910 Belt Line Road, in order to grant additional allowed uses and amend
requirements relating to parking and building elevations, subject to the following
conditions:

The applicant shall install a metal awning over Kroger's main entryway as
shown in previous elevation drawings presented to staff.
The following uses shall be subject to Special Use Permit approval 

Medical and Dental Office
Message and Chiropractor Office
Health Club

Voting Aye: Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith
Voting Nay: none
Absent: Ennis

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends that the ordinance be approved without the added condition
requiring Special Use Permit approval for the Medical and Dental Office, Message and
Chiropractor Office and Health Club uses. These uses are fairly common in retail centers
and typically do not require Special Use Permit approval. In Addison, for example, these
uses are permitted by right in Village on the Parkway and in Vitruvian Park's retail center.

Attachments
1720-Z Council Packet
Ordinance 



Ordinance 



1720-Z 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1720-Z/Addison Town Center. Public hearing, discussion, and 
take action on a recommendation for an ordinance amending Planned Development O93-
018, on 8 tracts of land totaling approximately 40.7 acres addressed from 3712 Belt Line 
Road to 3910 Belt Line Road, in order to grant additional allowed uses and amend 
requirements relating to parking and building elevations, on application from Cencor 
Realty Services, represented by Mr. Bernard Shaw. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

 

 

 

October 16, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1720-Z/Addison Town Center 

LOCATION:      3712-3910 Belt Line Road 

REQUEST: Approval of an ordinance amending various 
requirements of Planned Development O93-
018. 

 
APPLICANT:  Cencor Realty Services, represented by Mr. 

Bernard Shaw. 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: Addison Town Center is generally located on the south east corner of Belt Line 
Road and Marsh Lane. The zoning for the center was established in 1993 through Planned 
Development District O93-018. At the time of construction, the center was anchored by K-
Mart, Winn Dixie, and Comp USA. In the subsequent years, the K-Mart space became 
Target, Winn Dixie became Kroger, and the Comp USA space is now partially occupied by 
Crunch Fitness. 
 
Proposed Plan: The property owner has been working with Kroger to both renovate the 
interior and exterior of their store. As part of this project, Kroger has expressed a desire to 
construct a fuel center in front of their location. To accommodate this, several requirements in 
the current PD need to be amended.  
 
Uses: The existing PD includes a large list of permissible uses typical to retail centers. The 
applicant is requesting the addition of four use categories: 
 

 Medical and Dental Office 
 Massage and Chiropractor Office 
 Health Club 
 Gasoline Service Station (subject to Special Use Permit approval) 

 
 

 



 

The medical and dental office category and the health club category are being added to 
correct a situation that has arisen because these uses incorrectly received permits and are 
now existing uses in the center. That being said, staff believes that these uses are commonly 
found in retail centers like this and do not pose any detrimental impact. Massage and 
Chiropractor Offices are also routinely located in retail spaces. An argument could be made 
that they could fall under medical offices, but staff believes that there is enough of a 
distinction to warrant calling them out separately.  
 
The Gasoline Service Station category is being added in response to Kroger’s request. Staff 
would recommend that this use be allowed with a special use permit. Typically, gasoline 
service stations are not permitted by right, but require a special use permit. This allows the 
Town the ability to review the specific details of the proposed station before approving it. 
 
Exterior Facades: The current PD includes building elevations that dictate the details of the 
building facades. As part of the remodel project, the applicant and Kroger have agreed to 
upgrade and enhance the face of the Kroger store. To accomplish this, the applicant is 
proposing to raise the height of the central portion of Kroger’s frontage with a new parapet 
wall topped with a stepped E.I.F.S. cornice. This will create more of a focal point on the 
building. New colors will also applied to add to the visual appeal of the building. In earlier 
discussions with staff, the applicant indicated that a metal awning would be installed over the 
main entryway to the store. This is not shown in the current elevation, but staff would 
recommend requiring it as a condition of approval.  
 
Parking:  The current PD requires that the site provide 2,025 spaces to accommodate 
430,809 square feet of building area. The addition of a fuel center will result in the loss of 67 
spaces. The applicant is requesting to reduce the required parking to 1,950. Based on staff’s 
observations of the site, the center is over parked and could absorb the loss of parking 
spaces without a negative impact on the center itself or adjacent uses. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH A CONDITION 
 
Addison Town Center is a prominent retail location in Addison. Kroger’s new investment in 
the center will be a positive step for the center in reaching its full potential. Staff believes that 
the proposed changes will benefit the center with no negative effects on the adjacent 
properties. Staff recommends amending the exiting planned development regulations to 
include the new uses, the new façade elevation for Kroger, and the lower parking 
requirement, subject to the following condition: 
 

 The applicant shall install a metal awning over Kroger’s main entryway as shown in 
previous elevation drawings presented to staff. 



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

The center overall has struggled to acquire tenants and 
attract customers. This is especially true of the eastern 
half of the center. 

  

 Safe 
The site has good visual accessibility and is occupied 
most hours of the day. The site is safe. 

  

 Functional 
The design of the center has hampered its ability to com-
pete. The stores are very far from the street and do not 
have visibility from Belt Line Road. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The facades of the center, though brick, are nondescript 
and do note give the center much visual appeal. The im-
provements proposed for the Kroger façade will help im-
prove this. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

The site has a good location for restaurants, retail and 
other support services. 

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

The site meets the Town’s landscape requirements. 

  

 Walkable 
The sidewalks along Belt Line and Marsh are immediately 
back of curb and not pleasant to walk on. The site’s large 
parking area is not pedestrian friendly. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

This site has various challenges due to its dated de-
sign and layout. Additionally, there may not be 
enough of a residential population to support a big 
box center of this size. These are macro-level issues 
with the site, but the minor changes being proposed 
at this time should drive additional traffic to the site. 

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Addison Town Center, 3712-3910 Belt Line Road 1720-Z 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1720-Z/Addison Town Center 
October 20, 2015 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on October 
20, 2015, voted to recommend approval of ordinance amending Planned Development 
O93-018, on 8 tracts of land totaling approximately 40.7 acres addressed from 3712 
Belt Line Road to 3910 Belt Line Road, in order to grant additional allowed uses and 
amend requirements relating to parking and building elevations, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

 The applicant shall install a metal awning over Kroger’s main entryway as shown 
in previous elevation drawings presented to staff. 

 The following uses shall be subject to Special Use Permit approval 
o Medical and Dental Office 
o Message and Chiropractor Office 
o Health Club 

 
Voting Aye:  Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith 
Voting Nay:   none 
Absent:         Ennis 



Case No. 1720-Z/Addison Town Center

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

ORDINANCE NO.  ________

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE
COMPREHENSIVE  ZONING  ORDINANCE  BY  AMENDING  PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT O93-018, ON APPROXIMATELY 40.7 ACRES, ADDRESSED
FROM 3712 BELT LINE ROAD TO 3910 BELT LINE ROAD, TO REVISE THE
PERMITTED  USES,  CERTAIN  FAÇADE  REQUIREMENTS  AND  PARKING
REGULATIONS;  PROVIDING  FOR  A  PENALTY  NOT  TO  EXCEED  TWO
THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A
SEPARATE  OFFENSE  SHALL  BE  DEEMED  COMMITTED  EACH  DAY
DURING  OR  ON  WHICH  A  VIOLATION  OCCURS  OR  CONTINUES;
PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Addison Town Center is a retail shopping center located generally at the
southeast  corner  of  Belt  Line  Road  and  Marsh  Lane  which  is  zoned  Planned  Development
through Ordinance O93-018; and

WHEREAS,  after  due  deliberations  and consideration  of  the  recommendation  of  the
Planning  and  Zoning  Commission,  the  information  received  at  a  public  hearing,  and  other
relevant information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that
this ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community.

NOW THEREFORE, BE  IT  ORDAINED  BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and
correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

Section  2.   That  Section  2  of  Ordinance  O93-018  is  hereby  amended  as  follows.
Additions to the ordinance are shown by text that is italicized, underlined, and in bold font.

SECTION 2. In the hereinabove described land, no land or building shall be used,
erected or converted to any use other than:

Antique shop;
Aquarium;
Art gallery;
Automotive goods; retail sales only
Automotive service, limited to K-Mart store only.
Bakery, retail sales only;
Bank, office, wholesale sales office or sample room;
Barber and beauty shops;
Bird and pet shops retail;
Book or stationery store;
Camera shop;

ORDINANCE NO.  ________



Case No. 1720-Z/Addison Town Center

Candy, cigars and tobaccos, retail sales only;
Caterer and wedding service, offices only;
Cleaning, dyeing and laundry pick-up station for receiving and deliver of
articles to be cleaned;
Cleaning and pressing shops having an area of not more than 6,000 square
feet;
Curtain cleaning shop having an area of not more than 6,000 square feet;
Department store, novelty or variety shop, retail sales only;
Drug store, retail sales only;
Florist, retail sales only;
Furniture store, retail only;
Gasoline Service Station (subject to Special Use Permit approval);
Grocery store, retail sales only;
Hardware,  sporting goods,  toys;  paints,  wallpaper,  clothing,  retail  sales
only;
Health club;
Household and office furniture, furnishings, and appliances, retail;
Job printing;
Jewelry, optical goods, photographic supplies, retail sales only;
Library, rental;
Massage and chiropractor office;
Meat market, retail sales only;
Medical and dental office
Office building;
Photographers or artists studio;
Parking lot without public garage or automobile facilities for the parking
of passenger cars and trucks of less than one (1) ton capacity only;
Professional offices for architect, attorney, engineer and real estate;
Piano and musical instruments, retail sales only;
Restaurants with or without sale of alcohol for on-premise consumption
(subject to Special Use Permit approval)
Retail store/shop for custom work or the making of articles to be sold for
retail on the premises;
Seamstress, dressmaker or tailor;
Shoe repair show, retail sales only;
Studios, dance, music, drama, heath, reducing;
Studio  for  the  display  and  sale  of  glass,  china,  art  objects,  cloth  and
draperies;
Taxi stand;
Washateria,  equipped  with  automatic  washing  machines  of  the  time
customarily  found in a home and where the customers  may personally
supervise the washing and handling of their laundry;
Wearing  apparel,  including  clothing,  shoes,  hats,  millinery  and
accessories;
Accessory building and uses customarily incident to the above uses;

ORDINANCE NO.  ________



Case No. 1720-Z/Addison Town Center

Section 3.  That Section 3 of Ordinance O93-018 is hereby amended to:

(a)Remove  the existing  building  elevation  for  the grocer  and add the  building
elevation attached here to as Appendix A

(b)Revise the total required parking shown on the site plan to 1,950 spaces. 

Section 4.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms
of this  ordinance shall  be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive
Zoning Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a
fine set in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for
violations of Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison.

Section 5.  That it is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered in
its entirety,  as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or
unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not
have  adopted  said  ordinance  if  any part  or  portion  of  said  ordinance  should  be  held  to  be
unconstitutional or void.

Section 6.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance
be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the
provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 7.  That save and except as amended by this Ordinance, Ordinance O93-018 shall
remain in full force and effect.

Section 8.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 
approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance.

PASSED  AND  APPROVED BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS, on this the 10th day of November, 2015.

                                                            ______________________________
                                                                        Todd Meier, Mayor 
ATTEST:

____________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary                                PUBLISHED ON: _____________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

ORDINANCE NO.  ________



Case No. 1720-Z/Addison Town Center

APPENDIX A

ORDINANCE NO.  ________



   
AI-1397     Item #   25.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing,Consider And Approve An Ordinance Approving A Special
Use Permit For A Gasoline Service Station On Property Located At 3770 Belt
Line Road. The Property Is Currently Zoned PD (Planned Development) Through
Ordinance O93-18. Case 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center/CEI Engineering Associates,
Inc./ Mr. Jim Evans. 

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on October
20, 2015, voted to recommend approval of ordinance approving a Special Use Permit for
a gasoline service station on property located at 3770 Belt Line Road which is currently
zoned PD (Planned Development) through Ordinance O93-018, subject to the following
condition: 

Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the gasoline service
station, the property owner shall obtain building permits for and start
construction work on the exterior facade of the grocery store.

Voting Aye: Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith
Voting Nay: none
Absent: Ennis

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1717-SUP Council Packet
1717-SUP Plans
Ordinance 



1717-SUP 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center. Public hearing, discussion, and 
take action on a recommendation for an ordinance approving a Special Use Permit for a 
gasoline service station on property located at 3770 Belt Line Road which is currently 
zoned PD (Planned Development) through Ordinance O93-018, on application from CEI 
Engineering Associates, Inc., represented by Mr. Jim Evans. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

 

 

 

October 16, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center 

LOCATION:      3770 Belt Line Road. 

REQUEST: Approval of a Special Use Permit for a 
gasoline service station. 

 
APPLICANT:  CEI Engineering Associates, Inc, represented 

by Mr. Jim Evans. 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: Kroger is an existing anchor tenant within the Addison Town Center retail 
center. In a separate case (Case 1720-Z), the owner is requesting that various changes be 
made to the Planned Development district regulations for the center. These changes are 
intended to accommodate Kroger’s request to remodel and add a gasoline service station. 
Should those changes be approved, a new use category would be added to allow for a 
gasoline service station subject to the Special Use Permit approval process. 
 
Proposed Plan: Kroger is requesting approval of the newly established Special Use Permit for 
a gasoline service station. The proposed station would be located in the parking lot in front of 
the Kroger store adjacent to the interior drive that runs parallel to Belt Line Road behind the 
row of outlying parcels. The station would include seven pump islands and a 179 square foot 
sales kiosk for the station attendant. These would all be located under a typical canopy 
structure common to most service stations. 
 
Exterior Facades: The kiosk building and canopy columns would be of brick masonry 
construction to match the center. The canopy structure and building would include design 
elements matching Kroger’s brand standards for fuel centers. 
 
Parking:  The gasoline service station will result in a loss of 79 existing parking spaces. 
Another amendment requested to the Planned Development district will allow the center to 
lose these spaces and remain in compliance. The addition of a gasoline service station will 
not increase the parking demand for the property. 
 



 

Landscaping: The location of the proposed gasoline service station will require alteration of 
the existing landscape islands in this part of the center. Three existing islands will be 
removed and replaced with a single five foot wide landscaping island. This will provide a 
small buffer between the fueling area and the interior drive of the center. Three new islands 
will be added to buffer the parking area for Kroger from the fueling station. Overall, these 
changes will result in a slight increase in the landscaped area for the center. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
The Town has been discussing a renovation project with both Kroger and the property owner 
for quite some time. It has always been the intent for Kroger to add a gasoline service station 
as part of this renovation. Accommodating this project requires a two step process. Should 
the PD amendments be approved as part of Case 1720-Z to adjust the overarching zoning 
requirements for the site, staff recommends approval of a Special Use Permit for a gasoline 
service station with no conditions. 



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

The gasoline service station should perform well in this 
location and help drive traffic to the center overall. 

  

 Safe 
The fuel center will be constructed to ensure that it will be 
safe. 

  

 Functional 
The layout of the station is functional and does not impact 
the functionality of the overall site plan. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The structures associated with the station will be of quality 
masonry construction. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

The site has a good location for restaurants, retail and 
other support services. Fuel service will add to the draw of 
the center. 

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

The proposed plan will add additional landscaping to the 
center. 

  

 Walkable 
The sidewalks along Belt Line and Marsh are immediately 
back of curb and not pleasant to walk on. The site’s large 
parking area is not pedestrian friendly. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

The center overall has some macro-level challenges, 
but the Fuel Center itself should be a positive addi-
tion to the center.  

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Kroger Fuel Center, 3770 Belt Line Road 1717-SUP 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 17217-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center 
October 20, 2015 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on October 
20, 2015, voted to recommend approval of ordinance approving a Special Use Permit 
for a gasoline service station on property located at 3770 Belt Line Road which is 
currently zoned PD (Planned Development) through Ordinance O93-018, subject to the 
following condition: 
 

 Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the gasoline service 
station, the property owner shall obtain building permits for and start construction 
work on the exterior facade of the grocery store. 
 

Voting Aye:  Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith 
Voting Nay:   none 
Absent:         Ennis 













Case No. 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

ORDINANCE NO.  015-_____

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE
COMPREHENSIVE  ZONING  ORDINANCE  TO  GRANT  A  SPECIAL  USE
PERMIT FOR A GASOLINE SERVICE STATION ON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 3770  BELT LINE  ROAD;  PROVIDING  A  PENALTY  NOT  TO  EXCEED
TWO THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE
AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY
DURING OR  ON  WHICH A  VIOLATION  OCCURS  OR  CONTINUES;  AND
PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS,  after  due  deliberations  and consideration  of  the  recommendation  of  the
Planning  and  Zoning  Commission,  the  information  received  at  a  public  hearing,  and  other
relevant information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that
this ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community.

NOW THEREFORE, BE  IT  ORDAINED  BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and
correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

Section 2.    That  a  Special  Use Permit  authorizing  a  gasoline service  station on the
property  located  at  3770  Belt  Line  Road  (the  “Property”)  is  hereby  granted  subject  to  the
following conditions:

(a) Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the Property shall be improved in
accordance  with  the  site  plan,  floor  plan,  landscape  plan,  and  building  elevations
which are attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

(b) Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the gasoline service station, the
owner of the Addison Town Center shopping center shall obtain building permits for
and start construction work on the exterior facade of the grocery store in accordance
with the provisions of Ordinance ______________ .

 
Section 3.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms

of this  ordinance shall  be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive
Zoning Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a
fine set in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for
violations of Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison.

Section 4.  That it is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered in
its entirety,  as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or
unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not

Ordinance No.  O15-____



Case No. 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center

have  adopted  said  ordinance  if  any part  or  portion  of  said  ordinance  should  be  held  to  be
unconstitutional or void.

Section 5.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance
be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the
provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 6.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 
approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance.

PASSED  AND  APPROVED BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS, on this the 10th day of November, 2015.

                                                             ______________________________
                                                                        Todd Meier, Mayor 
ATTEST:

____________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

Ordinance No.  O15-____



Case No. 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center
EXHIBIT A

Ordinance No.  O15-____



Case No. 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center
EXHIBIT A

Ordinance No.  O15-____



Case No. 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center
EXHIBIT A

Ordinance No.  O15-____



Case No. 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center
EXHIBIT A

Ordinance No.  O15-____



Case No. 1717-SUP/Kroger Fuel Center
EXHIBIT A

Ordinance No.  O15-____



   
AI-1395     Item #   26.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Consider And Approve An Ordinance Approving A Special
Use Permit For The Sale Of Alcoholic Beverages For On-Premises
Consumption Only On Property Located At 15650 Addison Road On
Application From The Town Of Addison . Case 1721-SUP/Addison Conference
and Theatre Centre/Mr. Mark Gooch. 

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on October
20, 2015, voted to recommend approval of ordinance granting a Special Use Permit for
the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only on property located at
15650 Addison Road, subject to no conditions.

Voting Aye: Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith
Voting Nay: none
Absent: Ennis

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1721-SUP Council Packet
Ordinance 



1721-SUP 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1721-SUP/Addison Conference and Theatre Centre. Public 
hearing, discussion, and take action on a recommendation for an ordinance approving a 
Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only 
on property located at 15650 Addison Road on application from the Town of Addison, 
represented by Mr. Mark Gooch. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

 

 

 

 

October 16, 2015 

STAFF REPORT  

RE: Case 1721-SUP/Addison Conference 
and Theatre Centre 

LOCATION:      15650 Addison Road 

REQUEST: Approval of a Special Use Permit for the 
sale of alcoholic beverages for on-
premises consumption only 

APPLICANT:  The Town of Addison, represented by Mr. 
Mark Gooch 

DISCUSSION: 

Background: The Addison Conference and Theatre Centre was constructed in 1991 on 
5.899 acres at the corner of Addison Road and Addison Circle. The complex consists of 
three buildings, the Conference Centre, the Theatre, and the Stone Cottage. Each of 
these facilities is owned and operated by the Town and can be rented out for various 
meetings, events, and productions. 
 
Proposed Plan: The Water Tower Theatre has requested permission to sell alcoholic 
beverages to patrons during their productions. The Town, as the landlord, has reviewed 
and approved this request. However, in order to get licensed by the TABC, a Special Use 
Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption is required. This 
would apply to all three facilities. 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 

The Town and the WaterTower Theatre have a long history working together and they 
have been a good partner. Many theatres venues are now serving alcoholic beverages 
during their productions. The ability to serve alcoholic beverages should help our Theatre 
compete on a full service level. Staff recommends approval of the request for a Special 
Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption subject to 
no conditions. 



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

This property is a competitive meeting and events venue. 
The theatre produces many successful productions a 
year. The ability to serve alcohol will allow them to be 
more competitive. 

  

 Safe The site is safe. 

  

 Functional The property functions well. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The site is well designed and is visually appealing. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

The site’s location in Addison Circle adds to the positive 
mixed use environment of that neighborhood. 

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

The  property is operated in an environmentally responsi-
ble manner. 

  

 Walkable The site is walkable from Addison Circle. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

The Conference and Theatre Center is a unique amen-
ity to the Town. The ability to service alcohol will al-
low the facility to provide additional offerings to their 
clients and patrons. 

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Addison Conference and Theatre Centre, 15650 Addison Road 1721-SUP 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1721-SUP/Addison Conference and Theatre Centre 
October 20, 2015 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on October 
20, 2015, voted to recommend approval of ordinance granting a Special Use Permit for 
the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only on property located at 
15650 Addison Road, subject to no conditions. 
 
Voting Aye:  Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer, Smith 
Voting Nay:   none 
Absent:         Ennis 



Case No. 1721-SUP/Addison Conference and Theatre Centre

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

ORDINANCE NO.  ________

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE
COMPREHENSIVE  ZONING  ORDINANCE  TO  GRANT  A  SPECIAL  USE
PERMITS  FOR  THE  SALE  OF  ALCOHOLIC  BEVERAGES  FOR  ON-
PREMISES CONSUMPTION FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 15650 ADDISON
ROAD; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED TWO THOUSAND AND
NO/100  DOLLARS  ($2,000.00)  FOR  EACH  OFFENSE  AND  A  SEPARATE
OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR ON
WHICH  A  VIOLATION  OCCURS  OR  CONTINUES;  PROVIDING  FOR
SAVINGS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the property located at 15650 Addison Road is the Addison Conference and
Theatre  Centre  with  three  buildings  including  the  Conference  Centre,  Theatre,  and  Stone
Cottage; and

WHEREAS,  after  due  deliberations  and consideration  of  the  recommendation  of  the
Planning  and  Zoning  Commission,  the  information  received  at  a  public  hearing,  and  other
relevant information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that
this ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community.

NOW THEREFORE, BE  IT  ORDAINED  BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and
correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

Section 2.  That a Special Use Permit authorizing the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-
premises consumption only, on the property located at 15650 Belt Line Road, is hereby granted.

Section 3.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms
of this  ordinance shall  be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive
Zoning Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a
fine set in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for
violations of Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison.

Section 4.  That it is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered in
its entirety,  as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or
unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not
have  adopted  said  ordinance  if  any part  or  portion  of  said  ordinance  should  be  held  to  be
unconstitutional or void.

ORDINANCE NO.  ________



Case No. 1721-SUP/Addison Conference and Theatre Centre

Section 5.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance
be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the
provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 6.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 
approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance.

PASSED  AND  APPROVED BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS, on this the 10th day of November, 2015.

                                                             ______________________________
                                                                        Todd Meier, Mayor 
ATTEST:

____________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

PUBLISHED ON: _____________________

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

________________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

ORDINANCE NO.  ________



   
AI-1398     Item #   27.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing,Consider And Approve An Ordinance Amending Article XXI
(Landcaping Regulations) By Revising The Requirements Relating To The
Maintenance Of Irrigation Systems And Enforcement.  Case 1722-Z/Town of
Addison/Charles Goff.

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on
September 15, 2015, voted to table this item. It was reconsidered at a special meeting
on November 3, 2015 where the Commission recommend approval of an ordinance
amending Article XXI (Landscaping Regulations) of the Zoning Code by revising the
requirements relating to the maintenance of irrigation systems and enforcement subject
to the ordinance being written so that the regulation of irrigation systems be applicable to
all properties in the Town.

Voting Aye: Ennis, Griggs, Schaeffer, Robbins, Robinson
Voting Nay: Smith
Abstain: none
Absent: Morgan

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance
Supplemental Information 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

ORDINANCE NO.                 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,  TEXAS AMENDING THE
CODE OF ORDINANCES, APPENDIX A – ZONING, ARTICLE XXI BY ADDING
LANDSCAPING REGULATIONS  RELATED  TO RAIN  SHUT-OFF  DEVICES
FOR  IRRIGATION  SYSTEMS  AND  GRANTING  ENFORCEMENT
AUTHORITY  TO  THE  DIRECTOR  OF  THE  PARKS  DEPARTMENT;
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF
TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having full
power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and its Home
Rule Charter; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Commission of Environmental Quality promulgated regulations related
to irrigation systems installed throughout the State of Texas; and

WHEREAS, the  Texas  Administrative  Code  requires  all  irrigators,  installers,  irrigation
technicians, and inspectors to conform to the current adopted rules of the State of Texas and any local
rules that do not conflict with the State’s rules, or that are more stringent than the State rules; and

WHEREAS, installation of water conservation technology in irrigation systems preserves a finite
resource and allows the City to plan for efficient use of water resources; and

WHEREAS, irrigations systems that operate during freezing temperatures create a hazard to the
public by icing roads and sidewalks; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council, acting pursuant to law, deems it advisable to adopt regulations
requiring  the  installation  of  rain,  moisture,  and  freeze  shut-off  devises  on  irrigations  systems  and
determines that such devices can efficiently be installed on existing irrigations systems when repairs or
maintenance occur;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF
ADDISON, TEXAS THAT:

Section 1. The Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) of the Town of Addison, Texas Appendix A
(Zoning), Article XXI (Landscaping Regulations), Section 10 (Landscape Maintenance) of the Code is
hereby amended to add a new Subsection (C) which shall read in its entirety as follows:

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                   
Page 1 of 4



(C) Rain, Moisture, and Freeze Shut-Off Devices

(1) All  automatically  controlled  irrigation  systems  required  to  be  installed  by  a
Landscape  or  Irrigation  Plan  must  include  rain,  moisture,  and  freeze  shut-off
devices and sensors or other technology designed to inhibit or interrupt operation of
the irrigation system during periods of moisture, rainfall, or freezing temperatures.
Following adoption of this ordinance, all properties identified in Subsection 10(C)
(3) where a new certificate of occupancy is requested will be required to submit a
letter  from  a  licensed  irrigator  that  the  irrigation  system  complies  with  the
provisions of this ordinance and includes an operational sensor or other technology
designed to inhibit or interrupt operation of the irrigation system during periods of
freezing weather and moisture or rainfall.  Repairs to existing automatic irrigation
systems on all properties identified in Subsection 10(C)(3) that require replacement
of an existing controller must include an operational sensor or other technology
designed to inhibit or interrupt operation of the irrigation system during periods of
freezing weather and moisture or rainfall.

(2) It shall be unlawful to permit or allow any irrigation system to spray water over surfaces made of
concrete, asphalt, brick, wood, stones set in mortar, or any other impervious material such as, but not
limited to, walls, fences sidewalks, and streets.  Irrigation systems adjacent to any street, sidewalk, alley,
highway or parking lot shall not operate so as to cause damage to other property or to interfere with the
free movement of any vehicle or pedestrian. 

(3) This Subsection applies to all property within the city limits of the Town of Addison.

Section 2. The Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) of the Town of Addison, Texas Appendix A
(Zoning), Article XXI (Landscaping Regulations), Section 11 (Enforcement) is hereby amended to read in
its entirety as follows:  

Section 11. - Enforcement. 

(A) The  provisions  of  this  Article  may  be  enforced  against  any  property  owner  or
property manager or tenant or person or entity in possession of the property for violation of
the provisions contained herein.   In addition to the issuance of a citation  as provided in
subsection (B) below which does not require notice, following continued violation after ten
days’ written notice of the violation to any of the responsible parties identified above, the
Town shall have the right to:

(1) Revoke  any  building  permits,  certificates  of  occupancy,  or
other approvals or permits previously issued for the premises.

(2) Withhold  approval  for  building  permits,  certificates  of
occupancy,  and  other  permits  or  approvals  relating  to  the
premises.

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                   
Page 2 of 4



(3) Enter  onto  the  premises  and perform care  and maintenance.
The property owner and tenants of any part of the premises on
which such work is performed shall  jointly and severally be
liable for the costs of such work and shall promptly reimburse
the town for such costs. If such property owner or tenant shall
fail  to  reimburse  the town within  30 days  after  receipt  of  a
statement for such work from the town, the said indebtedness
shall be a debt of all of said persons jointly and severally, and
shall constitute a lien against the premises on which the work
was performed. The lien may be evidenced by an affidavit of
costs filed in the real property records. 

(B) Any person that violates any of the provisions of this article shall be deemed guilty of
a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined in a sum not to exceed $2,000.00
and a separate  offense shall  be deemed committed  upon each day during or  on which a
violation occurs or continues.

(C) Enforcement of this Article shall be the responsibility of the Building
Official, code enforcement officer, police officer or other designee of
the City Manager.  It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere or
prevent authorized enforcement personnel in the performance of their
duties.

Section 3. Recitals.   The  above  and  foregoing  recitals  are  true  and  correct  and  are
incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes.

Section 4. Savings; Repealer.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City and shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except in those instances where the
provisions of those ordinances are in direct conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance.  Provided,
however, that the repeal of such ordinances or parts of such ordinances and the amendments and changes
made by this Ordinance, shall not affect any right, property or claim which was or is vested in the City, or
any act  done,  or  right  accruing or  accrued,  or  established,  or  any suit,  action  or  proceeding had or
commenced before the time when this Ordinance shall take effect; nor shall said repeals, amendments or
changes affect any offense committed, or an penalty or forfeiture incurred, or any suit or prosecution
pending at the time when this Ordinance shall take effect under any of the ordinances or sections thereof
so repealed, amended or changed; and to that extent and for that purpose the provisions of such ordinances
or parts of such ordinances shall be deemed to remain and continue in full force and effect. 

Section 5. Severability. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases, clauses and words of
this  Ordinance are severable,  and if  any section,  paragraph,  sentence,  phrase,  clause or word in  this
Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid or unconstitutional by a
Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed such remaining portions of this
Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                   
Page 3 of 4



Section 6. Penalty.  Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine not to
exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and every such day such
offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense.

Section   7. Effective  Date.   This  Ordinance  shall  take  from  and  after  its  adoption  and
publication as required by law.  

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the ______
day of _____________, 2015.

                                                                                  
Todd Meier, Mayor
Town of Addison, Texas

ATTEST:

                                                                                  
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

                                                                                  
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY ORDINANCE NO.                   
Page 4 of 4



 

 

 

October 30, 2015 

STAFF REPORT 

RE:                           Case 1722-Z/Town of Addison 

LOCATION: N/A – This is a te xt amendment to the zoning 
code. 

REQUEST:   Approval of an ordinance amending Article 
XXI (Landscaping Regulations) by revising 
the requirements for maintenance of irrigation 
systems and enforcement. 

APPLICANT:  Town of Addison, represented by Mr. Charles 
Goff 

 

CASE HISTORY: 
 
The Commission voted to table this item at t he October 20, 2015 meeting and requested that 
staff consider revisions to the proposed am endments. In further discussion with the City 
Attorney, staff is bringing the proposal bac k as originally submitted and will be prepared to  
discuss in more detail at the meeting. 
 

DISCUSSION: 

Background: From time to time, situations occur where property  owners do not shut off their  
irrigation systems when the temperature is at or below freezing. This can cause water to spray 
on to streets and sidewalks, acc umulate and turn to ice. This creates a hazardous condition. 
Staff has been asked to strengt hen our current regulations in order to prevent this from 
occurring. 
 
Addison’s Landscape regulations are part of the zoning code. This requires that any change to 
these regulations go through the zoning process for adoption. 
 
Current Request: Staff is proposing to revise Article XXI (Landscaping Reg ulations), Section 
10 (Landscape Maintenance) to add several new requirements. The first would require that all 



Case 1722-Z/Town of Addison  Page  2 
October 20, 2015 
 

automatically controlled irrigation systems install a rain, moisture a nd freeze shut-off devices, 
sensors or other technology designed to inhibit or interrupt operation of the  irrigation system 
during periods of moisture, rainfall, or freez ing temperatures. Existing systems would need t o 
be brought into compliance when repairs are necessary or if there is a change on the property 
which requires a new certificate of occupancy. 
 
The proposed new requirement s would also prohi bit spraying water over surfaces made of 
concrete, asphalt, brick, wood, stones set in mortar, or any other impervious material.  
Furthermore, systems adjacent to streets, sidewalks, alleys, and parking lots must not cause 
damage to other property or interfere with the free movement of vehicles or pedestrians. 
 
These new regulations would apply to all zoni ng districts which are bound by the landscape 
ordinance. This is every property except those zoned in one of the Town’s residential districts 
(R-1, R-2, R-3, and R-16). 
 
Section 11 (Enforcement) is also being amended to  grant authority to t he police department, 
the building official or the city manager’s de signee to enforce these requirements. Should a 
property be found in violation of these requirements, they can be cited by the Town. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 
 
The proposed changes will bring Town requirements in line with current TCEQ regulations with 
regards to rain/freeze sensors. The ne w requirements will limit  the lik elihood of irrigation 
systems causing haz ardous conditions during co ld weather and better enable the Town to 
respond when a situation arises to make sure  that it does not occur repeatedly.  Staff 
recommends approval, subject to no conditions. 



Case 1722-Z/Town of Addison 
November 3, 2015 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on September 
15, 2015, voted to table this item. It was reconsidered at a special meeting on November 
3, 2015 where the Commission recommend approval of an ordinance amending Article 
XXI (Landscaping Regulations) of the Zoning Code by revising the requirements relating 
to the maintenance of irrigation systems and enforcement subject to the ordinance being 
written so that the regulation of irrigation systems be applicable to all properties in the 
Town. 
 
Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Schaeffer, Robbins, Robinson 
Voting Nay:   Smith 
Abstain: none 
Absent: Morgan 



   
AI-1364     Item #   28.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Approve
A Ground Lease Assignment From Tailwind Worldwide To Mills Group, Inc.
On Addison Airport For Office Space At 4584 Claire Chennault And The
Creation Of A Leasehold Mortgage.

BACKGROUND:
On June 17, 1981, the Town of Addison, Addison Airport of Texas, Inc. (Landlord), and
Donham Oil Tool Company (Donham) entered into a ground lease for certain real
property located at 4584 Claire Chennault Drive. By virtue of subsequent assignments
and conveyances, Tailwind Worldwide LP, acquired the existing building improvements
and underlying leasehold interests from Cherry Air, Inc. in December, 2011.

The subject ground lease consists of 35,000 square feet of real property located at 4584
Claire Chennault Drive with 12,185 square feet of metal-clad hangar space, 1,500
square feet of office space, limited off-street parking and 11,350 square feet of aircraft
ramp subject to the Reciprocal Easement Agreement described above. The permitted
use of the leased premises as provided for in the Ground Lease includes the typical
aeronautical uses found in most other Addison Airport ground leases, however a limiting
provision added to the terms further restricts the permitted to corporate aircraft storage
only. This provision has proven to be somewhat ambiguous, however, has been
interpreted in the past by the Airport to mean for only aircraft owned, leased or under the
operational control of the tenant could be stored on the premises (storage of third-party
aircraft not permitted).

The terms of the ground lease requires that the Town consider and consent to the
proposed sale and assignment of the Tailwind Worldwide, LP (Tailwind) ground
leasehold interests to Mills Group, Inc. a Texas corporation (Mills Group). In association
with the assignment of the Ground Lease and the purchase of the improvements, Mills
Group is requesting the Town's consent to the creation of a leasehold mortgage
pursuant to the terms of an estoppel agreement between the Town and the assignee's
lender.

The Ground Lease commenced June 30, 1982 and has a forty (40) year term, which is
scheduled to expire June 29, 2022. Upon the term expiration the ownership of the
building improvements will revert to the Town.

The current ground rental is $1,143.04 monthly or $13,716.48 annually. The rental is
regarded to be below the prevailing market, however the contract rate is indicative of the



impact the restricted permitted use, Reciprocal Easement Agreement and the smaller
than normal aircraft apron and off-street parking has on the leasehold value. The next
scheduled rental adjustment (based on CPI) is 7/1/2016 and occurs every other year for
the duration of the remaining term.

Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation led by Cameron Leggett, with corporate offices at
10424 Marsh Lane, Dallas, is engaged in real estate investment activities including the
construction and renovation of commercial and residential properties. Mills Group
corporate headquarters will relocate to and will occupy part of the office space at 4584
Claire Chennault and the remainder will be subleased. The hangar space will be
occupied by RR Investments, Inc. d/b/a Million Air, and will be used solely for the
storage of aircraft owned and/or under their direct operational control. Addison Airport
will serve as the base for these aircraft.

The assignee is also requesting the Town consent to the creation of a leasehold
mortgage pursuant to the terms of the proposed bank estoppel letter. The proposed
bank estoppel letter is from Texas Security Bank, who intends to make a $200K loan to
the assignee, with the proceeds from the loan to be used for the acquisition of the
leasehold interest and building improvements. The note will be secured with a leasehold
deed of trust referencing the real property subject to the ground lease. The lien created
by the leasehold deed of trust will be subordinate and inferior to the Landlord's lien
created by the Ground Lease. The terms and conditions of the estoppel letter is
consistent with the Town's practice regarding such matters.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Yes/No:
Funding Source:
Amount: N/A

Attachments
Resolution
Supplemental Information



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING AN ASSIGNMENT OF GROUND 
LEASE BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TAILWIND 
WORLDWIDE, LP AND MILLS GROUP, INC. FOR COMMERCIAL 
AVIATION PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4584 CLAIRE CHENNAULT, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1. The Assignment of Ground Lease between the Town of Addison and 
Tailwind Worldwide, LP and Mills Group, Inc. for commercial aviation property located at 4584 
Claire Chennault, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby 
approved and the City Manager is authorized to execute the agreement. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this 
the 10th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
       ___________________________  
       Todd Meier, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Laura Bell, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT A 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

- M E M O R A N D U M -  
 

To: Lisa Pyles, Director of Infrastructure & Development Services 

From: Bill Dyer, Real Estate Manager 

CC: Joel Jenkinson, Airport Director 

Date: November 2, 2015 

Re:  

A Request for the Consideration and Consent of the Town of Addison Regarding 

the Assignment of Ground Lease #0630-3202 (Tailwind Worldwide, LP) 

commonly known as 4584 Claire Chennault Drive at Addison Airport to Mills 

Group, Inc. and its creation of a Leasehold Mortgage 

 

 

Summary of Requested Approval and Recommendation by Airport Manager:  

Airport Management is requesting the Town’s consideration and consent to the proposed 

sale and assignment of the Tailwind Worldwide, LP (Tailwind) ground leasehold interests 

to Mills Group, Inc., a Texas 

corporation (Mills Group).  In 

association with the assignment 

of the Ground Lease and the 

purchase of the improvements, 

Mills Group is requesting the 

Town’s consent to the creation of 

a leasehold mortgage pursuant to 

the terms of an estoppel 

agreement between the Town 

and the assignee’s lender. 

William M. Dyer 
Real Estate Manager 
16051 Addison Road 
Suite #220 
Addison, Texas 75001 
 
Main:   972-392-4850 
Direct:  972-392-4856 
Fax:       972-788-9334 
bill.dyer@addisonairport.net 

Figure 1:  Arial View of Subject Property with approximate 

boundaries 



Airport Management has reviewed the above matter and recommends the Town give its 

consent as requested.  The city attorney has reviewed the proposed Assignment to Ground 

Lease Agreement and the proposed bank estoppel letter and find them acceptable to form 

(each attached hereto to be substantially in the form of Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2 

respectively). 

 

Background Information: 

On June 17, 1981, the City of Addison, Addison Airport of Texas, Inc. (Landlord) and 

Donham Oil Tool Company (Donham) entered into a ground lease for certain real property 

located at 4584 Claire Chennault Drive.   Donham improved the property as required by 

the ground lease.  By virtue of subsequent assignments and conveyances Tailwind acquired 

the existing building improvements and underlying leasehold interests from the Estate of 

James Donaldson d.b.a. Cherry Air, Inc. in December of 2011. 

 

The permitted use of the leased premises as provided for in the Ground Lease includes the 

typical aeronautical uses found in most other Addison Airport ground leases, however a 

limiting provision added to the terms further restricts the permitted use to “corporate 

aircraft storage only.”  This provision has proven to be somewhat ambiguous, however, 

has been interpreted in the past by the Airport to mean for only aircraft owned, leased or 

“under the operational control” of the tenant or subtenants could be stored on the premises 

(storage of third-party aircraft not permitted).  Cherry Air and Tailwind were both 

charter/cargo operators and stored and maintained on the premises only the aircraft that 

were owned, leased or under their direct operational control. 

 

The leased premises are subject to a Reciprocal Easement Agreement with the adjoining 

and adjacent ground tenant Doyle Hartman (Hartman).  Inclusive of the ramp area fronting 

both hangars, each party gives the right to access the other's aircraft ramp for the purpose 

of aircraft, vehicular and pedestrian movement (to the extent permitted by the Airport Rules 

and Regulations).  Furthermore, Hartman has ingress/egress for the purpose of vehicular 

and pedestrian traffic over Tailwind’s dedicated driveway, giving Hartman legal access to 

his off-street parking directly in front of his hangar facility. 

  

Current Status: 

The subject ground lease consists of 35,000 square feet, or .803 acres, of real property 

located at 4584 Claire Chennault Drive with 12,185 square feet of metal-clad hangar space, 

1,500 square feet of office space, limited off-street parking and 11,350 square feet of 

aircraft ramp subject to the Reciprocal Easement Agreement described above. 

 

The Ground Lease commenced June 30, 1982 and has a forty (40) year term, which is 

scheduled to expire June 29, 2022, or just less than 7 years from now.  Upon the term 

expiration the ownership of the building improvements are expected to revert to the Town.   

Presently it is the strategic objective of the Airport not to grant any term extension or 

renewal of the Ground Lease in order for the Town to take full control of the property, a 

position consistent with the adopted 2013 Airport Strategic Plan. 

 



The Mill’s Group acquisition of the leasehold is with full and complete knowledge and 

understanding of the Airport’s current position.  Provided the ground tenant is not in default 

and remains good standing with the Town, Mills Group could be considered to continue 

their use and occupancy of the premises subject to an at-market commercial hangar lease 

arrangement with the Town as landlord. 

 

The current ground rental is $1,143.04 monthly or $13,716.48 annually.  The rental is 

regarded to be below the prevailing market, however the contract rate is indicative of the 

impact the restricted permitted use, Reciprocal Easement Agreement and the smaller than 

normal aircraft apron and off-street parking has on the leasehold value.  The next scheduled 

rental adjustment (based on CPI) is 7/1/2016 and occurs every other year for the duration 

of the remaining term. 

 

Property Description  Ground Lease Information 

Date of Report 10/15/2015  Lease # 0630-3202 

Property Number 0630-32  Tenant Name Tailwind Worldwide, LP 

Property Address 4584 Claire Chennault Drive  Doing Business As Tailwind Worldwide, LP 

Ramp Address T-13  Primary Contact: Michele Wilkinson 

Property Type Hangar with Office  Primary Contact Phone: 972-380-4407 

Land Area 35,000  Lease Type Ground Lease 

Hangar Area 12,185  Lease Commencement Date  6/30/1982 

Office/Shop Area 1,500  Lease Expiration Date 6/29/2022 

Total Building Area 13,685  Years Remaining in Term 6.7 

Year Built 1981  Current Monthly Rent  $1,143.04 

Est. Economic Life 40  Current Annual Rent  $13,716.48 

End of Eco. Life 2021  Annual Rent /SF Land  $0.39 

% Obsolescent 85%  Est. Remaining Contract Rent $96,480  

Ramp Area 11,350  Next Rent Adjustment Date 07/01/16 - CPI every 2 years 

       

 

The current ground tenant, Tailwind Worldwide, LP has experienced a significant shift and 

decline in their business operations over the past couple of years.  Consequently they have 

been actively seeking to divest their leasehold interests at Addison Airport in connection 

with their corporate restructuring. 

 

Background of Proposed Assignee: 

Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation led by Cameron Leggett, with corporate offices at 

10424 Marsh Lane, Dallas, is engaged in real estate investment activities including the 

construction and renovation of commercial and residential properties.  Mills Group’s 

corporate headquarters will relocate to and will occupy part of the office space at 4584 

Claire Chennault and the remainder will be subleased.  Although not made as a requirement 

to the Assignment, Mills Group intends to renovate the interior and exterior of the entire 

facility to improve aesthetics.  Mr. Leggett’s introduction to the airport was in 1995 when 

he attended flight school and would earn funds for flight time by cleaning aircraft. 

 



The hangar space will be occupied by RR Investments, Inc. d/b/a Million Air, and will be 

used solely for the storage of aircraft owned and/or under their direct operational control.  

Addison Airport will serve as the base for these aircraft. Repair and maintenance is not 

planned to be provided or performed within the leased premises but, rather, at approved 

facilities elsewhere on the airfield.  Aircraft stored will be those not flown as regularly so 

the movement of these aircraft should be infrequent and not conflict with the Reciprocal 

Easement Agreement described above. 

 

The assignee is also requesting the Town to consent to the creation of a leasehold mortgage 

pursuant to the terms of the proposed bank estoppel letter substantially in the form as 

attached.  The proposed bank estoppel letter is from Texas Security Bank, who intends to 

make a $200K loan to the assignee, with the proceeds from the loan to be used for the 

acquisition of the leasehold interest and building improvements.  The note will be secured 

with a leasehold deed of trust referencing the real property subject to the ground lease.  The 

lien created by the leasehold deed of trust will be subordinate and inferior to the Landlord’s 

lien created by the Ground Lease.  The terms and conditions of the estoppel letter is 

consistent with the Town’s practice regarding such matters. 

 

Conclusion and Recommendation of Airport Manager: 

Tailwind Worldwide, LP is requesting the Town’s consideration and consent to the sell 

and assignment of their ground leasehold interests located at 4584 Claire Chennault Drive 

at Addison Airport to Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation.  Mills Group, Inc. is acquiring 

the property subject to the current terms and conditions of the Ground Lease, including but 

not limited to, the remaining lease term of less than 7 years. The proposed transaction does 

not have any financial or immediate economic impact to the Airport. 

 

Airport Management recommends the Town give its consent to the requested action and 

authorize the City Manager to execute the Assignment of Ground Lease and bank estoppel 

letter on behalf of the Town of Addison.  The city attorney has reviewed each of the 

referenced agreements, attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2, and find them acceptable 

to form. 

 

 

 

Exhibits 

 

 Exhibit 1: Proposed Assignment of Ground Lease Agreement Form and Consent 

of Landlord 

 Exhibit 2: Bank Estoppel Agreement 

 

 

 

 



Exhibit 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 6 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    §  ASSIGNMENT OF GROUND LEASE 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
 

This Assignment of Ground Lease (the “Assignment”) is entered into and 
effective as of ____________________ 2015, at Addison, Texas, by and between 
Tailwind Worldwide, LP, a Texas limited partnership (herein referred to as “Assignor”) 
and Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation (herein referred to as “Assignee”). 
 
 WHEREAS, a Ground Lease was executed on June 17, 1981 between the City of 
Addison, Addison Airport of Texas, Inc., and Donham Oil Tool Company by the terms of 
which certain real property located at 4584 Claire Chennault (the "Demised Premises"), 
Addison Airport within the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) and owned by the City 
was leased to Donham Oil Tool Company; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Lease dated June 28, 1983, the Ground Lease 
was assigned from Donham Oil Tool Company, as Assignor, to Airport Associates, 
LTD., a Texas limited partnership, as Assignee; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Lease dated January 3, 1989, the Ground 
Lease was assigned from Airport Associates, LTD., as Assignor, to James Donaldson and 
John Barbee, each Texas individuals d.b.a. Addison Aircraft Storage, as Assignee; and 
 

WHEREAS, by that certain General Warranty Deed executed July 17, 1990, and 
recorded in the Dallas County Clerk's Official Public Records ("OPR") in Book/Volume 
90155, Page 3379 whereby John M. Barbee granted, sold and conveyed to James D. 
Donaldson any and all right, title and interest, subject to all recorded and unrecorded 
encumbrances, in and to the Demised Premises; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or before July 9, 2007 James Donald Donaldson died and by that 

certain Letter Testamentary (No. PB1-359-2007) given by Probate Court No. 1, Collin 
County, Texas, on said date appointed Kenneth Charles Donaldson as Independent 
Executor of the Estate of James Donald Donaldson; and  

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to James Donald Donaldson’s Last Will and Testament, all 
right, title and interest, subject to all recorded and unrecorded encumbrances, in and to 
the Demised Premises were transferred to the James Donald Donaldson Estate Trust; and  

 
WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Lease dated December 20, 2011, the Ground 

Lease was assigned from the James Donald Donaldson Estate Trust and the Estate of 
James Donald Donaldson, as Assignor, to Tailwind Worldwide, LP, a Texas limited 
partnership, as Assignee as recorded in the Dallas County Clerk’s Official Public Records 
(“OPR”) as Document #201100339045; and 

 



 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Assignment of Lease Dated December 20, 2011 
(OPR Instrument #201100339045) the parties acknowledge and agree the boundary 
survey dated November 7, 2011 prepared by TerraCorp Associates, LLC containing .803 
acres described therein is the true and correct legal description of the demised premises (a 
true and correct copy of said Survey is attached and incorporated herein by reference as 
Exhibit “A”); and 

 
WHEREAS, by virtue of such assignments, amendments and/or modifications 

made to the Ground Lease, Assignor is the Tenant under the Ground Lease (a true and 
correct copy of said Ground Lease in its entirety with all hereinabove said assignments, 
amendments and/modifications made thereto are attached and incorporated herein by 
reference as Exhibit "B"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ground Lease is subject to that certain Reciprocal Easement 

Agreement first entered into and made effective June 28, 1983 by and between Donham 
Oil Tool Company, Inc. and Airport Associates, Ltd., as filed and recorded in the Dallas 
County, Texas  OPR as Book/Volume 84248 Page 4110, the same having been amended 
by that certain First Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement entered to and made 
effective December 19, 2011 by and between Doyle Hartman and Margaret M. Hartman 
d/b/a Doyle Hartman, Oil Operator and the James Donald Donaldson Estate Trust and the 
Estate of James Donald Donaldson as filed and record in the Dallas County, Texas OPR 
as Instrument #201100339044 (the “Reciprocal Easement,” which a true and correct copy 
as amended and modified is attached hereto and incorporated herein by references as 
Exhibit “C”); and 

  
 WHEREAS, the Ground Lease provides that, upon the expiration or termination 
of that certain agreement referred to and defined in the Ground Lease as the “Base Lease” 
(and being an Agreement for Operation of the Addison Airport between the City and 
Addison Airport of Texas, Inc.), the City is entitled to all of the rights, benefits and 
remedies, and will perform the duties, covenants and obligations, of the Landlord under 
the Ground Lease; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the said Base Lease has expired and the City is the Landlord under 
the Ground Lease; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Ground Lease provides in Section 9 thereof that, without the 
prior written consent of the Landlord, the Tenant may not assign the Ground Lease or any 
rights of Tenant under the Ground Lease (except as provided therein), and that any 
assignment must be expressly subject to all the terms and provisions of the Ground 
Lease, and that any assignment must include a written agreement from the Assignee 
whereby the Assignee agrees to be bound by the terms and provisions of the Ground 
Lease; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Assignor desires to assign the Ground Lease to Assignee, and 
Assignee desires to accept the Assignment thereof in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Assignment. 



 
 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, 
covenants, and conditions contained herein, the sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto, each intending to be legally bound agree as follows: 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 1. Assignor hereby assigns, bargains, sells, and conveys to Assignee, 
effective as of the date above, all of Assignor’s right, title, duties, responsibilities, and 
interest in and to the Ground Lease, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, the same being 
subject to Reciprocal Easement, attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, TO HAVE AND TO 
HOLD the same, for the remaining term thereof, and Assignor does hereby bind itself and 
its successors and assigns to warrant and forever defend the same unto Assignee against 
every person or persons lawfully claiming an part thereof through Assignor. 
 
 2. Prior to the effective date of this Assignment, Assignee agrees to pay an 
Assignment Fee in the amount of Four Hundred Fifty Dollars and no/100 ($450.00) to 
Landlord. 
 

3. Assignee hereby agrees to and shall be bound by and comply with all of 
the terms, provisions, duties, conditions, and obligations of tenant under the Ground 
Lease. For purposes of notice under the Ground Lease, the address of Assignee is: 

Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation 
Attn: Cameron Leggett 
10424 Marsh Lane 
Dallas, TX 75229 

 
4. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or be deemed to modify, 

alter, amend or change any term or condition of the Ground Lease, except as set forth 
herein. 
 
 5. The above and foregoing premises and recitals to this Agreement are 
incorporated and made part of this Assignment, and Assignor and Assignee both warrant 
and represent that such premises and statements, and all other provisions of this 
Assignment, are true and correct, and that in giving consent, Landlord (as defined in the 
Consent of Landlord attached hereto) is entitled to rely upon such representations and 
statements. 
 

6. Assignor acknowledges that in addition to any other remedies provided in 
the Ground Lease or by law, Landlord may at its own option, collect directly from the 
Assignee all rents becoming due under this Assignment and apply such rent against any 
sums due to Landlord.  No such collection by Landlord from any such Assignee or 
subtenant shall release Assignor from the payment or performance of Assignor’s 
obligations under the Ground Lease. 

 



 
 

7. The undersigned representatives of the Assignor and Assignee have the 
necessary authority to execute this Assignment on behalf of each of the respective parties 
hereto, and Assignor and Assignee certify one to the other that any necessary resolutions 
or other act extending such authority have been duly passed and are now in full force and 
effect. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor and Assignee have executed and delivered 
this Assignment on the day and the year first set forth above. 
 
     ASSIGNOR: 
 

Tailwind Worldwide, LP, a Texas limited 
partnership 

 
     __________________________________________  

Michele Wilkinson, President of Tailwind 
International, Inc., a member of Tailwind 
Worldwide, LP, its general partner 

  
and, 

 
ASSIGNEE: 
 
Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation 

      
       
     __________________________________________  

Cameron Leggett, President of Mills Group, Inc.  



 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Michele 
Wilkinson, president of Tailwind International, Inc., a member of Tailwind Worldwide, 
LP, its general partner known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that she executed the same for the 
purposes and consideration therein stated. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this ______ day of ________________, 
2015. 
 
 
[SEAL] 
      
 ____________________________________ 
  Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
  
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared, Cameron 
Leggett, president of Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation, known to me to be the 
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein stated. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this _________day of _____________, 
2015. 

 
 

[SEAL] 
 
 ____________________________________     
  Notary Public, State of Texas 



 
 

CONSENT OF LANDLORD 
 

 The Town of Addison, Texas ("Landlord") is the Landlord in the Ground Lease 
described in the Assignment of Ground Lease (the “Assignment”) entered into and effective as of 
_______________ 2015, at Addison, Texas, by and between Tailwind Worldwide, LP, a Texas 
limited partnership (herein referred to as “Assignor”) and Mills Group, Inc., a Texas 
corporation(herein referred to as “Assignee”).  In executing this Consent of Landlord, Landlord is 
relying upon the warranty and representations made in the foregoing Assignment by both 
Assignor and Assignee, and in relying upon the same Landlord hereby consents to the foregoing 
Assignment from Assignor to Assignee.  Notwithstanding this Consent, Landlord does not waive 
any of its rights under the Ground Lease as to the Assignor or the Assignee, and does not release 
Assignor from its covenants, obligations, duties, or responsibilities under or in connection with 
the Ground Lease, and Assignor shall remain liable and responsible for all such covenants 
obligations, duties, or responsibilities.  In addition, notwithstanding any provisions of this 
Consent of Landlord or the above and foregoing Assignment to the contrary, this Consent shall 
not operate as a waiver of any prohibition against further assignment, transfer, conveyance, 
pledge, change of control, or subletting of the Ground Lease or the premises described therein 
without Landlord's prior written consent. 

 
This consent is not intended and shall not be construed to waive any rights of the Town 

under the Ground Lease, to release or waive any claims of the Town against any tenant under or 
in connection with the Ground Lease or to release any tenant from any duties, obligations or 
liabilities under or in connection with the Lease. 

 
This Consent shall be and remain valid only if and provided that, by no later than 6:00 

o'clock p.m. on __________________, ______________, 2015: 
 
(i) the Assignment has been executed and notarized by both Assignor and Assignee, 
 
(ii) all other matters in connection with the transfer, sale, and/or conveyance by Assignor 

to Assignee of the Assignor's interest in the Ground Lease have been fully consummated and 
completed and the transaction closed as reasonably determined by Landlord (such matters 
including, without limitation, the full execution and finalization of this Assignment and any other 
documentation so required by Landlord relating to this transaction) and delivered to Landlord c/o 
Mr. Bill Dyer, Addison Airport Real Estate Manager, at 16051 Addison Road, Suite 220, 
Addison, Texas 75001.  Otherwise, and failing compliance with and satisfaction of each all of 
paragraphs (i) and (ii) above, this Consent shall be null and void ab initio as if it had never been 
given and executed. 

 
 
 
Signed this _____ day __________, 2015. 

 
       LANDLORD: 
 
       TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

        
By: ________________________________ 
         Charles Daniels, City Manager 



Exhibit A 
to Ground Lease Assignment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SURVEY DATED NOVEMBER 7, 2011 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Exhibit B 
to Ground Lease Assignment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF GROUND LEASE 
AS AMENDED AND MODIFIED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















































LETTERS TESTAMENTARY

NO. PBI-359-2007

ESTATE OF

	

§

	

PROBATE COURT

JAMES DONALD DONALDSON

	

§

	

NO. I

DECEASED

	

§

	

COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS

THE STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF COLLIN

1, St5~,

	

1o~

e e�ery, 7ez"d cae4 cezgq d4t of tfe 99th d"4 jury,2007

KENNETH CHARLES DONALDSON	

tf~ad

	

~yuucted 4 chid 6

	

4ettew 7ed�oseaearuy 4 tk gdtate 4

	 JAMES DONALD DONALDSON	, De~;~~aded

aad that HE gua6pd ad &td INDEPENDENT EXECUTOR 4 daed'state oa t.1e

901dart'4 P4,2007 ad tle 6u# zpe& atd tae &ud a �6wcat ej jA& c t

~ctee j Ce 4Kd 41ect.

7IJU`�dd oq la�ed aad dead 4 o#w at

	

7exact oa ffiw tae 9th dart'c
ch4.200?.

SSA ie� e"e# ee
e e "4 76"





















































Exhibit C 
to Ground Lease Assignment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECIPROCAL EASEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
SAMPLE BANK ESTOPPEL AGREEMENT FORM 

 
 

On Bank Letterhead 
 
 
________, _____ 
 
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, Texas 75001-9010 
 
 

RE: Ground Lease dated June 17,1981 (the "Ground Lease"), by and among the Town 
of Addison, Texas, a home-rule municipality (the "City", the same being the Town of Addison, 
Texas) and Addison Airport of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation, as Landlord (the City now being 
the sole Landlord under the Ground Lease, the "Base Lease" (as defined in the Ground Lease) 
having expired, and the City alone being referred to herein as the "Landlord") and Donham Oil 
Tool Company, as tenant; the said Ground Lease then having been assigned to Airport 
Associates LTD., a Texas limited partnership by that Assignment of Lease entered into on June 
28, 1983; the said Ground Lease then having been assigned to James Donaldson and John 
Barbee, each Texas individuals d.b.a. Addison Aircraft Storage, as assignee, by that Assignment 
of Lease dated January 3, 1989; then John Barbee sold and conveyed to James D. Donaldson all 
his rights, title and interests in the leasehold by that certain General Warranty Deed executed 
July 17, 1990 as recorded in Book/Volume 90155, Page 3379 of the Official Public Records of 
Dallas County, Texas (the “OPR”); then the James Donald Donaldson Estate Trust, successor in 
interest of James D. Donaldson, now deceased assigned the Ground Lease to Tailwind 
Worldwide, LP., a Texas limited partnership, as recorded in the OPR as Instrument 
#201100339045 by that Assignment of Lease dated December 20, 2011, the said Ground Lease 
then having been assigned to Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation by that Assignment of 
Ground Lease entered into and made effective on ____________, 2015; and by virtue of the 
above and foregoing assignments, Mills Group, Inc. is the tenant of the said Ground Lease, as 
amended and modified and subject to the instruments described herein; and the Ground Lease is 
subject to that certain Reciprocal Easement Agreement entered into and made effective June 28, 
1983 and amended by that certain First Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement entered 
to and made effective December 19, 2011 by and between Doyle Hartman and Margaret M. 
Hartman d/b/a Doyle Hartman, Oil Operator and the James Donald Donaldson Estate Trust and 
the Estate of James Donald Donaldson as filed and record in the Dallas County, Texas OPR as 
Instrument #201100339044 (the “Reciprocal Easement”); and a true and correct copy of the 
Ground Lease as described herein is attached hereto Exhibit “A” and a true and correct copy of 
the Reciprocal Easement attached hereto Exhibit “C”), each being incorporated herein by 
reference respectively. 
 
Gentlemen: 
 



Texas Security Bank (the "Bank") intends to make a loan to Mills Group, Inc. a Texas 
corporation (the "Tenant") in the amount of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00) (the 
“Loan”) will be secured by, among other things a lien against the leasehold interest of Tenant in 
the Real Property created pursuant to a leasehold deed of trust (the "Leasehold Deed of Trust") to 
be executed by Tenant to Craig T. Scheef, as Trustee for the benefit of Bank, which Leasehold 
Deed of Trust shall be subordinate and inferior to the Ground Lease and Landlord's lien 
(contractual and statutory) and other rights thereunder and all terms and conditions thereof, 
which Leasehold Deed of Trust shall be in substantially the form of the Leasehold Deed of Trust 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B” . 
 
The Bank has advised Tenant that Bank requires the written acknowledgment of Landlord to the 
execution by Tenant of the above-described Leasehold Deed of Trust and the written 
acknowledgment and consent of the Landlord to the statements set forth in this letter. 
 
Therefore, by executing the enclosed copy of this letter and returning it to the undersigned, 
Landlord hereby specifically states as follows (and notwithstanding any statement or provision 
hereof, Landlord's statements herein do not constitute approval by or consent of Landlord of the 
Leasehold Deed of Trust or of any of the terms and conditions set forth therein, and nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed a waiver or release of any of the Landlord's rights under the 
Ground Lease or otherwise): 
 
1. Landlord takes notice of the Leasehold Deed of Trust and the subordinate and inferior 

lien provided for therein being impressed solely against the leasehold interest of Tenant 
in the Real Property. 

 
2. The Ground Lease has not been modified, altered or amended to the best of Landlord's 

actual knowledge except as described herein. 
 
3. Landlord has no actual knowledge of the existence of any default by Tenant under the 

Ground Lease, or of any lien against the Real Property other than that created by the 
Ground Lease, any lien for taxes, or as may be otherwise created or provided by law. 

 
4. Landlord will give to Bank, at the address of Bank specified in this letter or at such other 

address as Bank may hereafter designate in writing to Landlord, prompt written notice of 
any default by Tenant under the Ground Lease simultaneously with the giving of such 
notice to Tenant (if such notice is required under the Ground Lease), and Bank shall have 
the right, but not the obligation, for a period of fifteen (15) days after its receipt of such 
notice or within any longer period of time specified in such notice, to take such action or 
to make such payment as my be necessary or appropriate to cure any such default so 
specified.  Landlord shall not exercise Landlord's right to terminate the Ground Lease 
without first giving Bank the notice provided for herein and affording Bank the right to 
cure such default as provided for herein. 

 
5. For the purposes of this letter, any notice to Bank may be delivered in person or shall be 

deemed to be delivered, whether actually received or not, when deposited in United 



States mail, postage prepaid, registered, or certified mail, return receipt requested, 
addressed to Bank at the above-described address. 

 
6. If Bank or a third party (provided such third party is approved by Landlord in accordance 

with the terms of the Ground Lease for approval of an assignee) succeeds to the interest 
of Tenant in and to the Ground Lease by means of foreclosure under the Leasehold Deed 
of Trust, by means of a transfer in lieu of such foreclosure, or by any other lawful means 
due to the failure or inability of Tenant to pay the Loan secured by the Leasehold Deed of 
Trust, Landlord shall thereafter accept, recognize and treat Bank or such approved third 
party as the tenant under the Ground Lease and Landlord shall continue to perform all of 
its obligations under the Ground Lease subject, however, to the terms and conditions of 
the Ground Lease.  Bank may thereafter, with the written consent of the Landlord, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, assign its leasehold right, title, 
and interest in and to the Ground Lease.  For purposes hereof and any applicable law, and 
without limitation as to other grounds for Landlord withholding consent, it shall be 
deemed to be reasonable for Landlord to withhold its consent when any one or more of 
the following apply: 
 
(a) the proposed assignee is of a character or of a reputation or is engaged in a 
business which is not consistent with the master or strategic plan of Addison Airport as 
determined by Landlord; 
 
(b) the proposed assignee has not demonstrated sufficient financial responsibility or 
creditworthiness to the satisfaction of Landlord in light of the duties, obligations, and 
responsibilities of the tenant under the Ground Lease at the time when the consent is 
requested; 
 
(c) the proposed assignee's intended use of the demised premises as defined in the 
Ground Lease is inconsistent with the Ground Lease; 
 
(d) the proposed assignment would cause Landlord to be in violation of another lease 
or agreement to which Landlord is a party or to which Landlord or the Addison Airport is 
subject (including, without limitation, any grant agreements or grant assurances of the 
Federal Aviation Administration or any other governmental entity or agency); 
 
(e) if at any time consent is requested or at any time prior to the granting of consent, 
tenant is in default under the Ground Lease or would be in default under the Ground 
Lease but for the pendency of a grace or cure period, provided that if such default is 
cured within such grace or cure period, then Landlord may not continue to withhold its 
consent solely for this circumstance; or 
 
(f) the proposed assignee does not intend to occupy the entire demised premises as 
described in the Ground Lease and conduct its business therefrom for a substantial 
portion of the then remaining term of the Ground Lease. 
 
For purposes hereof and any applicable law, and without limitation as to other grounds 



for Landlord delaying consent, it shall be deemed to be reasonable for Landlord to delay 
its consent for a period of 45 days after the receipt by Landlord of all information 
requested by Landlord regarding or in connection with the proposed assignment and the 
proposed assignee. 

 
7. To the actual knowledge of Landlord no rent has been paid more than thirty (30) days in 

advance of its due date. 
 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
___________________________ (BANK) 
 
 
By:        
       _______________________ (Name and Title) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Acknowledged and consented to the ______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
By: ________________________  

By: ________________________ 

Name: ______________________ 

Its: _________________________ 

 

 
 
By: ________________________  

By: ________________________ 

Name: ______________________ 

Its: _________________________ 

 
 
cc: Real Estate Manager 
 Addison Airport 
 16051 Addison Road, Suite 220 
 Addison, Texas 75001 
 













































 
 
 
 

Exhibit 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BANK ESTOPPEL AGREEMENT 
 



 
SAMPLE BANK ESTOPPEL AGREEMENT FORM 

 
 

On Bank Letterhead 
 
 
________, _____ 
 
Town of Addison 
P.O. Box 9010 
Addison, Texas 75001-9010 
 
 

RE: Ground Lease dated June 17,1981 (the "Ground Lease"), by and among the Town 
of Addison, Texas, a home-rule municipality (the "City", the same being the Town of Addison, 
Texas) and Addison Airport of Texas, Inc., a Texas corporation, as Landlord (the City now being 
the sole Landlord under the Ground Lease, the "Base Lease" (as defined in the Ground Lease) 
having expired, and the City alone being referred to herein as the "Landlord") and Donham Oil 
Tool Company, as tenant; the said Ground Lease then having been assigned to Airport 
Associates LTD., a Texas limited partnership by that Assignment of Lease entered into on June 
28, 1983; the said Ground Lease then having been assigned to James Donaldson and John 
Barbee, each Texas individuals d.b.a. Addison Aircraft Storage, as assignee, by that Assignment 
of Lease dated January 3, 1989; then John Barbee sold and conveyed to James D. Donaldson all 
his rights, title and interests in the leasehold by that certain General Warranty Deed executed 
July 17, 1990 as recorded in Book/Volume 90155, Page 3379 of the Official Public Records of 
Dallas County, Texas (the “OPR”); then the James Donald Donaldson Estate Trust, successor in 
interest of James D. Donaldson, now deceased assigned the Ground Lease to Tailwind 
Worldwide, LP., a Texas limited partnership, as recorded in the OPR as Instrument 
#201100339045 by that Assignment of Lease dated December 20, 2011, the said Ground Lease 
then having been assigned to Mills Group, Inc., a Texas corporation by that Assignment of 
Ground Lease entered into and made effective on ____________, 2015; and by virtue of the 
above and foregoing assignments, Mills Group, Inc. is the tenant of the said Ground Lease, as 
amended and modified and subject to the instruments described herein; and the Ground Lease is 
subject to that certain Reciprocal Easement Agreement entered into and made effective June 28, 
1983 and amended by that certain First Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement entered 
to and made effective December 19, 2011 by and between Doyle Hartman and Margaret M. 
Hartman d/b/a Doyle Hartman, Oil Operator and the James Donald Donaldson Estate Trust and 
the Estate of James Donald Donaldson as filed and record in the Dallas County, Texas OPR as 
Instrument #201100339044 (the “Reciprocal Easement”); and a true and correct copy of the 
Ground Lease as described herein is attached hereto Exhibit “A” and a true and correct copy of 
the Reciprocal Easement attached hereto Exhibit “C”), each being incorporated herein by 
reference respectively. 
 
Gentlemen: 
 



Texas Security Bank (the "Bank") intends to make a loan to Mills Group, Inc. a Texas 
corporation (the "Tenant") in the amount of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00) (the 
“Loan”) will be secured by, among other things a lien against the leasehold interest of Tenant in 
the Real Property created pursuant to a leasehold deed of trust (the "Leasehold Deed of Trust") to 
be executed by Tenant to Craig T. Scheef, as Trustee for the benefit of Bank, which Leasehold 
Deed of Trust shall be subordinate and inferior to the Ground Lease and Landlord's lien 
(contractual and statutory) and other rights thereunder and all terms and conditions thereof, 
which Leasehold Deed of Trust shall be in substantially the form of the Leasehold Deed of Trust 
attached hereto as Exhibit “B” . 
 
The Bank has advised Tenant that Bank requires the written acknowledgment of Landlord to the 
execution by Tenant of the above-described Leasehold Deed of Trust and the written 
acknowledgment and consent of the Landlord to the statements set forth in this letter. 
 
Therefore, by executing the enclosed copy of this letter and returning it to the undersigned, 
Landlord hereby specifically states as follows (and notwithstanding any statement or provision 
hereof, Landlord's statements herein do not constitute approval by or consent of Landlord of the 
Leasehold Deed of Trust or of any of the terms and conditions set forth therein, and nothing 
herein contained shall be deemed a waiver or release of any of the Landlord's rights under the 
Ground Lease or otherwise): 
 
1. Landlord takes notice of the Leasehold Deed of Trust and the subordinate and inferior 

lien provided for therein being impressed solely against the leasehold interest of Tenant 
in the Real Property. 

 
2. The Ground Lease has not been modified, altered or amended to the best of Landlord's 

actual knowledge except as described herein. 
 
3. Landlord has no actual knowledge of the existence of any default by Tenant under the 

Ground Lease, or of any lien against the Real Property other than that created by the 
Ground Lease, any lien for taxes, or as may be otherwise created or provided by law. 

 
4. Landlord will give to Bank, at the address of Bank specified in this letter or at such other 

address as Bank may hereafter designate in writing to Landlord, prompt written notice of 
any default by Tenant under the Ground Lease simultaneously with the giving of such 
notice to Tenant (if such notice is required under the Ground Lease), and Bank shall have 
the right, but not the obligation, for a period of fifteen (15) days after its receipt of such 
notice or within any longer period of time specified in such notice, to take such action or 
to make such payment as my be necessary or appropriate to cure any such default so 
specified.  Landlord shall not exercise Landlord's right to terminate the Ground Lease 
without first giving Bank the notice provided for herein and affording Bank the right to 
cure such default as provided for herein. 

 
5. For the purposes of this letter, any notice to Bank may be delivered in person or shall be 

deemed to be delivered, whether actually received or not, when deposited in United 



States mail, postage prepaid, registered, or certified mail, return receipt requested, 
addressed to Bank at the above-described address. 

 
6. If Bank or a third party (provided such third party is approved by Landlord in accordance 

with the terms of the Ground Lease for approval of an assignee) succeeds to the interest 
of Tenant in and to the Ground Lease by means of foreclosure under the Leasehold Deed 
of Trust, by means of a transfer in lieu of such foreclosure, or by any other lawful means 
due to the failure or inability of Tenant to pay the Loan secured by the Leasehold Deed of 
Trust, Landlord shall thereafter accept, recognize and treat Bank or such approved third 
party as the tenant under the Ground Lease and Landlord shall continue to perform all of 
its obligations under the Ground Lease subject, however, to the terms and conditions of 
the Ground Lease.  Bank may thereafter, with the written consent of the Landlord, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, assign its leasehold right, title, 
and interest in and to the Ground Lease.  For purposes hereof and any applicable law, and 
without limitation as to other grounds for Landlord withholding consent, it shall be 
deemed to be reasonable for Landlord to withhold its consent when any one or more of 
the following apply: 
 
(a) the proposed assignee is of a character or of a reputation or is engaged in a 
business which is not consistent with the master or strategic plan of Addison Airport as 
determined by Landlord; 
 
(b) the proposed assignee has not demonstrated sufficient financial responsibility or 
creditworthiness to the satisfaction of Landlord in light of the duties, obligations, and 
responsibilities of the tenant under the Ground Lease at the time when the consent is 
requested; 
 
(c) the proposed assignee's intended use of the demised premises as defined in the 
Ground Lease is inconsistent with the Ground Lease; 
 
(d) the proposed assignment would cause Landlord to be in violation of another lease 
or agreement to which Landlord is a party or to which Landlord or the Addison Airport is 
subject (including, without limitation, any grant agreements or grant assurances of the 
Federal Aviation Administration or any other governmental entity or agency); 
 
(e) if at any time consent is requested or at any time prior to the granting of consent, 
tenant is in default under the Ground Lease or would be in default under the Ground 
Lease but for the pendency of a grace or cure period, provided that if such default is 
cured within such grace or cure period, then Landlord may not continue to withhold its 
consent solely for this circumstance; or 
 
(f) the proposed assignee does not intend to occupy the entire demised premises as 
described in the Ground Lease and conduct its business therefrom for a substantial 
portion of the then remaining term of the Ground Lease. 
 
For purposes hereof and any applicable law, and without limitation as to other grounds 



for Landlord delaying consent, it shall be deemed to be reasonable for Landlord to delay 
its consent for a period of 45 days after the receipt by Landlord of all information 
requested by Landlord regarding or in connection with the proposed assignment and the 
proposed assignee. 

 
7. To the actual knowledge of Landlord no rent has been paid more than thirty (30) days in 

advance of its due date. 
 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
___________________________ (BANK) 
 
 
By:        
       _______________________ (Name and Title) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Acknowledged and consented to the ______ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
By: ________________________  

By: ________________________ 

Name: ______________________ 

Its: _________________________ 

 

 
 
By: ________________________  

By: ________________________ 

Name: ______________________ 

Its: _________________________ 

 
 
cc: Real Estate Manager 
 Addison Airport 
 16051 Addison Road, Suite 220 
 Addison, Texas 75001 
 



   
AI-1365     Item #   29.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Approve
An 8-Year Ground Lease Extension At Addison Airport For Key
Development, LLC, At 4500 Westgrove Drive.

BACKGROUND:
Key Development, LLC, (Key) located at 4500 Westgrove Drive, requests that the Town
consent to an amendment to their Ground Lease, thereby extending the remaining lease
term by an additional eight (8) years provided that Key completes a minimum of
$378,000 of qualifying capital improvements and repairs within one (1) year of the
effective date of the proposed amendment. Staff recommends the Town consent to enter
into and execute the proposed Second Amendment to Ground Lease (to be substantially
in the form attached hereto) subject to the City Attorney's review and acceptance of the
agreement's final form (the Amendment).

Key acquired and took assignment of the leasehold interest and building improvements
located at 4500 Westgrove Drive at Addison Airport in 2006. At that time, the Town
agreed to amend the assigned ground lease, extending the lease term an additional
fifteen (15) years in consideration for a 37% rental increase (from $.54/SFL to $.74/SFL)
effective as of the amendment date. The ground lease, which first originated in 1984, is
now due to expire in Year 2039 (24 years remaining).

According to the Town's leasing guidelines at the Airport,a ground lease term may be
extended in exchange for the tenant agreeing to complete qualifying capital
improvements or repairs to the existing building improvements that are designed to
enhance the property's fair market value and/or its useful life proportionate to the desired
extended term. In connection with this request, Key Development provided airport
management an itemized schedule of proposed capital improvements and repairs that
they intend and agree to complete within one (1) year of the effective date of the
Amendment.

When a lease term extension is granted, the Town defers taking title of the building
improvements and the opportunity to realize a higher revenue by way of the increased
rental rate. In this case, using commercially reasonable assumptions, the Town's
estimated opportunity cost for extending the Key Development ground lease term in
today's dollars (NPV) is:

5-year extension: $266,000a.
8-year extension: $378,000b.
10-year extension:$439,000c.



10-year extension:$439,000c.

Key proposes to make certain capital improvements and repairs that are itemized in the
Amendment that meet or exceed the completed construction value of $378,000 to the
Town's satisfaction and within one (1) year of the effective date of the proposed
Amendment. Upon completion of the improvements as agreed, and provided they are not
in default at the time, the extended lease term would then become effective. In the event
the Key fails to complete the capital improvements and repairs as agreed, the eight (8)
year extension would not be made effective, causing the existing lease expiration date of
3/31/2039 to remain unchanged.

Key Development, LLC has been a tenant in good standing since 2006. They have
successfully managed, operated and maintained the leased premises to a high standard
since taking ownership of the building improvements. The proposed capital
improvements and repairs are expected to enhance the property's market valuation and
extend the facility's remaining useful life. Upon satisfactory completion of the
improvements, the Ground Lease term will be extended to3/31/2047, or in 32 years. The
proposed extended lease term does not conflict or interfere with any long-term
redevelopment or strategic plans for the Airport.

Key Development’s proposal is consistent with the 2013 Addison Airport Strategic Plan
by (i) enhancing the overall value of the Airport and surrounding community; and (ii)
represents upgrades and improvements to an existing Airport facility. With respect to the
pending FAA Addison Airport Master Plan Update, this plan does not contemplate any
significant land-use change or use for this portion of the Airport.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution 
Supplemental Information 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO 
GROUND LEASE BETWEEN THE TOWN OF ADDISON AND KEY 
DEVELOPMENT, LLC FOR COMMERCIAL AVIATION USE ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4500 WESTGROVE DRIVE, AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
 Section 1. The Second Amendment to Ground Lease between the Town of Addison 
and Key Development, LLC for commercial aviation use on property located at 4500 Westgrove 
Drive, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved and the 
City Manager is authorized to execute the agreement. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this 
the 10th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
       ___________________________  
       Todd Meier, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Laura Bell, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: _______________________________      
 Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT A 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 

 



1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 

- M E M O R A N D U M -  
 

To: Lisa Pyles, Director of Infrastructure & Development Services 

From: Bill Dyer, Airport Real Estate Manager 

CC: Joel Jenkinson, Airport Director 

Date: October 26, 2015 

Re: A Request for the Town of Addison’s Consideration and Consent to Amend 
Ground Lease 0710-55 (commonly known as 4500 Westgrove Drive) at Addison 
Airport, Key Development, LLC, as Tenant. 

 
 
Requested Action: 
Key Development, LLC is requesting the Town Council’s consideration and consent for 
the Town to enter into and execute an amendment to the above referenced Ground Lease, 
thereby extending the remaining lease term by an additional eight (8) years provided the 

Tenant completes a minimum 
of $378,000 of qualifying 
capital improvements and 
repairs within one (1) year of 
the effective date of the 
proposed amendment. 
 
Airport Management is 
recommending the Town give 
its consent for the City 
Manager to enter into and 
execute the proposed Second 

Amendment to Ground Lease (to be substantially in the form attached hereto) subject to 
the City Attorney’s review and acceptance of the agreement’s final form (the 
“Amendment”). 
  

William M. Dyer 
Real Estate Manager 
16051 Addison Road 
Suite #220 
Addison, Texas 75001 
 
Main:   972-392-4850 
Direct:  972-392-4856 
Fax:       972-788-9334 
bill.dyer@addisonairport.net 



2 | P a g e  
 

Background Information: 
 
Key Development, LLC acquired and took assignment of the leasehold interest and building 
improvements located at 4500 Westgrove Drive at Addison Airport in 2006.  At that time, the 
Town agreed to amend the assigned ground lease, extending the lease term an additional 
fifteen (15) years in consideration for a 37% rental increase (from $.54/SFL to $.74/SFL) 
effective as of the amendment date. The ground lease, which first originated in 1984, is now 
due to expire in Year 2039 (24 years remaining). 
 
   

Property Description  Ground Lease Information 
Date of Report 10/15/2015  Lease # 0710-5502 
Property Number 0710  Tenant Name Key Development, LLC 
Property Address 4500 Westgrove Drive  Doing Business As Key Development, LLC 

Ramp Address V-16  Primary Contact: James W. Keyes 
Property Type Ground Lease  Lease Commencement Date 6/30/1982 

Land Area (SFL) 67,686   Lease Expiration Date 3/31/2039 
Hangar Area (BSF) 10,000  Years Remaining in Term 24 

Office/Shop Area (BSF) 29,626  Current Monthly Rent  $4,786.25 
Total Building Area (BAF) 39,626  Current Annual Rent  $57,435.00 
Year Built 1985  Annual Rent /SF Land  $0.85  

Est. Economic Life 60  Est. Remaining Contract Rent $1,663,073  
End of Proj. Eco. Life 2045  Next Rent Adjustment Date 04/01/16 - CPI every 2 years 

% Obsolescent 50%  
Permitted Use: 
 

Multi-tenant office w/ attached 
aircraft hangar; sale & storage of 
aircraft & aircraft parts; flight training, 
charter, repairs and rentals   

Aircraft Apron Area (SFL) 15,215  
   

 
Consideration of Key Development’s Proposal 
 
In connection with the ground Tenant’s request of a lease extension, Key Development 
provided airport management an itemized schedule of proposed capital improvements 
and repairs for which the Tenant intends and agrees to complete within one (1) year of 
the effective date of the Amendment (see Exhibit “B” to the Amendment). 
 
Application of the Town’s current lease guidelines when considering ground lease 
term extensions: Although not obligated to, the Town may grant a ground lease term 
extension in exchange for the Tenant agreeing to complete qualifying capital 
improvements or repairs to the existing building improvements designed to enhance the 
property’s fair market value and/or its useful life proportionate to the desired extended 
term.1 
 
Economic Consideration of Ground Lease Term Extensions: When the Town grants a 
lease term extension it is deferring taking title of the building improvements and its 

                                                 
1 Sometimes increased ground rental can also be considered a means to “buy-down”  a lease term in-lieu of 
capital improvements provided the extended term does not significantly exceed the projected remaining 
useful life (physical or functional) of the building improvements.  



3 | P a g e  
 

opportunity to realize a higher revenue stream in the form of commercial rental in-lieu of 
continued ground rent over the extended term. Using commercially reasonable 
assumptions, the Town’s estimated opportunity cost for extending the Key Development 
ground lease term in today’s dollars (NPV) is: 

a. 5-year extension $266,000 
b. 8-year extension $378,000 
c. 10-year extension $439,000 

 

Extent and Nature of Proposed Capital Improvements:  Capital Improvements and capital 
repairs are typically regarded as the owner’s investment in the real property not 
recoverable from other sources and excludes costs relating to “general maintenance and 
repairs.” They generally fall into three categories: capital improvements (additions or 
“betterments”), capital replacements (replacement of existing capital assets), and capital 
repairs (significant repairs that rise to the equivalent of capital replacements). The latter 
two often affect (extends) the property’s useful life and are typically regarded as long-
term assets eligible for depreciation treatment for tax purposes (vs. being expensed) and 
not directly recoverable through tenant/sub-tenant rentals. Examples: roof replacement 
(20-yr. useful life), mechanical system replacements (elevators, HVAC systems, boilers 
15/30-yr. useful life), common area finishes (lobby, restrooms, corridors 10-yr. useful 
life).  

Key Development, LLC proposes to make certain capital improvements and repairs, as 
itemized in Exhibit “B” to the Amendment, which must meet or exceed the completed 
construction value of $378,000 (in the aggregate) to the Landlord’s satisfaction and 
within one (1) year of the effective date of the proposed Amendment. Upon completion 
of the improvements as agreed, and provided the Tenant is not in default at the time, the 
extended lease term would then become effective, which shall be evidenced by a 
recorded Memorandum of Ground Lease, substantially in the form of Exhibit “C” to the 
Amendment.  In the event the Tenant fails to complete the capital improvements and 
repairs as agreed, the eight (8) year extension would not be made effective, causing the 
existing lease expiration date of 3/31/2039 to remain unchanged, which shall be affirmed 
accordingly by a recorded Memorandum of Ground Lease, substantially in the form of 
Exhibit “C” to the Amendment. 

 
Conclusion and Recommendation: 
  
Based upon the foregoing, Key Development, LLC has been a tenant in good standing 
with the Town and Addison Airport since 2006.  They have successfully managed, 
operated and maintained the leased premises to a high standard ever since taking 
ownership of the building improvements. The Tenant proposes and agrees to complete 
certain qualifying capital improvements and repairs to the existing improvements, which 
are expected to enhance the property’s market valuation and extend the facility’s 
remaining useful life.  The estimated construction value of the proposed improvements 
are to meet or exceed the aggregate sum of $378,000 which entitles the Tenant to an eight 
(8) year term extension to the existing Ground Lease term.  Upon completion of making 
the improvements to the leased premises to the Landlord’s satisfaction, the Ground Lease 



4 | P a g e  
 

term will be scheduled to expire 3/31/2047, or in 32 years.  The proposed extended lease 
term is not too dissimilar to other adjacent properties’ lease terms and would not conflict 
or interfere with any long-term redevelopment or strategic plans for the Airport. 
 
Key Development’s proposal is consistent with the 2013 Addison Airport Strategic Plan 
by (i) enhancing the overall value of the Airport and surrounding community; and (ii) 
represents upgrades and improvements to an existing Airport facility.  With respect to the 
pending FAA Addison Airport Master Plan Update, this plan does not contemplate any 
significant land-use change or use for this portion of the Airport. 
 
Airport Management is recommending the Town give its consent for the City Manager to 
enter into and execute on behalf of the Town the proposed Second Amendment to 
Ground Lease subject to the City Attorney’s review and oversight of execution. 
 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



5 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO GROUND LEASE 
 

 

 



 
Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 1 of 9 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § SECOND AMENDMENT TO GROUND LEASE 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
 
 

This Second Amendment to Ground Lease (hereinafter referred to as the “Second 
Amendment”) is entered into and made effective as of ____________________ 2015, (the 
"Effective Date") at Addison, Texas, by and between the Town of Addison, Texas, a home-rule 
municipality (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Landlord" or the "City"), and Key 
Development, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Tenant”) (Landlord and Tenant are 
sometimes referred to as the “parties” or “party”). 

 
WHEREAS, a Ground Lease, together with the Addendum to Ground Lease, was executed 

on March 2, 1984 between  the  City of Addison, Texas  (the  same  being  the  Town   of Addison, 
Texas and sometimes referred to herein as the ”City") and Addison Airport of Texas, Inc. ("AATI") 
as Landlord, and Lawson Ridgeway as Tenant, recorded  in Volume  86022, Pages 0124-0133 of  
the  Deed  Records  of  Dallas  County, Texas; and the Easement Agreement entered into on or 
about April 16, 1984 by and between Lawson Ridgeway as Granter and the City and AATI as 
Grantee, recorded as Instrument #198601697396 in Volume 861969, Pages 5742-5748 in the Deed 
Records of Dallas County, Texas, comprising the Ground Lease, as amended or modified, 
hereinafter referred to as the "Ground Lease” and described in that certain boundary survey dated 
June 6, 2006 by the terms of which certain real property now commonly referred to as 4500 
Westgrove Drive at Addison Airport within the Town of Addison, Texas and owned by the City; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Lease provides that, upon the expiration or termination of that certain 

agreement referred to and defined in the Lease as the “Base Lease” (and being an Agreement for 
Operation of the Addison Airport between the City and AATI), the City is entitled to all of the 
rights, benefits and remedies, and will perform the duties, covenants and obligations, of the 
Landlord under the Lease; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the said Base Lease has expired and the City alone is the Landlord under the 
Lease; and 

 
WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Lease dated October 23, 1985, recorded in Vo1ume 

86169, Pages 5724-5748 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas, the Ground Lease was 
assigned from LAWSON RIDGEWAY, as assignor, to GREAT SOUTHWEST HOMES, INC., 
as assignee; and 

 
WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Lease dated May 31, 1988, recorded as Instrument 

#198801897613, in Volume 88189, Pages 1182-1201 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, 
Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned from GREAT SOUTHWEST HOMES, INC., as assignor, 
to TARFIVE. Inc., as assignee; and 

 
WHEREAS, by that Substitute Trustee's Deed, dated September 7, 1988 recorded as 

Instrument #198801897613 in Volume 88178, Pages 1420-1425 of the Deed Records of Dallas 



 
Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 2 of 9 
 

County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned to the beneficiary, MCORP MANAGEMENT 
SOLUTIONS. INC.; and 

 
WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Lease dated September 8, 1988, recorded as 

Instrument #198900044704 in Volume 89004, Pages 577-580 of the Deed Records of Dallas 
County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned from MCORP MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, 
INC., a Texas corporation, as assignor, to REALTY ALLIANCE OF TEXAS. LTD., a Texas 
limited partnership, as assignee; and 

 
WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Ground Lease dated March 15, 1990, recorded as 

Instrument #199000545456 in Volume 90054, Pages 1648-1687 of the Deed Records of Dallas 
County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned from REALTY ALLIANCE OF TEXAS.  LTD., 
a Texas corporation, as assignor, to ITALIX ACQUISITION CORPORATION, a Texas 
corporation, as assignee; and 

 
WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Ground Lease dated March 31, 1999, recorded as 

Instrument #199900523035 in Volume 99063, Pages 1763-1767 of the Deed Records of Dallas 
County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned from ITALIX ACQUISITION CORPORATION, 
a Texas corporation, as assignor, to AIR 276 I, L.P., a Texas limited partnership, as assignee; and 

 
WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Ground Lease dated July 7, 2000, recorded as 

Instrument #200001054648 in Volume 2000132, Pages 07549-07556 of the Deed Records of 
Dallas County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned from AIR 276 I, L.P., a Texas limited 
partnership, as assignor, to ADS AIR 2000, L.P. a Texas limited partnership, as assignee; and 

 
WHEREAS, by that Assignment of Ground Lease dated September 15, 2006, recorded as 

Instrument #200600346255 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas, the Ground Lease was 
assigned from ADS AIR 2000, L.P.,   a Texas   limited   partnership, as assignor, to Key 
Development LLC., a Texas limited liability company, as assignee; and 

 
WHEREAS,  by  virtue  of  such  assignments,  Key   Development,   LLC,  a  Texas   

limited liability company, is the  Tenant  under  the  Ground  Lease,  as amended  or  modified  as  
of the effective date given above for this Second Amendment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Lease was modified by that “First Amendment” to Ground Lease made 

and entered into September 15, 2006, recorded as Instrument #200600346256 of the Deed 
Records of Dallas County, Texas, modifying, among other things, the term of the agreement by 
adding 240 months, (ending 3/31/2044) provided within 18 months of the effective date of the 
First Amendment tenant completed the remodeling and renovation of approximately 10,000 sf. 
of office space and the construction of at least 5,000 sf of additional hangar space (conditions 
detailed in the Amendment Section 2, Paragraph A).] 

 
WHEREAS, by that certified letter dated September 17, 2008 confirming the lease 

extension in accordance with the First Amendment, Tenant elected not to complete the 
Improvements as defined in Section 2, Paragraph A of the First Amendment  and did not elect 
either of the alternate options as defined in Subparagraph (vii) of Section 2, Paragraph A of the 
First Amendment.  Therefore, the Term of the Ground Lease was extended by one hundred eighty 



 
Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 3 of 9 
 

(180) months so that the Term of the Ground Lease shall end on March 31, 2039, still subject to 
the termination provisions of the Ground Lease as amended or modified; and 

 
WHEREAS, a true and correct copy of the Ground Lease as amended or modified as set 

forth above is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “A”  
 

WHEREAS, Tenant has proposed to construct certain additional improvements on the 
Demised Premises as described herein, and in connection therewith and as consideration 
therefore Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Ground Lease in the manner set forth 
below, contingent upon the final completion of such additional improvements and the approval 
thereof by Landlord. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above and foregoing premises, the 

sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00), and other good and valuable consideration, the 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Town of Addison, Texas and Key   
Development,   LLC, a Texas limited liability company, do hereby agree as follows: 

 
Section 1. Incorporation of Premises.  The above and foregoing recitals are true and 

correct and are incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 
 
Section 2. Amendments and Modifications to Ground Lease.  The Ground Lease, 

as described in the above and foregoing recitals, is hereby amended and modified as follows: 
 
A. Amendment to Term.  The term of the Ground Lease may be modified in 

accordance with the following: 
 
1. The Term of the Ground Lease, currently scheduled to end on March 31, 2039, shall 
be extended for an additional 96 months so it shall end on March 31, 2047 (the "Second 
Lease Extension Period”), subject to the termination provisions of the Ground Lease.  
Provided, however, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Second Lease Extension Period 
shall not become effective unless and until Tenant has complied with and fully satisfied 
each of the following terms and conditions: 
 
(i) Within one year immediately following the Effective Date of this Second 

Amendment (the “Repair and Improvement Period”), Tenant shall have completed 
upon the Demised Premises to Landlord’s satisfaction the construction, remodeling 
and renovation of improvements to the existing building improvements as generally 
described in  Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Building 
Improvements”); 

 
(ii) Tenant agrees that it will contribute no less than Three Hundred Seventy-Eight 

Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($378,000.00) to the cost of the construction of the 
Building Improvements. If Landlord requests, Tenant shall provide Landlord with 
reasonable evidence of the costs and expenses contributed by Tenant to the 
construction and completion of the Building Improvements; 

 



 
Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 4 of 9 
 

(iii) All construction of the Building Improvements and any other facilities or 
improvements shall be in a first-class, workmanlike manner and in accordance with 
and subject to the provisions of the Ground Lease.  The design and construction of 
the Building Improvements shall be in accordance and comply with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, orders, 
and standards.  Tenant shall promptly pay and discharge all costs, expenses, claims 
for damages, liens and any and all other liabilities and obligations that arise in 
connection with any such construction; 

 
(iv) At the time of the issuance of the letter described in subparagraph 

 2 below, Tenant shall not then be in default of any provision of the Ground Lease 
beyond any applicable cure period; 

 
2. Upon Landlord's determination that Tenant has fully, finally and timely complied 
with, to Landlord's satisfaction, each of the terms and conditions set forth in Section 2.A.1, 
above, Landlord will notify Tenant of the same in writing and the Second Lease Extension 
Period shall thereafter be in effect. 

 
3. If, however, Landlord determines that Tenant has failed to fully, finally and timely 
comply with, to Landlord's satisfaction, all of the conditions and provisions of Section 
2.A.1., above, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant written notice of Tenant’s failure to comply 
with and satisfy all the conditions and provisions of Section 2.A.1; and if said conditions 
and provisions remain unresolved and not so complied with or so satisfied, in the sole 
discretion of Landlord, for more than thirty (30) days after said notice, the Second Lease 
Extension Period shall not be granted and shall not take effect, and the Term of the Ground 
Lease shall end on March 31, 2039 (subject to the termination provisions of the Ground 
Lease). 
 
4. Upon the eventual conclusion of either Subparagraph 2 or 3 above, Landlord and 
Tenant hereby agree to execute and cause to be recorded in the Official Public Records of 
Dallas County, Texas a Memorandum of Lease substantially in the form of Exhibit “C” 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference which shall, among other things, 
affirm the true and correct expiration date of the Ground Lease resulting from this Second 
Amendment to Ground Lease. 
 
Section 3. No Other Amendments.  Except to the extent modified or amended 

herein, all other terms and obligations of the Ground Lease shall remain unchanged and in 
full force and effect. 

 
Section 4. Applicable Law; Venue.  In the event of any action under this 

Second Amendment, exclusive venue for all causes of action shall be instituted and 
maintained in Dallas County, Texas.  The parties agree that the laws of the state of Texas 
shall govern and apply to the interpretation, validity and enforcement of this Second 
Amendment; and, with respect to any conflict of law provisions, the parties agree that such 
conflict of law provisions shall not affect the application of the law of Texas (without 
reference to its conflict of law provisions) to the governing, interpretation, validity and 



 
Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 5 of 9 
 

enforcement of this Second Amendment.  All obligations of the parties created by this 
Second Amendment are performable in Dallas County, Texas. 

 
Section 5. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Second Amendment and each 

of its provisions are solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and are not intended to and 
shall not create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any third person or entity. 

 
Section 6. Authority to Execute.  The undersigned officers and/or agents of 

the parties hereto are the properly authorized officials and have the necessary authority to 
execute this Second Amendment on behalf of the parties hereto, and each party hereby 
certifies to the other that any necessary resolutions or other act extending such authority 
have been duly passed and are now in full force and effect. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties execute this Agreement this 
________ day of _____________________________, 2015. 
 

LANDLORD: 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 

By:       
 Charles Daniels, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:       
  

TENANT: 
 

KEY DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
 
 

By:       
            James W. Keyes, President 
 
 

 



Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 6 of 9 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared James W. 
Keyes, president of Key Development, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, known to me to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein stated. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this ______ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
 
[SEAL] 
       ____________________________________ 
       Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
  
BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Charles Daniels, city 
manager of the Town of Addison, a home-rule municipality, known to me to be the person whose 
name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same 
for the purposes and consideration therein stated. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this _________day of _____________, 2015. 

 
 

[SEAL] 
 
 ____________________________________      
 Notary Public, State of Texas 
  



Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 7 of 9 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

TRUE AND CORRECT COPY OF GROUND LEASE 
AS AMENDED AND MODIFIED 

 
  















































































































































































































Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 8 of 9 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 

BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Description of Building Improvement
Estimated 

Improvement 
Cost

1 Replace 50 ton HVAC unit with 60 ton $96,889

2 Upgrade and improve elevator

a) Replace Motor and all electrical components $55,857

b) Upgrade cab interior $25,777

3 Replace Roof $50,000

4 1st floor lobby atrium

a) Improve the 3 sets of lobby doors $27,670

b) Polish granite floors, repair broken granite, repair 
cracks in glass block and seal exterior, improve and 
replace landscape

$10,578

c) Re-lamp with energy efficient light bulbs and 
paint atrium ceilings

$3,089

5 Hangar lobby - update restrooms and renovate lobby $4,110

6
Hangar - Repair drywall, install new base, repair 
damaged insulation, seal floor, paint gate and repair 
door tracks

$8,955

7 Install new ceiling grid

a) New ceiling grid and tiles at 2nd and 3rd floor 
hallways

$19,337

b) New ceiling grid and modern tiles in all suites $60,000

8 New window treatments in all suites $33,000

Total Estimated Improvement Cost $395,262

Exhibit B - Building Improvements



Second Amendment to Ground Lease 0710-5502 – Page 9 of 9 

 
EXHIBIT “C” 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT C 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 
 

 This Memorandum of Lease is dated as of ________________, 2016, and executed by and 
between the Town of Addison, Texas ("Landlord" or "City") and Key Development, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company ("Tenant"). 
 

WHEREAS, a Ground Lease, together with the Addendum to Ground Lease, was executed 
on March 2, 1984 between  the  City of Addison, Texas  (the  same  being  the  Town   of Addison, 
Texas and sometimes referred to herein as the ”City") and Addison Airport of Texas, Inc. ("AATI") 
as Landlord, and Lawson Ridgeway as Tenant, recorded  in Volume  86022, Pages 0124-0133 of  
the  Deed  Records  of  Dallas  County, Texas; and the Easement Agreement entered into on or 
about April 16, 1984 by and between Lawson Ridgeway as Granter and the City and AATI as 
Grantee, recorded as Instrument #198601697396 in Volume 861969, Pages 5742-5748 in the Deed 
Records of Dallas County, Texas, comprising the Ground Lease, as amended or modified, 
hereinafter referred to as the "Ground Lease” and described in that certain boundary survey dated 
June 6, 2006 by the terms of which certain real property now commonly referred to as 4500 
Westgrove Drive at Addison Airport within the Town of Addison, Texas and owned by the City; 
and thereafter the Ground Lease: 

 
• the Ground Lease was assigned October 23, 1985, recorded in Vo1ume 86169, Pages 

5724-5748 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas, the Ground Lease was 
assigned from LAWSON RIDGEWAY, as assignor, to GREAT SOUTHWEST 
HOMES, INC., as assignee; and thereafter 

• the Ground Lease was assigned May 31, 1988, recorded as Instrument #198801897613, 
in Volume 88189, Pages 1182-1201 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas, the 
Ground Lease was assigned from GREAT SOUTHWEST HOMES, INC., as assignor, 
to TARFIVE. Inc., as assignee; and thereafter 

• by that Substitute Trustee's Deed, dated September 7, 1988 recorded as Instrument 
#198801897613 in Volume 88178, Pages 1420-1425 of the Deed Records of Dallas 
County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned to the beneficiary, MCORP 
MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS. INC.; and thereafter 

• the Ground Lease was assigned September 8, 1988, recorded as Instrument 
#198900044704 in Volume 89004, Pages 577-580 of the Deed Records of Dallas 
County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned from MCORP MANAGEMENT 
SOLUTIONS, INC., a Texas corporation, as assignor, to REALTY ALLIANCE OF 
TEXAS. LTD., a Texas limited partnership, as assignee; and thereafter 

• the Ground Lease was assigned March 15, 1990, recorded as Instrument 
#199000545456 in Volume 90054, Pages 1648-1687 of the Deed Records of Dallas 
County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned from REALTY ALLIANCE OF 



TEXAS.  LTD., a Texas corporation, as assignor, to ITALIX ACQUISITION 
CORPORATION, a Texas corporation, as assignee; and thereafter 

• the Ground Lease was assigned March 31, 1999, recorded as Instrument 
#199900523035 in Volume 99063, Pages 1763-1767 of the Deed Records of Dallas 
County, Texas, the Ground Lease was assigned from ITALIX ACQUISITION 
CORPORATION, a Texas corporation, as assignor, to AIR 276 I, L.P., a Texas limited 
partnership, as assignee; and thereafter 

• the Ground Lease was assigned July 7, 2000, recorded as Instrument #200001054648 in 
Volume 2000132, Pages 07549-07556 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas, 
the Ground Lease was assigned from AIR 276 I, L.P., a Texas limited partnership, as 
assignor, to ADS AIR 2000, L.P. a Texas limited partnership, as assignee; and thereafter 

• the Ground Lease was assigned September 15, 2006, recorded as Instrument 
#200600346255 of the Deed Records of Dallas County, Texas, the Ground Lease was 
assigned from ADS AIR 2000, L.P.,   a Texas   limited   partnership, as assignor, to Key 
Development LLC., a Texas limited liability company, as assignee; and thereafter 

• the lease was modified by that “First Amendment” to Ground Lease made and entered 
into September 15, 2006, recorded as Instrument #200600346256 of the Deed Records 
of Dallas County, Texas; and thereafter 
 

• by that certified letter dated September 17, 2008 confirming the lease extension in 
accordance with the First Amendment so that the Term of the Ground Lease shall end 
on March 31, 2039, still subject to the termination provisions of the Ground Lease as 
amended or modified; and 
 
 

 Now let it be known, the said Ground Lease is further amended by that Second Amendment 
to Ground Lease, entered into and made effective _______________, 2015, which, among other 
things, extends the Term so the Ground Lease shall [Note: strike non-applicable of] a) continue to 
expire on March 31, 2039 OR b) now expire March 31, 2047 unless otherwise earlier terminated. 
 
 This Memorandum of Lease is solely for recording and notice purposes and shall not be 
construed to alter, modify, expand, diminish or supplement the provisions of the Ground Lease, as 
amended.  In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this Memorandum of Lease 
and the provisions of the Ground Lease (as amended), the provisions of the Ground Lease, as 
amended, shall govern.  Reference should be made to the Ground Lease (and all amendments 
thereto) for the full description of the rights and duties of Landlord and Tenant thereunder, and 
this Memorandum of Lease shall in no way affect the terms and conditions of the Ground Lease 
(including all amendments thereto) or the interpretation of the rights and duties of Landlord and 
Tenant thereunder. 
 
 Upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Ground Lease, Landlord and Tenant agree 
that they shall execute and record a termination of this Memorandum of Lease. 
 
 



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties execute this Memorandum of Lease 
this _____ day of ________________________, 2016. 
 
 

LANDLORD: 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 

By:       
 
_______________________, City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:       
  

TENANT: 
 

KEY DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
 
 

By:       
               James W. Keyes, President 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared James W. 
Keyes, president of Key Development, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, known to me to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me 
that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein stated. 
 
 GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
[SEAL]     By:                  
         Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My commission expires:   
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
 
 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared 
___________________________, city manager of the Town of Addison, a home-rule 
municipality, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, 
and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein 
stated 
 GIVEN under my hand and seal of office this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
[SEAL]     By:                  
         Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
      My commission expires:   



 

EXHIBIT A 
to Memorandum of Lease 

     
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF DEMISED PREMISES 

 

   

 
 
 
 
 
  



   
AI-1366     Item #   30.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept A
Grant From TXDOT Aviation For A Runway Incursion Mitigation (RIM) Study
At Addison Airport In The Amount Of $48,460.00.

BACKGROUND:
The FAA has notified TxDOT that its' funding a runway incursion mitigation (RIM) grant
to study alternatives for incursion prone areas at three airports in Texas. Addison Airport
has been selected as one of the airports for the study. The study will look at alternatives
at each airport for reducing runway incursions. An incursion is defined as an incident
where an unauthorized aircraft, vehicle or person is on a runway. This adversely affects
runway safety,as it creates the risk that an airplane taking off or landing will collide with
the object.
Over recent years, Addison Airport has taken steps to reduce the number of incursions
on the airport. The most recent incursions were related to the reconstruction of Taxiway
Alpha and the confusion that the modified traffic patterns can cause. Staff welcomes any
recommendations that may come from the study.
The acceptance of the grant requires that the airport sponsor, the Town, commit 10% of
the cost of the study for the local match. The local match for this study will be $4,846.00.
Sufficient funds are available in the Airport Operating Account.

RECOMMENDATION:
The Administration recommends approval.

Fiscal Impact
Budgeted Yes/No: Yes
Funding Source: Airport
Amount: $4,846.00

Attachments
Certification of Funds
Designation of Sponsor Representative
Resolution



CERTIFICATION OF PROJECT FUNDS

I,                                                                  ,                                                                  ,
                (Name)                      (Title)
do certify that sufficient funds to meet the ___________________________________ share of

(Sponsor Name)
 project costs as identified for the project and will be available in accordance with the schedule
shown below:

SPONSOR FUNDS

Source Amount Date Available

                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                      

_______________________________,  Texas
(Sponsor)

By:                                                                            

Title:                                                                         

Date:                                                                         



DESIGNATION OF SPONSOR'S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

I,                                                                               ,                                                                 ,
                (Name)                       (Title)
with the __________________________ designates____________________________________

 (Sponsor Name) (Name , Title)
as the ____________________ authorized representative for the ___________________ project,

(Sponsor Name)
 who shall have the authority to make approvals and disapprovals as required on behalf of 
the___________________. 

(Sponsor Name)
____________________________,  Texas   

(Sponsor)

By:                                                                            
            

(Signature)

Title:                                                                         
            

Date:                                                                                       

DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE

Mailing Address:                                                                
                                                                                                
                                                                                                

*Physical/Overnight Address:___________________
_________________________________________

Telephone Number:_________________________

Fax Number:_______________________________

E-Mail Address:____________________________



* ALL GRANT AGREEMENTS ARE SENT BY OVERNIGHT MAIL



TOWN OF ADDISON

RESOLUTION NO. ___________________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO
ACCEPT  A  GRANT  FROM  THE  TEXAS  DEPARTMENT  OF
TRANSPORTATION FOR THE RUNWAY INCURSION MITIGATION
PROGRAM IN THE AMOUNT OF $48,460.00 AND EXECUTE SUCH
OTHER  DOCUMENTS  NECESSARY  FOR  THE RECEIPT OF  THE
GRANT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS,  the  Town  of  Addison,  Texas  (“Town”)  intends  to  make  certain
improvements to Addison Airport (“Project”); and

WHEREAS,  the  general  description  of  the  Project  includes:  a  Runway Incursion
Mitigation  Program  to  study  airfield  geometry  that  has  been  identified  as  a  primary
contributing factor for runway incursions and develop strategies to help mitigate risk at these
locations at an estimated cost of $48,460.00; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation (“TxDOT”) advised the Town
of an available grant for the improvements associated with the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Town has investigated and determined that it would be beneficial to
the Town to accept such a grant; and

WHEREAS, TxDOT shall provide a grant to the Town in the amount of $48,460.00,
and  the  Town  agrees  to  be  responsible  for  ten  percent  (10%)  of  the  total  Project  costs
currently estimated to be $4,846.00; and

WHEREAS, the Town names TxDOT as its agent for the purposes of applying for,
receiving and disbursing the grant funds for the improvements associated with the Project and
for the administration of contracts necessary for the implementation of these improvements
associated with the Project.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE TOWN OF ADDISON TEXAS:

Section 1. The City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas does hereby approve a
resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute on behalf of the Town, at the appropriate
time,  and  with  the  appropriate  authorizations  of  this  governing  body,  all  contracts  and
agreements with the State of Texas, represented by TxDOT, and such other parties as shall be
necessary and appropriate for the implementation of grant for the improvements associated
with the Project at Addison Airport.

Section 2. This resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   
RESOLUTION No. ______________ Page 1                                                                          



  

 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas
this 10th day of November 2015.

                                                                                  
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

                                                                                  
Laura Bell, City Secretary

OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY   
RESOLUTION No. ______________ Page 2                                                                          





   
AI-1368     Item #   31.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Approve
A Professional Services Contract With Cobb Fendley & Associates, Inc. For
Engineering Services Associated With Development Review In An Amount No
To Exceed $100,000.00.

BACKGROUND:
Establish a master service agreement with Cobb Fendley Associates to perform
professional engineering services in conjunction with engineering review of private
development plans as they interface with or connect to the public infrastructure. This is
one of the most vital review processes within the Town. It allows the Town to ensure that
the public infrastructure connected to each development is designed and installed
according to the Town and industry standards. Cobb Fendley has been providing these
services on an as-needed basis for several years and the staff has been very pleased
with their service and responsiveness.

The master services agreement would consist of task orders and this task order would
expire on September 30, 2016.

Staff recommends that the agreement be renewed for an amount not to exceed
$100,000. The funds for this contract are budgeted for in each of the three respective
departments, utilities, streets, and storm water.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution w/ Agreement



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  A  MASTER  AGREEMENT  FOR
PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES  BETWEEN  THE  TOWN  OF  ADDISON
AND  COBB,  FENDLEY  &  ASSOCIATES,  INC.  FOR  ENGINEERING
REVIEW  OF  DEVELOPMENT  AND  ENGINEERING  PLANS  FOR
PUBLIC FACILITIES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $100,00.00,
AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO  EXECUTE  THE
AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,
TEXAS:

Section 1. The Master Agreement to Furnish Consulting Services between the Town
of Addison and Cobb, Fendley & Associates, Inc. to provide engineering review of development
and  engineering  plans  for  the  Town’s  public  facilities,  a  copy of  which  is  attached  to  this
Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute
the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 10th day of November, 2015.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney

Resolution No. __________ - Page 1



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 2



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 3



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 4



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 5



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 6



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 7



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 8



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 9



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 10



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 11



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 12



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 13



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 14



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 15



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 16



EXHIBIT A

Resolution No. __________ - Page 17



   
AI-1405     Item #   32.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present An Update On Various Capital Improvement Program Projects.

BACKGROUND:
Quarterly the staff provides an update regarding the status of various capital
improvement projects (CIP) for the Town. In addition to the update provided by staff, a
new report has been developed to provide a comprehensive summary as to the progress
of the on-going CIP projects as well as highlight the various stages and monetary
condition of each project.  The following capital improvement projects are currently
included in the update:

Belt Line Road Undergrounding Utilities
Addison Road Rehabilitation
Vitruvian Phase V
Les Lacs Pond Improvements
Winnwood Pond Dredging
Midway Road Revitalization
Taxiway Victor
Airport Pavement Project

The information provided in the report will include the following fields:
Project Name, Start Date, Estimated End Date, Budget, Spent to Date,
Comments/Notes,  Project Status

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

Attachments
CIP Spreadsheet



Project Name Start Date End Date Budget Spent to Date

12/6/14 9/14/16  $17,133,134  $9,211,513 

Addison Road 7/30/15 11/11/15  $2,274,473  $726,535 

Vitruvian Phase V Design TBD TBD  $311,065 N/A

mid Jan 2016 mid-July  $1,000,000  $50,821 

Winnwood Pond Dredging est. April 2016 TBD  $1,400,000 N/A

10/15/14 TBD  $16,000,000  $964,109 

7/27/15 1/15/15  $2,154,207  $885,000 

Airport Pavements 9/8/15 4/1/16  $468,741  $82,698 

On schedule within budget
Behind Schedule
Over budget

Belt Line Road 
Undergrounding Utilities 

Les Lacs Pond 
Improvements

Midway  Road Revitalization 
(Design)
Taxiway Victor 
Reconstruction



Comments/Notes Status

Pre-design activities have begun Project has not begun yet

Project has not begun yet

All utility agreements in place; 5 segments 
of out 8 complete for central mainline duct

Project is behind schedule due to 
weather. 

Pavement markings and misc. concrete pad 
replacements are continuing

Project is on schedule and within 
budget

Design is nearly complete; to be posted for 
bids in mid-November

Project is on schedule and within 
budget

Project to be re-bid in spring 2016; to be 
completed in summer 2016
Design is 40% complete; construction 
planned mid-2017

Project is on schedule and within 
budget

Currently in Phase 3 of 5. Phase 4 taxilane 
closure is occuring on 11/09/15

Project is on schedule and within 
budget

Currently working on Phase 2 of the S4 
apron reconstruction

Project is on schedule and within 
budget



   
AI-1409     Item #   33.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discuss And Take Needed Action Regarding City Manager Welcome Event
Council Subcommittee Report .

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a



   
AI-1428     10.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its attorney(s)
on a mater in which the duty of the attorney(s) to the governmental body under the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly
conflicts with Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to 

Town of Addison v. Landmark Structures I, L.P. and Urban Green
Energy Cause No. DC-15-0761 44th Judicial District Court, Dallas
County, Texas
The ponds or lakes at Vitruvian Park, located within the vicinity and east
of the intersection of Vitruvian Way and Ponte Ave, and Farmers Branch
Creek
Automotive Use Issues- 15600 Midway Road

Section 551.072, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value
of real property 

Duke's Icehouse
Section 551.087, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate commercial or financial information that
was received from a business prospect that seeks to locate, stay, or expand in or near
the territory of the governmental body, and with which the governmental body is
conducting economic development negotiations. 

Former Sam's Club Property

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a



   
AI-1429     11.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 11/10/2015  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider
action, if any, on matter discussed in Executive Session.

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A


	Agenda
	WS4_Health Insurance Renewal
	_Sam's Club Worksession
	_Diabetes Month Proclamation
	_Minutes 
	Att1_October 12, 2015 Minutes 
	Att2_October 16, 2015 Minutes 
	Att3_October 23, 2015 Minutes 
	Att4_October 13, 2015 Minutes 
	Att5_October 27 2015 Minutes 
	Att6_October 15, 2015 Minutes 
	Att7_October 20, 2015 Minutes 
	_Shiroma Event Public Relations Contract
	Att1_Resolution
	Att2_Supplemental Information 
	_Website Content Management and Southwest Speakers Bureau
	Att1_Resolution
	7._Director of Public Communications
	Att1_Resolution
	_FINAL PLAT_Crescent Crown Addition
	Att1_Crescent Crown Addition Council Packet
	Crescent Crown Addition Map
	Crescent Crown Addition Staff Report
	Crecent Crown Addison Commission Findings

	Att2_Crescent Crown Addition Final Plat
	2015-10-15 Crescent Crown Addition Pg. 1
	2015-10-15 Crescent Crown Addition Pg. 2

	_Master Transportation Plan Contract Approval
	Att1_Resolution and Agreement
	_Final Payment - Lea Park and Play
	Att1_Payment Application
	Att2_Warranty
	Att3_Warranty for Service
	_Investment Policy Update FY16
	Att1_Ordinance 
	_Investment Strategy FY16
	Att1_FY16 Investment Strategy - No Changes
	Att2_Resolution
	_DCAD Resolution
	Att1_Resolution 
	_NCTCOG Materials Management Grant Resolution
	Att1_Big Belly Spec Sheet
	Att2_Big Belly Location Town Map
	Att3_Grant Application 
	Att4_Resolution 
	_Terminal Maintenance Agreement for Harris Public Safety Radio System
	Att1_Resolution
	Att2_Harris Agreement
	1. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT
	2.1 Service Facilities
	2.2 Right to Subcontract
	2.3  Terminal Spares
	2.4 Working Hours
	2.5 Demand Services
	2.6 Terminal Maintenance Responsibilities
	2.7 Service Records
	2.8 General
	2.10 Special Conditions

	3. CUSTOMER FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS
	4. WARRANTY
	5. TERM AND TERMINATION
	6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
	7. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS
	8. GENERAL PROVISIONS
	ADDENDUM I - TERMINAL MAINTENANCE RATES
	D. DEMAND SERVICE RATES
	E. OTHER SUBCONTRACTED SERVICES
	A. TERMINAL EQUIPMENT:
	1.0 Maintenance Exclusions
	1.1 Portable Equipment
	1.2 Mobile Equipment
	1.3 Control Stations
	2.0 Additions / Deletions to Addendum II – Equipment List
	1.0 Local Support
	2.0 Depot Maintenance
	3.0 Terminal Radio Equipment Repair Statement of Work
	3.1 Maintenance Responsibilities
	Seller’s Facility technicians and staff will provide warranty and maintenance actions on all Terminal Equipment included in this TMA. Seller may subcontract some preventive maintenance services.
	3.2 Initiation of Terminal Service Request from Customer:

	The e-mail will be replied to by the currently on-call Field Technician, copied to all other Seller personnel.  Seller’s on-call Field Technician will contact the initiating Customer contact within one (1) Working Hour.  Example: A call initiated betw...
	3.3 Maintenance Logs
	Seller shall utilize its existing ticket tracking system to log all requests for service and all service actions taken. Seller’s technicians open a ticket when any service request from Customer is initiated.  Seller’s technicians will update that tick...
	3.4 Service Reports
	3.5 Terminal Spares
	3.6 Tech-Link Support Services
	3.7 Terminal Equipment Service Ticket Initiation Process

	4.0 Preventive Maintenance Statement of Work


	_Launchability Non-Profit Contract
	Att1_Resolution And Agreement
	_Metrocrest Chamber Grant Funding
	Att1_Resolution And Agreement
	_Metrocrest Community Clinic Grant Funding
	Att1_Resolution and Agreement
	_Metrocrest Services Grant Funding Agreement
	Att1_Resolution and Agreement
	_The Family Place Grant Funding Agreement
	Att1_Resolution and Agreement
	_WaterTower Theatre Grant Funding Agreement
	Att1_Resolution and Agreement
	_WaterTower Use Agreement
	Att1_Resolution and Agreement
	_Duck Ordinance 
	Att1_Ordinance
	Att2_Amended Section of Ordinance
	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1720-Z_Addison Town Center
	Att1_1720-Z Council Packet
	1720-Z Map
	1720-Z Staff Report
	1720-Z Land Use Analysis form
	1720-Z Commission Findings

	Att2_Ordinance 
	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1717-SUP Kroger Fuel Center
	Att1_1717-SUP Council Packet
	1717-SUP Map
	1717-SUP Staff Report
	1717-SUP Land Use Analysis form
	1717-SUP Commission Findings

	Att2_1717-SUP Plans
	Att3_Ordinance 
	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1721-SUP_Addison Conference and Theatre Centre
	Att1_1721-SUP Council Packet
	1721-SUP Map
	1721-SUP Staff Report
	1721-SUP Land Use Analysis form
	1721-SUP Commission Findings

	Att2_Ordinance 
	_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1722-Z_Town of Addison
	Att1_Ordinance
	Att2_Supplemental Information 
	1722-Z Staff Report
	1722-Z Commission Findings

	_Ground Lease Assignment - Tailwind Worldwide
	Att1_Resolution
	Att2_Supplemental Information
	Tailwind Assignment Sale and Estoppel Recommendation Memo 10132015 v final2 CLEAN.pdf
	Tailwind Assignment Sale and Estoppel Recommendation Memo 10132015 v final2 with exhibits
	Tailwind Assignment Sale and Estoppel Recommendation Memo 10132015 v final2 with exhibits.pdf
	Tailwind Assignment Sale and Estoppel Recommendation Memo 10132015 v final2 with exhibits.pdf
	Tailwind Assignment Sale and Estoppel Recommendation Memo 10132015 v final2 with exhibits.pdf
	Tailwind Assignment Sale and Estoppel Recommendation Memo 10132015 v final2 with exhibits.pdf
	Tailwind Assignment Sale and Estoppel Recommendation Memo 10132015 v final2 with exhibits.pdf
	Tailwind Assignment Sale and Estoppel Recommendation Memo 10132015 v final2.pdf
	Current Status:
	Conclusion and Recommendation of Airport Manager:

	Leggett - Assignment of the Ground Lease v3.pdf
	COUNTY OF DALLAS §

	BANK ESTOPPEL AGREEMENT VR2 151002.pdf
	(a) the proposed assignee is of a character or of a reputation or is engaged in a business which is not consistent with the master or strategic plan of Addison Airport as determined by Landlord;
	(b) the proposed assignee has not demonstrated sufficient financial responsibility or creditworthiness to the satisfaction of Landlord in light of the duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the tenant under the Ground Lease at the time when the ...
	(c) the proposed assignee's intended use of the demised premises as defined in the Ground Lease is inconsistent with the Ground Lease;
	(d) the proposed assignment would cause Landlord to be in violation of another lease or agreement to which Landlord is a party or to which Landlord or the Addison Airport is subject (including, without limitation, any grant agreements or grant assuran...
	(e) if at any time consent is requested or at any time prior to the granting of consent, tenant is in default under the Ground Lease or would be in default under the Ground Lease but for the pendency of a grace or cure period, provided that if such de...
	(f) the proposed assignee does not intend to occupy the entire demised premises as described in the Ground Lease and conduct its business therefrom for a substantial portion of the then remaining term of the Ground Lease.
	For purposes hereof and any applicable law, and without limitation as to other grounds for Landlord delaying consent, it shall be deemed to be reasonable for Landlord to delay its consent for a period of 45 days after the receipt by Landlord of all in...


	Survey November 8, 2011.pdf

	COVER PAGES TAILWIND.pdf

	Recorded First Amendment to Reciprocal Easement Agreement 12-19-2011.pdf

	Ground Lease 061781
	Assignment 062883 (2)
	Assignment 010389
	General Warranty Deed 7-17-1990
	Letter of Testamentary
	page 1

	Recorded Assignment of Ground Lease 12-20-2011

	BANK ESTOPPEL AGREEMENT VR2 151002.pdf
	(a) the proposed assignee is of a character or of a reputation or is engaged in a business which is not consistent with the master or strategic plan of Addison Airport as determined by Landlord;
	(b) the proposed assignee has not demonstrated sufficient financial responsibility or creditworthiness to the satisfaction of Landlord in light of the duties, obligations, and responsibilities of the tenant under the Ground Lease at the time when the ...
	(c) the proposed assignee's intended use of the demised premises as defined in the Ground Lease is inconsistent with the Ground Lease;
	(d) the proposed assignment would cause Landlord to be in violation of another lease or agreement to which Landlord is a party or to which Landlord or the Addison Airport is subject (including, without limitation, any grant agreements or grant assuran...
	(e) if at any time consent is requested or at any time prior to the granting of consent, tenant is in default under the Ground Lease or would be in default under the Ground Lease but for the pendency of a grace or cure period, provided that if such de...
	(f) the proposed assignee does not intend to occupy the entire demised premises as described in the Ground Lease and conduct its business therefrom for a substantial portion of the then remaining term of the Ground Lease.
	For purposes hereof and any applicable law, and without limitation as to other grounds for Landlord delaying consent, it shall be deemed to be reasonable for Landlord to delay its consent for a period of 45 days after the receipt by Landlord of all in...



	_Ground Lease Extension - Key Development, LLC
	Att1_Resolution 
	Att2_Supplemental Information 
	Key 2nd Amend Recommendation Final with all exhibits 151029.pdf
	Key 2nd Amend Recommendation Final with all exhibits 151029.pdf
	Key 2nd Amend Recommendation Final with all exhibits 151029.pdf
	Key Development 2nd Amendment 10162015.pdf

	First Amendment 9-15-06.pdf

	Key Develpment 2nd Amendment Exhibit B 10162015.pdf
	Sheet1

	Key Development 2nd Amendment 10162015 Exhibit C Memo of Lease.pdf

	_Runway Incursion Mitigation (RIM) grant at Addison Airport
	Att1_Certification of Funds
	Att2_Designation of Sponsor Representative
	Att3_Resolution
	_Cobb Fendley Contract Renewal
	Att1_Resolution w_ Agreement
	_Capital Improvement Project Updates
	Att1_CIP Spreadsheet
	_Welcome Committee Report
	10._Executive Session 
	11._Reconvene

